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CORPORATE VISION

Dedicated to serving the needs of the
farming community, by delivering financial
products and technical services on a
competitive and sustainable basis, in a
convenient, efficient, and professional
manner, leading to the success of the Bank
and the farmers.

CORPORATE MISSION

To play an effective role in the promotion of
economic growth, by enhancing the availability of
credit to the agriculture sector, through reliable
access to sustainable financing, special lending
programs, technical assistance, and other products
& services, and to promote career development
opportunities for increasing professionalism and
technical proficiencies of employees.



CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

Develop and operate as a financially and operationally sustainable
R.F.l of the country.

Assist rural communities, particularly the small farmers, in raising
their productivity and income levels through timely delivery of
credit, advisory, and ancillary services.

Build ZTBL's image as a proactive, client-friendly, financially &
operationally sustainable with indigenous product deployment.

Establish and provide backward and forward linkages to
strengthen agri. value-added commaodity chains.

Engage in public-private and wholesale-retail partnerships to
deepen outreach and reduce operating costs.

To function as a rural commercial bank to mobilize rural capital
formation and to commercialize the agri. sector by delivering the
true value of credit to the client. Provide a wide range of risk
insurance products to its clients.

Open up its venues of operation to the Domestic & International
Banking Industry to avail comparative advantages.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Performance Review for the Year 2024:

I am pleased to share the Annual Director's Report for Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited, highlighting our financial
progress and major accomplishmenis in 2024. The restructuring and transformation drive, started in 2023
remained vigorously continued during the year 2024, which established the bank as a trusted and growing
institution within the community. The Board of Direclors extended valuable guidance and all oul support in
undertaking all initiatives of the management particularly in the areas of restructuring and transformation. This
well planned actions turned around the bank in the vear 2024 by posting highest ever finaneial performance.
Going forward, the bank is well positioned to deal with future challenges and exhibit sustainable growth in all
areas of its operations. Supported by a skilled and committed team, the bank has consistently focused on
delivering exceptional banking services and innovative products tailored to meet the varied requirements of our
valued customers. The common perception is that ZTBL is solely an agriculture lender, but in reality, the bank
offers a wide range of banking services including deposit taking i.e. Current Accounts, Savings Accounts,
Women’s Accounts, Junior Accounts, Senior Citizen Accounts, and Pension Accounts ete. Additionally, ZTBL
also introduced the fastest and most secure digital channels in the industry.

The year 2024, as part of transformation initiative, was marked by a strong emphasis on credit and financial
discipline, which played a pivotal role in enhancing the Bank’s performance. ZTBL achieved a profit before tax
of Rs. 25,892 million and an after-tax profit of Rs. 12,961 million, despite operating in a challenging economic
environment. A key driver of this success was the implementation of robust credit management practices,
including the introduction of overdue loan bucketing systems. These systems enabled the Bank to track and
manage its loan portfolio more effectively, ensuring timely recoveries and reducing the inflow of non-performing
loans (NPLs). This disciptined approach not only improved the quality of the loan portfolio but alse helped the
Bank surpass the milestone of Rs. 100 billion in its regular portfolio, The reduction in overdue loans and the
prevention of NPL, accumulation underscore ZTBL’s commitment to maintaining financial stability and
sustainable growth. ZTBL successfully achieved loan recovery of Rs. 9,703 million from charged off during the
year 2024,

The Bank successfully increased its current account deposits with launch of new products. The Home Remittance
Department continued to facilitate remittance inflows through over-the-counter transactions, and ZTBL is in the
process of implementing a robust Home Remittance System that supports diverse payment modes and integrates
with RAAST, Pakistan's instant payment system. During the year 2024, Treasury effectively managed liquidity,
making a significant contribution to the Bank's profitability. In line with the investment strategy, Treasury
maintained a low-duration investment portfolio, primarily focusing on short-maturity and floating-rate
instruments, thereby minimizing the portfolio's sensitivity to interest rate {luctuations.

ZTBL made significant advancements in digital banking, launching mobile and internet banking platforms, a
farmer's portal, and WhatsApp banking, while introducing features like loan payments and digital onboarding.
The Bank issued over 30,000 ATM PayPak Debit cards and upgraded its ATM setrvices to include cash
withdrawals, fund transfers, and bill payments, resolving over 13,000 digital transaction disputes. Key
inlrastructure improvements included network cabling for 195 branches, the migration of the iMIS application o
an autonomous database, and the acquisition of new IT equipment. ZTBL also focused on implementing its Core
Banking System (CBS), with comprehensive market analysis, vendor engagement, and request for proposal (RFP)
completed. Software development efforts included the implementation of new modules for current and saving
accounts, [slamic banking features, and internal risk management systems. Additionally, ZTBL procured various
IT and cybersecurity solutions, including managed WAN connectivity, privileged access management, and
hardware for branches, further strengthening its digital and operational capabilities.

ZTBL made significant strides in providing sustainable rural finance and services (o small farmers and low-
income households, focusing on food security and poverty reduction. The PM Kissan Package 2022 was a key
initiative aimed at advancing the agricultural sector by offering financial aid, technological innovations, and
resource management to small and medium-scale farmers. The Prime Minister's Y outh Business and Agriculture
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Loan Scheme (PMYB&ALS) facilitated access to business loans for young individuals, fostering
entrepreneurship and creating job opportunities. Additionally, the Markup Subsidy and Risk Sharing Scheme for
Farm Mechanization (MSRSSFM) improved agricultural productivity by providing access to modern machinery.
Moreover, under PM Kissan Package, ZFBL disbursed Rs. 7,600 million approximately in the year 2024,

Employee welfare policies were revised, allowing pensioners to access their Benevolent Fund grants in a lump
sum and increasing the Special Conveyance Allowance for DAP (Disabled) employees. Staff Salary revision
initialive was implemented effective from Aprit 01, 2024, consolidating two ad hoc relief alfowances into the
existing pay framework. Additionally, comprehensive Standard QOperating Procedures (SOPs) were developed to
enhance the legal framework for addressing fraudulent activities.

ZTBL has demonstrated a strong commitment to enhancing service quality and customer satisfaction through
various initiatives under its Financial Consumer Protection Framework. The Service Quality & Complaints
Management Department conducted periodic Branch Service Quality Assessments and Tele-Mystery Shopping
exercises, resulting in a significant improvement in branch rankings, with a 16% reduction in lower-performing
branches and a notable increase in high-performing branches. A new Service Quality & Complaints Management
Manual 2024 was introduced, alongside the deployment of the Scrvice Quality Management Information System
(5QMi8) to streamline reporting and ensure prompt service quality evaluations. Customer feedback mechanisms,
including online surveys and annual satisfaction surveys, revealed a 96% satisfaction rate among agricultural
credit customers. The Bank also improved its complaint resolution efficiency, resolving 92% of 619 complaints
within 15-20 days, achieving a 5% reduction in overall complaints compared to 2023.

The Operations Division made significant strides in efficiency. 23 branches have been relocated to
commercial/main market areas. In line with SBP guidelines, the bank has designated 247 ZTBL female employees
as " Women's Champions” in addition to their own job assignments, which are 51 % of total female staff strength.
Banker’s Cheque launched & implemented to replace Payment Orders/Demand Drafts. Arranged
Enlistment/approval from AGPR for Direct Credit of Pension/Salary of Govi. and Military Employees. Deposits
procured as Rs.348 Million in current account in 4,098 New to Bank (NTBs of Salaried/pensioners) as at
31.12.2024.

On the Human Resources front, the management inducted experienced professionals at top and mid-tier levels,
while two batches were inducted at the initial level too. This new induction has resulted in a positive cultural
change in the Bank. The effort was synergized with the promotion of 264 employecs, underscoring the
organizations dedication to fostering talent and supporting financial advancement.

The Training & Development Division (T&DD) successfully trained 4,517 employees actoss key areas such as
operations, credit, compliance, risk management, and Islamic banking, surpassing the target of 3,325 in financial
year 2024. Additionally, 416 students participated in various internship programs, including paid and unpaid
internships. T&DD facilitated Quranic education for employees’ children and organized 320 National Financial
Literacy Program (NFLP) sessions, exceeding the target of 310, with 10,414 participants. The division also
conducted 54 NFLP sessions for FY 2024-25, with a focus on reaching broader communities. T&DD’s efforts
extended to the Agriculture Financial Literacy Program (AFLP), with 104 sessions completed by the end of 2024,

Further, abserving zero tolerance on disciplinary issues, over 300 Disciplinary cases were decided/disposed-off
including reduction in salary, compulsory severance and dismissals. This fostered the culture of ethics, discipline
and due diligence in the Bank.

[n summary, the year 2024 has been a testament to ZTBL’s resilience, innovation, and commitment to excellence.
By emphasizing credit and financial discipline, improving recovery mechanisms, and reducing NPLs under
effective and constant monitoring at management level, the Bank has strengthened its financial position and
enhanced its ability to serve its customers. ZTBL remains steadfast in its mission to support the agricultural sector,
promote financial inclusion, and drive sustainable development. As we look ahead, we are confident that our

strategic initiatives and unwavering focus on customer satisfaction will continue to propel ZTBL toward greater
SUCCESS,
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Economy Review:

Pakistan's macroeconomic conditions showed notable improveinent during Y24, supported by stabilization
policies, successful IMF engagement, reduced uncertainty, and easing global commaodity prices. Real GDP grew
by 2.5%, driven by a strong recovery in agriculture, particularly wheat, rice, and cotton production, while
industrial growth remained subdued at 1.1%. The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) maintained the policy rate at 13%
during its review on December 17, 2024. This decision was supported by a significant decline in inflationary
pressures, recorded at 12.6% by June 2024. The current account deficit (CAID) narrowed to 0.2% of GDP,
supported by higher remittances, improved exports, and controlled imports, while FX reserves (Net Reserves with
SBP 2023-2024) increased to $9.39 billion, and the PKR appreciated by 9.8%. Fiscal consolidation continued,
with the primary balance posting a surplus of 0.9% of GDP for the first time in 17 years, reducing the debt-to-
GDP ratio to 67.4%. However, structural challenges such as low investment, energy seclor inefficiencies, and
high inflation expectations persisted. For FY25, real GDP growth is projected at 2.5-3.5%, with inflation expected
to remain in the 11.5-13.5% range, while the fiscal deficit is projected to improve to 5.5-6.5% of GDP, and the
CAD is expected 1o stay between 0-1.0% of GDP. Risks include global commeodity price volatility and fiscal
slippages, underscoring the need for continued reforms, pacticularly in the encrgy sector and SOEs, to ensure
long-term stability and growth.

Agriculture sector review:

The agriculture seclor was pivotal in driving economic recovery, achieving record outputs in key crops and
benefiting from enhanced credit disbursement and government support. However, challenges such as climate
change and water stress remain critical concerns. The government aims for ambitious targets in the upcoming
Rabi season, emphasizing the need for modernized practices and resilient infrastructure.

The Agricuiture Technology Department at ZTBL has remained committed 1o review the technological
advancements in the field of agriculture and seek the possibility of replicating the same in our local environment.
They also facilitale the distribution of seed kits and seedlings to encourage home-based vegetable production,
successful wheat cultivation, and the introduction of value-added products such as olive pickle, dried fruits, ofive
tea, and mustard oil. Training workshops on mushroom production and kitchen gardening also conducted, while
active participation in field days, seminars, and exhibitions reinforced ZTBL’s leadership in agricultural
innovation. In tine with sustainability goals, the Green Banking Unit revised its policies, transitioned regional
offices to renewable energy, and installed a 414 kW solar system at the head office, complemented by new
mitiatives such as establishing multi-fruit and grape orchards, converting orchards to high-efficiency irrigation
systems, launching water conservation activities, and expanding pouitry operations, all of which underscore
ZTBL’s dedication to resource optimization, environmental stewardship, and socio-economic development.

Agricultore Credit Disbursement:

ZTBL has demonstrated a strong commitment to advancing rural finance and ensuring equitable access io
financial services, particularly for women, by disbursing loans totaling Rs. 510 million to 319 female borrowers
under the PM Kissan Package in 2024. In a significant policy move, the Board of Directors approved the revision
of ¢redit limits for Production Loans, increasing the per borrower/party exposure from Rs. 1.2 million to Rs, 2.50
million, thereby empowering farmers with greater financial flexibility. The adoption of a digitalized land record
system across Punjab marked a milestone in enhancing operational efficiency while effectively preventing fraud.

In terms of overall credit disbursement, the Bank achieved to disburse an amount of Rs. 72,023 million among
92,212 borrowers from January to December 2024. Furthermore, the implementation of collection monitoring
measures significantly reduced Non-Performing Loans (NPL) by Rs. 7,601 million from Rs. 34,539 million to
Rs. 26,939 million in 2024, while the Bank has increase regular outstanding balance by Rs. 16,765 million from
Rs. 84,025 million to Rs. 100,790 million.
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Banking sector review:

The State Bank of Pakistan reteased the Banking Sector Performance report, which includes an assessment of the
stability and performance of Pakistan's banking industry for the period from January to June 2024 (H1CY24). In
H2CY 24, the banking sector benefited from a strengthening economic recovery, marked by reduced inflationary
pressures and a narrowing current account deficit. The Siate Bank of Pakistan's 450 basis point policy rate cut
cased financial conditions, supporting sector growth, which recorded an 11.5% expansion, along with a 0.6%
increase in domestic advances and an 11.7% rise in deposits. While persistent government borrowing continues
to drive balance sheet growth, high exposure to government debt remains a concern. Asset quality faced some
challenges, with the NPL ratio rising to 7.6%, though provisioning coverage improved. Profitability remained
steady, with after-tax profits increasing by 1.1% to Rs. 287 billion. Looking ahead, the banking sector is expected
to maintain stable growth, driven by increased credit demand, seasonal factors, and the easing of financial
conditions.

ZTBL Islamic Banking performance:

The Islamic Banking Division (IBD) faced significant challenges but achieved notable growth and developments.
Core deposits increased by 76%%, with current accounts rising from Rs. 223 million in 2023 to Rs. 393 million in
2024. IBD successfully collected 160 Hajj applications and developed four new Shariah-compliant financing
products: Dairy, Solar Tubewell, Bio Gas Plant, and Milk Chilling Units. Despite challenges, 1B achieved a
portfolio disbursement of Rs. 08 million under these financing modes. The Bank continued its gradual conversion
of conventional branches into Islamic Banking branches (IBBs), adhering to SBP guidclines, while also reviewing
policies and procedures in line with the Shariah Governance Framework. Public awareness and staff capacity
building were prioritized through the AGAHI series and Zarai Baithaks, aiming to improve understanding of
[slamic Barking. IBD also focused on developing paperless, digital financing solutions to meet customer needs
and address socio-environmental challenges, with plans for ongoing staff training in Islamic Banking.

Six Years at a Glance:

(Rupees.

Paggculin 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022 2023 2024
Total Assets 199.899 | 210,686 | 254,841 | 491,092 | 562,376 577,539
Advances — net 109,688 | 102,656 | 91,822 | 90,452 | 105,508 109,121
Cash and Bank Balance 32,557 22,107 31,842 | 15,196 | 35,547 10,618
Operating Fixed Assets 2,752 2,813 2,514 2,474 2,651 2,874
Share Capiral ) 52,678 | 52,678 | 52,678 | 52,678 | 52,678 52,678
Deposits 46,002 | 49,186 | 43,599 | 47,333 | 57,169 56,622
| Profit/ (Loss) before Taxation (26,34%) | (3,225) 1,783 7458 | 17,606 25,892
Taxation _ (8,755) (757) 3,518 2,335 6.622 12,93
Profit/ (Loss) after Taxation (17,594) | (2,467) | (1,735) 5,123 | 10,984 12,961
Un-appropriated Profit / (L.oss) brought forward 12,661 | (3,437)| (3,969)| (6,037 | (1,204) 10,343
lenpact of adoption of IFRS 9 - net of tax . - - = = {5,499)
Profit / (Loss) available for Appropriation (4.933) | (5,904) | (5,709 (914) 9,780 17,805
Other cotnprehensive Income / (Loss) 1,496 1,935 (333) 735 2,760 | 128
Transferred to 8 v - 9
fi p:;:“;:;) to Statutory Reserve (20% of after j i o028y @197) (2,502)
Un-appropriated Profit / (Loss) Carried forward | (3,437) | (3,969) | (6,037) | (1,204} | 10343 15,341
Earnings / (Loss) Per Share G3)| (04D| (0.33) 0.97 2.09 246 |

* ZTBL’s Financial Health:

» Profit before tax recorded at Rs. 25,892 million (2023: Profit of PKR 17,606 million).
*  After tax profit reached (o Rs. 12,961 million (2023: Profit of Rs. 10,984 million).

*  Operaling expenses increased by 11% to Rs 16,115 million (2023: Rs. 14,552 million).
* Basic camings per share are reported at Rs. 2.46 as compared to EPS (2023: Rs. 2.09).
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Liabilities in terms of deposits decreased 10 Rs. 56,622 million (2023: Rs. 57,169 million).
Gross advances have increased by 7% to Rs. 128,603 million (2023: PKR 119,982).

NPLs have decreased by 22% to Rs. 26,939 miflion (2023 Rs. 34,539 million).
Investments (net) increased to Rs. 376,274 million (2023: Rs. 372,212 million).

Total assets increased to Rs. 577,539 million (2023: Rs. 562,376 million).

> &2 » 9

2 Implementation of [IFRS-9, Financial Instruments:

As per BPRD Circular Number 3 dated July 05, 2022 followed by BPRD Circular Letter No. 7 dated
April 13, 2023, the SBP decided the implementation date of IFRS 9 from January 01, 2024 for all Banks
! DFls. Accordingly, ZTBL has also implemented IFRS-9 and prepared annual financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2024 in compliance of the requirements of IFRS-9. As permitted by the
transitional provisions of IFRS-9, the Bank has opted for modified retrospective approach and has not
restated comparative figures. Adjustments to the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities af the
date of transition were recognized in the opening retained eamings having total financial impact of Rs.
5.499 billion (net of deferred 1ax) at the beginning of the cusrent year without restating the comparative
figures. This additional impact was mainly due to additional credit Joss allowance againsl advances
categorized in stage | (Rs. 1.335 billion) and stage 2 (Rs. 5.172 biilion) where against no credit loss
allowance was required as per prevailing prudential regulations for agricultural financing.

*  Mark-up / Interest Income:
The markup earned against advances is Rs. 29,505 million, whereas in 2023 it was Rs. 21,939 million.

27% of the overall income from markup interest is made up of markup income against loans and
advances.

MARKUP INTEREST INCOME

194 2%
1% 0%

H Loans and Advances

B [nvestments

m Balances with banks

| securities purchased under resale

agreement

H call money lendings

m Bai Muajjal income
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4 L.
Net Mark-up Income, Non mark-up Income, & Total Income
Rupees in million
: 5,455 . -
2024 - ; 2025
3023 M 26,603
2022 “f“ﬁgw
47 i
e ]
2041 u'”ﬁstn
o 1302
2020 Hﬁi&?
® 1,793 : \
2013 M" 10,420
0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000 25,000 30,000 35,000
B Non Interest Income @ Net Mark-up Income B Total Income )
\.

*  Markup income ¢n investment:

ZTBL diversified its Rs. 417,843 million investment portfolio in 2024 by adding Bank accounts,
government securities, shares of listed companies, and other sources of markup income such as purchases
of securities under resale agreemeits, investments in government securities, [slamic modes of
investments/placements, call money lending, and balances with other Banks. This resulted in a markup
earned of Rs. 81,747 million (2024}, as compared to corresponding period of previous year 2023 of Rs.
120,377 million.

»  Mark-up / Interest Expense;

For the call borrowing & repo borrowing, the total markup/interest charge was Rs. 71,529 million,
moreover the cost of financing preference shares, which came to Rs. 4,085 million (at 7.5% on SBP
Redeemable Preference shares), the cost of deposits Rs. 9,271 million, and other expenditures, which
also include Rs, [,598 million that include the lease assets for usage, and bank commission fees.

Mark-up / Interest Expense

go, 2% 0% 11% ® Deposits
Redeemable preference shares - SBP
B Secusities sold under repurchasad
agreement

= Call borrowings

= On lease liability against right-of-use
assats

Bank Comrmission & Other Charges
75%
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e Non Mark-up / Interest Income:

Non-markup interest income is made of fee and commission, dividend income, gain on securities and
other income and these sources will account for 21%, 1%, 43%, and 35% of total non-markup income,
respectively,

In 2024, the total non-markup income was recorded at Rs. 5,455 million as compared to Rs. 2,428 million
in corresponding year 2023.

Non-Markup Interest Income

21%

Fee and commission
439
Dividend income
QOther income

B Gain on securities

= Provisions and NPL:

ZTBL made specific provisions of Rs. 16,481 million against advances include staff advances and general
provisions of Rs. 3,000 million in the year under review. Therefore, cumulative provision adds up fo Rs.
19,481 million including staff advances as compared to the cumulative provision of Rs, 14,475 millica
in 2023, Non- performing loans experienced a substantial decline of 7,601 million i.e. from Rs. 34,539
million to Rs. 26,939 million in 2024.

The asset quality indicators showed improvement during the year 2024 as the gross infection ratio
decreased to 21% (2023: 29%); total provision coverage is 72% during current financial year 2024 (2023:
42%} and specific provision coverage 61% in current year 2024 (2023: 33%).

Gross Advances, NPL, & Provisions
PKR ‘Mn

160,000
140,000
120,000 115256 107,623
100,000
80,000
60,000
40,000
20,000

140,185

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

® Gross Advances ®NPL = Provisions
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Asset Quality
80% 72%
70% 7%
60% | 519 51%
50% 43% 46% 46% 42%

35%
40% 31% 299%
30% 21%
20%
0% — -
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
= Coverage ® Infection

*  Operating expenses:

The operating expenses increased by 11% from Rs. 14,552 million (FY 2023) to Rs. 16,115 million (FY
2024) due to inflationary impact.

7 Faxes:

In FY 2024, a tax amount of Rs. 12,931 million was recorded, with a profit before 1axation of Rs. 25,892
million and a profit after taxation of Rs, 12,96} million.

®  Net profit/{ Loss):

In the year under review, ZTBL. reported a profit after taxation of Rs. 12,961 million as compared to
corresponding period (2023: Net Profit Rs. 10,984 million).

i &
Profit Before & After Taxation
Rupees in million
] ]
024 12,961 L
: 25,892
10,984
02 # 17,606
5,123
2022 7 ass
-1/735
202#- 1783
-2,467
-3,2#5 ZH
-17,594
-26,349 | '
-30,000 20,000 -10,000 0 10,000 20,000 30,000
W Profit gfter Taxation  ® Profit before Tax
. i)
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Financial Position Review 2024

=  Total assets:

65% of ZTBL's total assets are net investments, while 19% are advances. With rise in investment (net),
the Bank’s asset base expanded by 3% to Rs. 577,539 million in 2024 (2023: Rs. 562,376 million). Net
advances for the year 2024 were Rs. 109,121 million, increased by 3% from the previous year's total of
Rs. 105,508 million,

«  Total Assets
® Cash and balances with treasury
20 1% banks
- m Balances with other banks

0.5%

= Lendings ta financial institutions
B Jnvestments - net
» Advances - net

Operating Fixed Assets

Deferred tax assets

Total Assets
Rupees in million

| 1 1 i |
2024 — 577,539
2023 |*1 562376

2022 _ ‘ 1 491,092
2021 254,840

[ 1

2020 |, 210,636
| _

2019 | 199,899

0 100,000 200,000 300,000 400,000 500,000 600,000 700,000
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o Total Deposits:

Total deposits of the Bank have decreased by 1% to Rs. 56,622 million in 20624 (2023: Rs 57,169 million).

Total Deposits
70,000 Rupees in miilions

57,162 56,622
FGD,OOO 47,333 :

as,002  49:186 43,599
50,000 L :
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Capital Strength & Adequacy:

ZTBL is eager to keep up its solid capital basis in order to comply with regulatory requirements and preserve the
teust of its ceeditors, investors, and shareholders in the Bank’s ability to build its business sustainably. The Basel
framework and the SBP's set criteria and ratios are used to monitor the Bank’s capilal adequacy. The Bank's
Tier-1 capital increased in FY 2024 from PKR 66,785 million to PKR 74,684 million, mostly as a result of an
increase in un-appropriated profit. In FY 2024, total risk-weighted assets also rose by PKR 32,714 million. The
Bank’s total capital to RWA ratio in 2024 was 36.01% (compared to 37.69% in FY 2023), significantly higher
than the minimal threshold of 12.50% set by the central Bank.

Strong CET-1 capital ratios were again observed in 2024, with 34.10% (FY 2023: 35.85%) compared to the
necessary 6%. In 2024, the leverage ratio increased to 12.93% (from 11.87%) in the prior year,

ZTBL has sufficient capital (36.01% CAR) to cover the whole risk profile generated by its husiness and
operational activities, according to the most recent Internal Capital Adequacy and Assessment Process (ICAAP).
As of December 31, 2024, the audited CAR under the BASEL-III statement is 36.01%.

Corporate Social Responsibility:

Z1TBL is essential to the well-being of society since it shapes the economy and directly affects the wellbeing of
people, companies, communities, and agriculture. ZTBL has demonstrated its commitment to Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) through a number of initiatives; ZTBL contributed to Pakistan Hindu Council Karachi under
CSR on celebrating annual mass marriages program of 100 deserving couples. The Bank implemented effective
guidelines for ficld functionaries to enhance performance and made significant contributions to corporate social
responsibility (CSR), sponsering the Finclusive National Anthem for Rs. 250,000 to support financial inclusion
for Persons with Disabilities (PWDs) and donating Rs. 200,000 for solar UPS provision in Skardu.

Credif rating (2023)

VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (VIS) has reaffirmed entity rating of ZTBL at ‘AAA/A-1+ (Triple A/A-
One Plus). Qutlook on the assigned ratings is Stable.
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Kissan Support Services Limited (KSSL)

Kissan Support Services (Private) Limited (KSSL), established as a subsidiary of Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited
(ZTBLY), operates with an Authorized Capital of Rs 100 million, fully subscribed and paid. During the year 2024,
KSSL remained dedicated to providing support services to ZTBL., The company's board, under the leadership of
President ZTBL, efficiently managed its activities, holding regular mectings. The company invested significantly
in staff training programs. The company provided ZTBL with 3,297 outsourced clerical and non-clerical staff,
including 1,296 security personnel. Throughout the year, KSSL inducted 203 new employees and implemented
welfare initiatives such as allowing gratuity to contractual employees, revised medical policies to enhance
medical facilities for staff, and disbursement of bonus. Financially, KSSL achieved a profit afier taxation of Rs.
218.76 million during the year 2024, with earnings per share rising to Rs. 21.88, retlecting the company's strong
performance and dedication 1o excellence.

S.No. Particulars 2023 2024
1 Profit after taxation (Rs. in millions) 166.71 218.76
2. Earnings per share (Rs.) 16.67 21.38

Risk Management Framework and Policy:

ZTBL’s Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework continued to evolve, integrating risk management across
all levels of the organization to align with industry best practices and regulatory standards, particularly Basel
regulations. The Risk Management Group (RMG) played a pivotal role in strengthening the bank’s Credit, Market
& Liquidity, Operational, Information Security, and Shariah Non-Compliance Risk functions. The total portfolio
reached PKR 128,603 million, with performing loans have crossed the PKR 100 billion, and a decline in Non-
Performing Loans (NPLs) and charge-offs by PKR 7,601 million and PKR 4,701 million, respectively, reducing
the infection ratio to 21% from 29%. ZTBL. maintained a low-risk market strategy, with 99% of investments in
government securities and a portfolio duration below 1 year, though funding concentration remains a key
challenge. Operational risk, driven by human resource inefficiencies, procedural lapses, and weak customer
evaluations, was mitigated through effective risk mitigation strategies/tools. Additionally, ¢CIB Version-2 was
successtully implemented as per State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) regulations. The bank enhanced its cybersecurity
posture by conducting continuous security assessments, employee training, and 24/7 monitoring via jts Cyber
Security Operations Center (3OC). Moving forward, ZTBL’s strategic risk focus includes regulatory compliance,
digitalization of operational risk tools and tailored risk strategies for the agricultural sector, ensuring long-term
financial resilience and sustainable growth.

Throughout the year 2024, Risk Management Group (RMG) played a pivotal role in various functions, such as
introducing the ERM concept, active involvement in IFRS-9 implementation and reporting of Expected Credit
Loss Models (FCLM), and compliance with regulatory reporting and Basel requirements.

Additionally, ERM conducted a successful risk assessment, monitoring, and reporting of the bank's Market Risk
portfolio, reviewed Islamic Banking products and credit policies. Further to sirengthening bank’s Credit review
and Administration function, Borrowers wise cleansing exercise has been performed and credit review &
documentation controls have been developed such as transformation of manual redemption to automated
redemption, developiment of SAC/DAC checklists etc.

The internal control system at ZTBL is designed to ensure effective operations and regulatory compliance, with
responsibility resting on the Bank's management. This system, approved by the Board of Directors, provides
reasonable assurance of operational efficiency and compliance, although it has inherent limitations. The
establishment of a robust “three lines of defense” model has ensured comprehensive risk management by clearly
defining toles and responsibilitics across front office functions, Compliance, Risk Management, and [nternal
Audit. Key committees, including the Compliance Committee of Management, Internal Risk Management
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Committee, and others, oversee compliance and risk management, ensuring adherence to regulations. [nternal
Audit reports to the Board Audit Committes (BAC), while external auditors conduct annual assessments. Despite
challenges, the internal conirol system has proven cffective, with ongoing improvements and technological
integration to address evolving business needs.

AML/CEFT/CPF Compliance:

ZTBL's AML/CFT/CPF Compliance Departments have significantly enhanced regulatory and internal control
frameworks by implementing a broad suite of improvements. Between January 2022 and June 2024, a
comprehensive Intermal Risk Assessment (IRAR-2024) was condocted as per SBP directives, evalvating risks
across customers, products, channels, and geographies, while introducing a High Value Transactions regime and
upgrading the “Hawk Eye™ monitoring system to red flag suspicious activities in real time. Enhanced screcning
processes within IMIS now better identify proscribed affiliates, supported by mechanisms for account rejection
or closure with real-time alerts, and in this connection, 329 Politically Exposed Person accounts were reviewed
and categorized as high risk, prompting digitized enhanced due diligence for bigher-risk customers. Further
reinforcing these measures, a dedicated Account Monitoring Unil was established, nearly 70,000 investigations
and pertodic screenings were executed, and updated e-KYC and e-CRP systems were deployed alongside a Data
Acquisition Portal for regulatory reporting. Collaborating with KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., periodic testing of
contrels and a comprehensive 360-degree gap assessment led to refined policies and procedures. In order to save
the Bank’s cost, AML department recommended for closure of zero balance pon remunerative accounts. The
CCM approved for closure of accounts with zevo balances since 5 years, As a result, 41,296 accounts have been
closed in the first phase. Furthermore, 21 specialized training sessions were held for about 1,090 employees,
collectively underscoring ZTBL’s commitment to excellence, robust AML. controls, and enhanced customer
satisfaction. Moreover, Compliance department also collaborate with relevant stakeholders to ensure timely
submission of regulatory returns and other time-sensitive report to SBP and various agencies.

Appointment of Aunditors:

M/s Crowe Hussain Chaudhary & Company, Chartered Accountants have been appointed as statutory auditors
for a term of three years under PPRA Rules.

Process of Appointment and Nomination of Directors:

Banks {Nationalization) Act, 1974 states thai the Chairman, the President and other members of the Board
tepresenting the Federal Government’s direct and indirect shareholding shall be appointed by the Federal
Government in consultation with the State Bank, for a term of three years, on such terms and conditions as may
be fixed by the General Meeting of the Bank.

In accordance with the requirements of State-Owned Enterprises (Governance & Operations) Act, 2023 and State-
Owned Enterprise Ownership & Management Policy, Central Monitoring Unit (CMU)) has issued framework for
Board Appeintment process, Director induction and Board Nomination Commitiee (BNC) process. [t requires
that the Board will submit a recommendation to BNC which should cover Existing and desired knowledge, skills
and experience on the Board. Working papers prepared by the Ministry and shared with BNC members three days
in advance will contain approved procedure as per Act, a brief on SOEs performance and recommendations and
candidate CVS (at least three per vacant positions). The BNC will submit recommended and alternate candidates
to the Cabinet Committee on SOEs. Upon Cabinet Committee and Federal Cabinet approval, the line Minisiry
will notity appointments and SOE will publish these on its website.
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NAME OF

580. DIRECTOR

STATUS QUALIFICATION

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE

MEMBERSHIP
ON THE
BOARD OF
OTHER
COMPANIES

01

Mr.
Naeemuddin
Khan

- Bachelor of
Arts

-~  Pace
University,
U.8.A.

Chairman
Board

Qver forty years of
diversified International
Banking experience in
Marketing, Corporate Credit
and Finance, International
Finance, Special Assets
Management/Remedial
Management/ Restructuring
and Rescheduling of non-
performing portfolio and
revival of sick industrial
units. He served as :-

- President’/CEQ, The
Bank of Punjab

- Managing Director &
CEQ, Pak Libya Holding
Company (Pvt.) Ltd.

—  Member Banking,
Corporate & Industrial
Restructuring
Corporation, Finance
Division, GoP

-~ SEVP, United Bank
Limited

- He also served in
Emirates Internationai
Bank and ANZ
Grindlays Bank PLC

02

Mr.Tahir
Yaqoob
Bhatti

- MBA.
- M.Com

President/CEQ | = DPCMA
- DAIBP

Over thirty-gight years
versatile and enriched
financial sector experience
with large and mid-tier
Financial institutions in
Operations Management,
Corporate, Retail and
Commercial, Agriculture
Financing, Consumer
financing efc. He worked as:

President/CEO, Punjab
Provincial Cooperative
Bank Limited
- SEVP/Group Head,

Faysat Bank Limited
-  SEVP/Business Head, IS
Bank '
- Group Chief/Group
Head, Commercial &
Retail Banking Group,
Allied Bank Limited
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subsidiary
of ZTBL)
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= Execufive Vice
President/Country Head,
SAM/Regional General
Manager, Askari Bank
Limited

~  Senior Vice President &
Chief Manager, Saundi
Pak Commercial Bank
Limited/Platinum
Commercial Bank
Limited/Gulf
Commercial Bank
Limited

— He also served in
National Bank of
Pakistan

03

Mr. Ahmed
Taimoor
Nasir

Director

- M.Se.
(Computer
Science)

-~ M.Se.
(Accounting
& Finance)
B.Sc. (Hons.)

Over thirty years of versatile

experience in Finance,

Budgeting, Accounts

Administration/Management,

HEM/Personnel

Management, Moniloring &

MIS including: -

— Joint Secretary, Finance
Division, GoP (Present)

- Joint Secretary, Power
Division, Ministry of
Energy, GoP

- Director General
{National Socio-
Economics Registry),
Benazir Income Support
Program

- Depuly Military
Accountant General,
Office of the Military
Accountant General

- Director General
(HRM/Budget &
Admin)), Office of the
Auditor General of
Pakistan

- Director Audit (Works),
DG Audit Works,
Federal

- Dy. General Manager
(Finance), Pakistan
Power Park Management
Company Lid., Minigtry
of Water & Power, GoP

g Mr.

Sahibzada
Rafat Racof
Al

Drirector

M.B.A.

More than thirty-tive years
of financial sector experience
in International & local
Banks along with the
exposure of working in

- Member
Board,
National

‘ Insurance
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International Market ‘ Corporation

covering the areas from Limited

business generation to i Member

remedial management. He | Board,

served at various positions . PLAC

including: -

- Group Head, SAMD, the ‘
Bank of Punjab

- Advisor/Group Head -
Assel Recovery Group,
National Bank of
Pakistan

- Director, National
Accountability Bureau
Punjab/Sindh

- (eneral Manager,
Banking Division,
Corporate & Industrial
Restructuring
Corporation

- Chief, Special Assets
Management Group
{Norih), United Bank
Limited

- He also served in Citi
Bank and BCCI

05 She has more than twenty

years of experience of
toaching at University level.
| - Professor, Business
| Administration, Lahore
| School of Economics
Research Hogaeht
Feltowship ( g ) . .
- PAD —~  Advisor, Pakistan Field
(Eccfnomics) ?&ﬁﬂ; Program N
h:[&P:;I:aE_EZ‘; - Project Economist,
. SAMAVerte (Present)
M.8e. (Eco.) - Finance Advisor,
Government of Ras Al
Khaimah, Department of
Finance, UAE
- Advisor, Government of
Punjab

Dr. Ayesha

Wagar Director

f

06 He has over forty years of
experience in agriculture and
. education sectors, In addition
- Pl‘ilz.ogﬁmmal to extending consultancy
Dr. Talat services 1o World Bank,
Naseer Director Sc‘lunccs) governments/institutions, he -
Pasha = M.Se. (Hons.) | g co-author of foreign and
Nutrition local research papers. He
SErves as: - |
- Director General, Punjab |
Agriculture Food & |

— A =
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Drug Authority, Govt. of
Punjab (Present)

- Vice Chancellor,
University of Education,
Lahore
Vice Chancellor,
University of Veterinary
and Animal Sciences,
Lahore

- Professor, University of
Veterinary and Animal

Sciences

Details of Membership on the Board(s) Iof other Companies
Disclosure on Board of Directors

Date of St.a e

Sr. Joining/ e
Name of Director Leavine the (Independent,
No £ Non-Executive,

ST Executive)*

1 | Mr. Naeemuddin | 24.08.2023 | Chairman Boafdf_; -

Khan
Independent

Director

2 | Mr. Tahir Yaqoob

31.08.2023 | President/CEO/ | -
Bhatti I

| Executive
| Director

05052023 | Ex-Officio | -
Diirector

3 | Mr. Ahmed
Taimoor Nasir

11102024 | Independent | -
Director

4 | M, Sahibzada
Rafat Raoof Ali

Member of Board

Committees

Human
Resource
Coinmitlee

Risk
Management
Commitlee
Procurement
Committee
Information
Technology
Committee

Audit
Commitiee
Human
Resource
Committee
Risk
Management
Committee
Information
Technology
Committ_e_e
Audit
Committee
Human
Resource
Committee
Risk
Management
Committee
Procurement
Commitlee
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Number of other Board
memberships along with
the name of company(ies)

2
Chairman Board, Kissan
Support Services (Pvt.)
Limited (A wholly
owned subsidiary of
ZTBL)
Member Board,
PASSCO
(On behalf of ZTBL)

2

. Member Board, National

Insurance
Limited

Corporation

. Member Board, P1A.C.
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5 | Dr. Ayesha | 11.10.2024 | Independent - Aundit
WAQAR Director Committee
-  Human
Resource
Committee
~ Risk
Management
Committee
- Information
Technology
_ | | Committee
6 | Dr. Talat Naseer | 11.10.2024 | Independent | =  Procurement
Pasha Director Committee
— Information
Technology
| | Commitee |
7 | Mr. Zaigham | 10.03.2021/ | Independent | = Audit -

Mah d Rizvi i . .
ahmood Rizvi 09.03.2024 Director ;:::mlttee
. 1

Management
Committee

~  Nomination
Committee

- Business
Development &
Review
Committee

8 | Syed Javed | 10.03.2021/ | Independent | = Audit 1
Director Commiitee 1. Chairman Board,
| - Human Pakistan Revenue
Resource Automation Limited

09.03.2024

Committee
—  Procurement
Committee
-~ Nomination
Commiitee
- Committee on
Information
Technology
- SAM-
' NPLs/Litigation
| | Committee |
9 | Mr. Haaris | 10.03.2021/ | Non-Executive | - Human -
Mahmood Director ! Resource
Chaudhary 09.03.2024 Committee

- Procurement
Committee

- Information
Technology
Committee on
Information
Technology
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- SAM-
NPLs/Litigation
. | Committee
*As defined in prudential regulations for Corporate and Commercial bimking}

Composition & Membership of Board Committees

1. BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

S. No, NAME OF DIRECTOR STATUS
01 Mr. Sahibzada Rafat Raoof Ali Chairman
02 Mr. Ahmed Taimoor Nasir Member
03 I>r. Ayesha Waqar Member
'r EVP/Chief Internal Auditor Secretary |
! S
2. BOARD HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE
8. No. NAME OF DIRECTOR STATUS
01 Mr. Nacemuddin Khan Chairman
02 Mr. Sahibzada Rafat Raoof Ali Member
03 Mr. Ahmed Taimoor Nasir Member
04 Dr. Ayesha Waqgar Member
Group Head, Human Resource Secretary
3. BOARD RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
S. No. NAME OF DIRECTOR STATUS ]
01 Mr. Sahibzada Rafat Raoof Ali Chairman
02 Mr. Ahmed Taimoor Nasir Member
03 Dr. Ayesha Waqar Member
04 Mr. Tahir Yaqoob Bhatti Member
Chief Rigk Officer Secretary )
=
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4. BOARD PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE

5. No. NAME OF DIRECTOR STATUS

01 Dr. Talat Naseer Pasha Chairman

) Mr. Sahibzad Rafat Raoof Al Member
03 Mr. Tahir Yagoob Bhatti Member
EVP/Head, General Services Division Secretary

5. BOARD INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE

8. No. NAME OF DIRECTOR STATUS
01 Mr. Ahmed Taimoor Nasir Chairman
02 Dr. Ayesha Wagar ; Member
03 Dr. Talat Nascer Pasha Member
4 Mr. Tahir Yaqoob Bhati T Momber
Chief Information Officer Secretary

|

Number of Board & Committee Meetings Held and Attendance by the Members during the Year 2024

Four (04) meetings of the Board were held during the year 2024. Attendance of the members remained as under:

| S.No. | Name of Member Designation No. of meetings attended
" 0L | Mr. Nacemuddin Khan Chairman . 04 -
02 Mr., Tahir Yaqoob Bhatti President/CEQ/ 04
l Director
03 | Mr. Ahmed Taimoor Nasir Director 7
04 | Mr. Sahibzada Rafat Raoof Ali * Director | 02
03 Dr. Ayesha Waqgar * Director b 02
06 | Dr. Talat Naseer Pasha * Director 02
07 | Mr. Zaigham Mahmood Rizvi * Director 02
08 Syed Javed * Director 02
09 | Mr. Haaris Mahmood Chaudhary * Director ® o

Two meetings held during their tenure.
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Directors' Participation in Board and Committee meetings

Nunther Number of Committee nveetings stiended
of Board
meetings “pouig | Board | Board Risk | Board Board | Board Board SAM-
attended |4y Human Manageme | Procuremens | Nemination | Business Information | NPLs/
Committee | Resource nt | Committee X it Develog Technology Litigati
& | Name of Director | Commtittee | Committee nt &Review | Comunittee Committee
Conunitiee
N
<
' |
1] M. 04/04 = 01/02 | - | = == - - 01/01
Naeemuddin
Khan 3 | e— L ! 3 |
2| Mr. Tahir | 04/04 | . - ‘l 01/01- - | - 01/01 o1/ 01/0
Y axjo0b Bhatti [ . _ | . | ) _
3§ M Abmed | 0404 | 02/02 02/02 ¢1/01 - - - t1/01 -

Taimoor Nasir _ _ | | | |
4| Mr, Sahibzada | 02/02 oto1 | = - E - - - ' -
Rafat Raoof Ali | 1 l
5 Dr Ayesha | 02/02 01/01 - ‘ '
Wagar | _ i | |
6 | Dr. Talat Naseer | 02/02 - - ! - i_ - - - - ' - -
Pasha | | |
7| Mr. Zaigham | 0202 a41/01 5 |
Mahmaood Rizvi ! | ‘ ] . | =1 _
8 | Syed Javed 02/02 01401 0202 | - : - :_ 5 - 0101 E
M. Haaris = 02/02 - | o2 ‘ 5 l - | - « 01/01 01701
|

Mahmood
Chaudhary

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

The Directors are pleased to give the following statements in respect of compliance with the Corporate and
Financial Reporting Framework.

i.  The Bank’s financial statements prepared by the management of the Bank present fairly its state of
affairs, the resulis of ils operations, changes in equity, and cash flows.

ii.  Proper books of accounts of the Bank have been maintained.

iti.  Accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of these financial statements
except as stated in the notes to the financial statements and accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment.

iv.  International Accounting Standards, as applicable to Banking companies in Pakistan, have been
followed in preparation of these financial statements.

v.  The current system of internal control is under constant review by the Internaf Control over Financial
Reporting Department and Ilnternal Audit Department. Based upon the results through ongoing
testing of financial reporting controls and internal audit carried out during the year, the management
considers that the Bank’s existing internal controls system is adequate and has been effectively
implemented and monitored. Board endorses the statement of Internal Control attached to the
Financial Staterment for the year 2024.

vi.  Based on the results of December 31, 2024 the Board of Directors is satisfied with the Bank’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

vil.  There have been no material departures from the best practices of Corporate Governance as detailed
in the Listing Regulation No.35 of the Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited.
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viii.  Key operating data and financial data of last six years in summarized form, are included in (his

Annual Report.

There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which arc outstanding
as of December 31, 2024 excep! as disclosed in these financial statements.

Disclosares Relating to Remuneration Policy

i.

it

iv,

vi.
vil.

vill.

The Remuneration Policy at ZTBL aims to align compensation practices with international best
principles and standards, considering the expanding risk portfolio and direct risk-taking behavior.
The policy seeks to attract, engage, and retain high-performing employees in a competitive market,
offering a competitive and market-aligned remuneration package.

1t emphasizes fixed salaries as a significant component, encouraging employees 1o create sustainable
results for both customers and the Bank,

The policy also focuses on effoctive risk management aligned with the Bank’s strategy, values, and
long-term goals.

It ensures that the total bonus pool does not undermine the Bank’s capital base and establishes a
stringent governance structure Tor goal-setting and communication.

Remuneration components include fixed remuneration, performance-based remuneraiion (bonus),
pension schemes, other benefits in kind, and severance paymenis where applicable.

The Board of Directors approves separate salary packages for each category, periodically reviewed
with actuarial valuation.

The Bank identifies Material Risk Takers (MR1s) for products and processes with significant risks,
designating appropriate authorities.

The policy emphasizes that profit maximization alone is not the sole benchmark for determining
salaries and bonuses; it also considers the quantum of risk involved in generating profit.

Responsibility levels of the key executives in major decisions

1.

The Board of Directors at the Bank reviews and assesses various financial and operational aspects,
including;

» Annual business plans

» Cash flow projections

s Forecasts

* Long-term plans

*  Budgets encompassing capital, manpower, and expenditures
s Variance analysis

The Board examines internal and commercial audit reports, observations from SBP Inspection Teams,
and management letters from external auditors. Scrutinizing includes:

¢ Status and implications of legal proceedings involving the Bank
*  Material payments of government dues
¢ Significant accidents and dangerous occurrences

Approval of Annual, quarterly or other periodical accounts for circulation among board members.

Reports on governance, risk, and compliance issues, as well as periodic reviews of Human Resource
Policics, are included in the assessment.

Salary structures adhere to: Pay scales, Allowances, Fringe benefits for employees under SSR, 1961,
Monetized salaries are provided to those governed under SR-2005.

Approval of Performance bonuses, Retirement/severance benefits, Death benefits
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7. Bonus and award criteria for CEQ, senior executives, and Material Risk Takers (MRTs) are based on
factors such as;

+  Profit before tax

» Risk-adjusted return assessment

» Cost

+ Customer satisfaction

¢ Compliance with internal procedures
* Expected loss

8. The Bank has established a separate monetized salary structure for Treasury cadre employees posted in
the Treasury Divigion, acknowledging their role in performing Risk Control Functions as MRTs.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The shareholders in General Mceting has approved Board Remuneration Policy in line with regulatory
requirements. Further, Fee and Allowances for the Directors have also been revised in December 2023. At present,
the shareholders approved the following remuneration/fees and other benefits for the members while attending
the meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees.

1. Mescting of the BoD/shareholders Rs. 200,000/ per meeting
2, Meeting of Board Commiltees Rs. 150,000/~ per meeting
3 Traveling Rs. 50/km if travelled by own car

or Return Air Ticket {Business Class)

4, 5 Star Hotel accommodation At actual

Future Outlook:

Looking ahead to 2025, ZTBL will concentrate on two strategic priotities to ensure sustainable growth and
financial resilience: optimizing liability structures and enhancing deposit mobilization efforts. These initiatives
will serve as the cornerstone for strengthening the Bank’s financial position and supporting its long-term
objectives. While ZTBL remains deeply committed to its agricultural mandate, it will also {ocus on building a
more dynamic and inclusive financial environment, driven by innovation, trust, and a cusiomer-centric approach.

A key priority for ZTBL will be to further enhance its stable deposit base. With recent advancements in digital
banking services and products, ZTBL is well-positioned to attract sustainable deposits, particularty from
underserved rural communities. This will not only reinforce the Bank’s financial position but will also enable
ZTBL to offer more tailored services that cater to the diverse needs of its customers.

In the year ahead, ZTBL will focus on deepening relationships with existing customers while actively reaching
out to new segments. Understanding and addressing the financial needs and aspirations of rural and urban
communities will be erucial in driving growth. ZTBL’s innovative liability products will help tap into new
oppottunities and expand its customer base.

ZTBL's T&DD division aims to train 3,575 employees by 2025, expand its NFLP and AFLP initiatives, and
upgrade infrastructure to enhance training delivery. The division is dedicated to integrating modern leaming
approaches, such as e-learning and hybrid sessions, in alignment with SBP's guidelines. Morcover, as a part of
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kitchen gardening activity, seed kits and seedlings of both winter and summer vegetables were prepared for
onward dissemination to promote home grown, healthy and hygienic vegetables production and consumption.

ZTBL plans to launch several key IT initiatives, including the RAAST P2P platform in Q1, expansion of USSD
services to roach more customers, and the installation of 50 new ATMs. The bank is also progressing with card
personalization, set for implementation by Q1 2025, and network passive cabling across branches. A Remote
Desktop Application will be introduced, and Agri-Fintech services are being developed, incorporating innovative
solutions like weather advisory, crop monitoring, GIS integration, and mobile radio services. In line with
commitment to innovation and customer-centric solutions, ZTBL is undertaking significant enhancements to its
digital infrastructure. The Bank plans to upgrade its mobile application by integrating third-party platforms such
as Bookme for seamless ticket booking services and Oladoc for telemedicine facilities, thereby expanding the
range of value-added services offered to our customers.

On the software development front, Z1BL is prioritizing key initiatives to strengthen operational efficiency and
risk management. These include enhancements to the Centralized Deposit Management System (CDMS) for
improved loan reporting, the implementation of a robust transaction and account rejection mechanism Lo mitigate
risks, and the integration of APIs for Unison CRM to streamline customer relationship management, Additionally,
the Bank is progressing with the migration of its conventional and Jslamic banking platforms to WebLogic,
ensuring a more secure and scalable technological foundation. These initiatives underscore ZTBL’s dedication to
leveraging cutting-edge technology to deliver superior banking experiences and operational excellence.

With the collective dedication of Team ZTBL, there is strong confidence that the Bank will exceed its targets,
particularly in asset growth and deposit mobilization. By remaining committed to excellence, ZTBL will continue
to strengthen ifs role as a pillar of financial stability and countribute significantly to the nation’s economic
development. Together, ZTBL will create a brighter future for all stakehalders.

This comprehensive report represents the key achievements, financial performance, and strategic initiatives of
Zarai Taraqgiati Bank Limited for the year 2024, reflecting its commitment to sustainable growth and community
development,

Value of Investments in Employees' Benefits Fund:

The Bank operates 10 Funds for its Employees and their value of investments are;

Year ended as on 31.12,2024
S.R# | Name Of Fund Rs. Million

01 | Employces Benefit Fund 162.82
02 | Benevolent Fund (Officers) 840.38
03 | Benevolent Fund (Staff) 819.51
04 | Pension Fund 12,343.32
05 | Gratvity Fund -
06 | Emplovees Provident Fund 182,98
07 | General Provident Fund (QOfficers) 6,044.00
08 | General Provident Fund (Staff) 933.93
09 | Contributory Provident Fund 87557
10 | Gratuity Fund (under SR-2005) 2,958.86

Total 25,161.37
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Profit & Loss Apprepriation - 2024 (Rupees in '000)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Profit Before Tax 25,891,939
Taxation:

Current . 9,955,262
Deferred 2,975,975
Profit After Tax 12,960,702
Un-appropriated (loss) brought forward ) 10,343,276
Impact of adoption of IFRS 9 - net of tax (5,498,563)
Profit/(Loss) available for appropriation 17,805,415
Other comprehensive income - net of tax 128,222
Transferred to statutory reserve (2,592,140)
Un-appropriated profit as on Dec 31, 2024. o 15,341,497 |

SHARFE HOLDING (As on 31.12.2024)
NUMBER.OF

SR. NO. | NAME OF SHARE HOLDER
|

SHARES

A. ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

01 | Gevernment of Pakistan 1,251,189,067
02 State Bank 0% Pakistan 4,015,599,174
03 Government of Punjab 292,340
04 Govemment of Sindh 125,545

- 05 Governmeni of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa 7 1,740_
06 Government of Baluchistan 37,875
07 Govemment_of Erstwhile East Pakistan * 327,500

B Total 5,267,843,241

B. PREFERRED SHARE CAPITAL *#

|
| 0l State Bank of Pakistan
- —

3,446,153,632

* Share certificates not yet issued.

#H
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Corporate Information (As on 31.12.2024)

Name: Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited

Head Office: Islamabad

Legal Status: A Public Limited Company (By shares)

Location of Assets: In Head Oftice and in Zonal and Branch offices located at various

positions across the country

Authorized Capital: Rs. 125,000,000,000/- divided into 7,000,000,000 Ordinary shares of
Rs.10/- each and 5,500,000,000 Preference shares of Rs.10/- each
Paid-up capital: Ordinary Share Capital Rs. 52,678,432,410/-
Board of Directors: Mr. Naeemuddin Khan Chairman
Mr. Tahir Yagoob Bhatti President/CEO

Mr. Sahibzada Rafat Raoof Ali Director

Mr. Ahmed Taimoor Nasir Director

Dr. Ayesha Waqar Director
Dr. Talat Naseer Pasha Director
Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Muhammad Arif
Company Secretary: Mr. Tariq Mahmood Talib

Appreciation & Acknowledgement

Ultimately, the Directors record their profound gratitude for the important role that each and every one of our
workers played through their passion, diligence, and hard work, as well as for the faith that the farming community
and farmers placed in us. We also thank State Bank of Pakistan, as well as other regulators, shareholders, partners,
and clients in general, for their assistance. We want to have your ongeing support as we work 1o expand
agticulture's access to creative, reasonably priced financing.

2

/ Naeemuddin Khan
President / CEQ “Chairman, Board
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Report of Shariah Board
(For the Year 2024)

In the name of Allah, the Beneficent, the Merciful

By the Grace of Almighty Allah, the year under review is the 7™ year of operations of Islamic
Banking Division of Zarai Taraqiati Bank Ltd. The scope of this report is to cover the affairs
of the bank from Shariah perspective as required under the Shariah Governance Framework of
State Bank of Pakistan. The requirements of the report are as under;

“The SB (Shariah Board) shall, based on the findings and reports of internal Shariah audit,
external Shariah audit and Shariah compliance review, prepare a report on the IBI’s Shariah
compliance environment and conditions. Further, the report shall also be placed before the
BOD meeting for discussion and shall be published in English with Urdu translation in the
IBI'’s annual report”

State Bank of Pakistan has accorded in-principle approval for Islamic banking in the month of
July 2017. After fulfillment of all required conditions, SBP granted license and permission for
the commencement of the business of Islamic Banking and thereafter Islamic Banking Division
started its operations in the year 2018.

Review and Approval of New Products & Policies/Manuals/Documents/Agreements:
Documents including Policies/Manuals/Agreements or amendments therein submitted by
Islamic Banking Division were reviewed and Shariah approvals were granted. The following
Policies/Manuals/Products/Documents/Agreements were reviewed and approved by Shariah
Board,

Policies, Manuals:

Internal Shariah Audit Manual (Amendments)

Profit & Loss and Pool Management Framework Policy (Revised Version)
Addition of Pre-mature encashment procedure in IB Liability Manual
Changes / Additions in IB P&L Distribution and Pool Management policy
ZTBL Operation Manual

ZTBL Conversion Manual

IB Windows Policy (Revised)

ZTBL PWD Policy

Manuals/Policies/Documents of Compliance Division

PN WD~

Products of ZTBL — Islamic Banking:
1. Shariah Process Flow of financing transactions under Zarai Islamic Khushhali
Finance product
Zarai Islamic Digital Finance.
Zarai Islamic Khwateen Rozgar Scheme for Women Empowerment
Liability Product “Zarai Islamic Hajj/ Umrah Account
Process Flow of Sale & DM Back for Swapping & Conversion
Zarai Islamic Agri. Tourist Outlet/Orchard Financing
Liability Product Manual (Revised)
Bakht Islamic Current and Saving Accounts for women
. ZTBL Islamic Junior Account for minors
10. ZTBL Islamic Senior Citizen Account for Senior citizens above the age of 60
11. ZTBL Islamic Pension Current Account
12. ZTBL Islamic Pension Saving Account

L XNAU AW
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Agreements & Documents:
1. Format of Internal Shariah Audit Report
2. Checklists of Internal Shariah Audit
3. Checklists for Internal Shariah Compliance Review of IB Branch Operations, IB

Financing and IB Treasury Operations.

Internal Shariah Audit Plan for the year 2024

Half Yearly Report of Head SCD to SB (Jul-Dec 2023)

Six Monthly Review Report on training (Jul-Dec 2023)

Half Yearly Status Report of Unresolved Issues for the Period ended June 30, 2024

Periodic Status Report of Compliance of Audit Observations

Opinion / Guidance regarding Proportional Payment of Zonal Office Expenses by

IBBs.

10. Master Musharakah Placement Agreement to be executed with Meezan AMC.

11. Bringing down tangible tradable assets requirements in pools from minimum 20%
to 10% for the month of Feb 2024.

12. Banker Accounts of IBBs in Conventional banks

13. Shariah Approval of the Late Disbursement of Profit in to Customers ACs.

14. Formats of Master Musharakah Acceptance Agreement (BAFL Islamic).

15. Exemption Regarding Insurance of the financing assets of Islamic Loader Rickshaw
Financing.

16. External Shariah Audit Report 2023.

17. Report to SB on Charity Distribution 2024.

18. List of Charitable Institutions/Organizations Recommended by IBD Management.

19. Contents for Social Media.

20. Adoption of Uniform No. of Year Days for Pool Calculations.

21. Schedule of Charges of Islamic Banking (01.07.2024 to 31.12.2024)

22. Shariah Approval (Post Facto) of the late disbursement of profit in customer’s
accounts in the month of February 2024.

23. Half Yearly Report of Head SCD to SB (Jan-June 2024)

24. Six Monthly Review Report on training for the period ended June 30, 2024

25. Half Yearly Status Report of Unresolved Issues for the Period ended June 30,2024

26. Periodic Status Report of Compliance of Audit Observations

27. Conversion Plan - 2025

28. Revised Internal Shariah Compliance Review Plan-2024

29. ZTBL IBD Negative List of Prohibited Business Activities

30. Financing against Alienability Certificate in GB Region

31. Transaction Structure of GOP Sukuk.

32. Shariah Board's Fatwa regarding Tobacco (Amendments in Negative List)

33. Addition of Pre-mature encashment procedure in IB Liability Product Manual

34. Schedule of Charges of Islamic Banking (01.01.2025 to 30.06.2025)

35. Formats of Musharakah Acceptance & Placement Agreements (Secured) with MCB

Shariah Board Meetings

The Shariah Board convened meetings four times during the year as per regulatory requirement
along with one meeting with Board of Directors. Further, Shariah Board attended various
online meetings with IBD team for discussion and better understanding of proposed financing
product documents. Apart from these meetings, Shariah Board continuously monitored and
guided IBD on matters related to Shariah.
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Shariah Compliance and Shariah Audit

Shariah compliance has been the strength of ZTBL-Islamic Banking. Shariah compliance
mechanism operates at different levels ranging from approval of the products by the SB,
approval of specific process flows, random transaction reviews etc. Shariah Compliance
Department (SCD) and Shariah Audit Unit perform their functions under the guidance of
Shariah Board. SCD conducted Shariah Compliance / Control Review, under the supervision
of RSBM, of the Islamic Banking branches and relevant departments of IBD. Shariah Audit
Unit also conducted Shariah audit of the Islamic Banking branches. Furthermore, the Profit
Distribution and Pool Management were reviewed regularly by SCD on monthly basis before
each disbursement along with quarterly Internal Shariah Audit. All the reports were submitted
to Shariah Board as required under SGF of SBP for obtaining suggestions/corrective actions.

SCD has also reviewed the submitted policies, products, documents/agreements and proposed
some amendments and corrections that were approved by Shariah Board. The SCD has ensured
the compliance and implementation of the Shariah Board rulings.

Training and Capacity Building

Keeping in view the transformation / conversion of the whole bank in to Islamic banking, for
capacity building of the staff, awareness sessions have been conducted along with regular
required trainings. An awareness session for the executives (SVPs & above, all GMs, and
RBHSs) was conducted by Chairman Shariah Board as on August 14, 2024 that was also
attended by the key executives included CEO/President of the bank. Further, several weekly
awareness sessions (Physical as well as Online) conducted by SB members and other senior
staff members of IBD, followed by tests / quizzes are also being organized. Moreover, in-house
classroom training sessions are being conducted as a regular feature of ongoing training
programs for all staff of the bank.

SCD’s staff visited Islamic Banking Branches for assessment of understanding of staff and
their interaction with customers. It was noted that most of the branches staff’s knowledge
regarding Islamic banking and Shariah compliance was satisfactory. Further, the interaction of
staff with customers to gauge customer’s satisfaction was also observed satisfactory.

Conclusion

While the Board of Directors and Executive Management are solely responsible to ensure that
the operations of ZTBL-Islamic Banking are conducted in a manner that complies with Shariah
principles at all times, Shariah Board is required to submit a report on the overall Shariah
compliance environment of ZTBL-Islamic Banking. To establish our opinion as expressed in
this report, the Shariah Audit Unit and Shariah Compliance Department carried out Shariah
Audit / Compliance Reviews, of the Islamic Banking Branches and relevant departments of
IBD. All the reports of the Internal Shariah Audit and Internal Shariah Compliance Review
were checked / reviewed.

Based on above and to the best of our knowledge, we are of the view that in the year 2024:

1. The ZTBL-Islamic banking has complied with Shariah rules and principles in the light
of Shariah opinions (decisions), rulings and guidelines issued by the Shariah Board.

ii.  The ZTBL-Islamic banking has complied with directives, regulations, instructions and
guidelines related to Shariah compliance issued by SBP in accordance with the rulings
of SBP’s Shariah Advisory Committee.

iii.  ZTBL-Islamic banking has a comprehensive mechanism in place to ensure Shariah
compliance in its overall operations. The mechanism comprising of Shariah
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Compliance Department, independent Internal Shariah Audit Unit, full time RSBM in
the bank and trainings for Islamic Banking staff in line with Shariah Governance
Framework of SBP are in place.

iv.  ZTBL-Islamic banking has a well-defined system in the shape of Shariah Compliance
Review and Internal Shariah Audit in place sound enough to ensure that any earnings
realized from sources or by means prohibited by the Shariah shall be credited to charity
account that will be properly utilized.

v.  ZTBL-Islamic banking has complied with the SBP instructions on profit and loss
distribution and pool management.

vi.  The level of awareness, capacity and sensitization of the staff, and the management for
Shariah Compliance remained acceptable. It is encouraging to note that the Bank’s
Training & Development Division on our advice carried out Islamic Banking training
for the employees posted in Islamic Banking branches.

vii.  The Shariah Board has been provided adequate resources enabling it to discharge its
duties effectively.

Recommendations:

i.  Itis recommended to expedite the conversion process to transform the whole bank into
Riba Free/Islamic Bank to achieve the guidelines of Federal Shariat Court regarding
Riba free economy.

ii. It is recommended to hire Shariah Scholars in Shariah Compliance Department (SCD)
to strengthen overall Shariah Compliance of the bank and fulfill regulatory
requirements. Further, hiring of Shariah Scholar is also recommended in Internal
Shariah Audit Unit and Product Development Department.

In the end; we pray to Allah Almighty to grant us success in both worlds and help us at every
step, keep us away from every hindrance and difficulty, and give financial success to ZTBL-

IBD.
. p
\r~ /
Mufti Fawad Ali Mufti Uzair Ashraf Usmani Mufti Wasie Fasih
RSBM Member Shariah Board Chairman Shariah Board

Date of Report: 10/01/2025
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

In line with its mandate, the Bank made significant achievements and carried out various initiatives/steps in the
year 2024. Few of them are given below:

1. FARMER ENGAGEMENT THROUGH ZTBL ZARAI BAITHAKS

Zarai Baithak, a pioneering initiative of ZTBL, fosters a cooperative environment among farmers offering
insights into modern agricultural machinery and techniques. During the year 2024, more than 100 Zarai Baithaks
have been organized nationwide. This platform provided agri., advisory services, on-the-spot solutions to
farmers' concerns and disseminated information about bank’s products and services.

ZTBL Zarai Baz:thak on the Dairy Value Chain held at UVAS Ravi Campus, Pattoki.
2. EXPANDING OUTREACH THROUGH ZTBL MOBILE VAN SERVICE

During the period under review, two Mobile Vans of ZTBL have covered more than 100 locations across the
country providing financial and agricultural advisory services at doorstep of farmers, ensuring the financial
inclusion and enhancing accessibility to rural habitat.

-htﬁ:‘-] et

3. STRATEGIC COLLABORATIONS THROUGH MOUS WITH ACADEMIA,
RESEARCH INSTITUTES & OTHER ORGANIZATIONS

During the year 2024, the Bank has signed Memorandum of Understanding with following organizations to
promote the development of latest agricultural advancements in the country;

* University of Veterinary and Animal Sciences (UVAS), Lahore to promote the livestock development.

* Land Information Management System (LIMS), an affiliate of Green Pakistan Initiatives, for
digitization of agricultural services to farmers regarding up-to-date satellite-based crop, soil and weather
information of their respective lands.

« Fatima Fertilizers, to provide high-quality fertilizers at fair prices and disseminating knowledge to
farmers for increased production.

*  Wateen, for establishing state of the art Security Operations Center (SOC) aimed at safeguarding critical
digital infrastructure and protecting data of over half a million ZTBL’s customers.
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MoU signing ceremony between Zarai Taraqiati Bank Ltd. (ZTBL) and University of
Veterinary and Animal Sciences (UVAS) Lahore.

MOU signing ceremony between ZTBL and Land Information Management System
(LIMS).
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Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited (ZTBL) and Fatima Fertilizers entered into a strategic partnership by
signing a Memorandum of Understanding.

ZTBL launched state-of-the-art Cyber Security Operations Center in collaboration with Wateen.
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ZTBL and PTCL Group (PTCL & Ufone 4G) signed an agreement for Managed WAN and All-In-One
Desktop project for ZTBL nationwide site.

Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited (ZTBL) hosting a high-level delegation from the Land Information Management System
(LIMS) led by Major General (R) Muhammad Ayub Ahsan Bhatti, HI(M) Director General LIMS.
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A high-level delegation from Pakistan Britain Business Council (PBBC) holding meeting with the President/-
CEO ZTBL at ZTBL, Head Office, Islamabad. The delegation included Mr. John Tucknott CMG MBE -
Chairman of the Pakistan Britain Business Council, Mr. Rashid Igbal - Chief Executive/Trade Champion of
the Pakistan Britain Business Council and other officials.

Governor Gilgit Baltistan Syed Mehdi Shah called on President/CEO ZTBL Mr. Tahir Yaqoob Bhatti. Issues
pertaining to uplifting livelihoods of people through boosting agriculture in the region were discussed.
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A high-level delegation from the Republic of Belarus called on Mr. Tahir Yaqoob Bhatti, President/CEO ZTBL
at ZTBL, Head Office, Islamabad. The delegation included Sergei Stolyarchuk, Chairman of the Bank of
Development of Belarus and Vadim Shagoiko, Deputy Minister of Agriculture and Food of Belarus.

Major General Shahid Nazir, HI(M) Director General Strategic Projects called on President/CEO Zarai Taraqiati
Bank Ltd (ZTBL) Mr. Tahir Yagoob Bhatti at Islamabad. The President/CEO ZTBL and DG Strategic Projects
pledged to work in close association for the betterment and uplift of agriculture sector of the country.
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Celebrating Digital Transformation powered by Oracle - ZTBL is the first public sector
Bank to adopt PR/DR workloads on Oracle ExaCC technology.

President/CEO ZTBL Mr. Tahir Yaqoob Bhatti inaugurates Library at ZTBL Staff College. The library is home to
more than 8100 paper books and over 40,000 digital books.
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President/CEO ZTBL Visiting Regions to Appreciate the Top Performers of 2024.
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4. AWARDS AND ACCOLADES
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5. AGRICULTURAL LOAN DISBURSEMENTS

In line with its objective to provide sustainable rural finance and services, particularly targeting small farmers and
low-income households, ZTBL disbursed loans totaling Rs. 72,023 million to 118,789 borrowers during the year 2024.
The Bank’s credit disbursement is divided into two main categories: Production Loans and Development Loans.
Production Loans:

These loans are provided for farm inputs such as seeds, fertilizer, pesticides, and working capital to enhance dairy,
livestock, poultry, and fisheries activities. During 2024, the Bank disbursed Rs. 33,229 million to 50,212 borrowers
under production loans. This represents 46% of the total general credit disbursement.

Development Loans:

Development loans support the establishment of dairy farmhouses, poultry, fisheries, goat farming, and livestock
farming. Additionally, they finance irrigation requirements, orchards, nurseries, greenhouses, forestry, and related
activities. In 2024, the Bank disbursed Rs. 38,794 million to 68,577 borrowers under development loans, accounting
for 54% of the total general credit disbursement.

PURPOSE WISE DISBURSEMENT OF LOANS

W DEVELOPMENT LOANS ~ m PRODUCTION LOANS

a. Province-wise Agri. Credit Disbursement

The pattern of disbursement in provinces is almost proportionate to the agriculture potential of respective
provinces/areas. The province wise share of disbursement depicts that Punjab has largest share followed by Sindh and
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa as shown in graph below:

Province-wise Agri. Credit Disbursement
Amount (Rs. In Million)
(o\]
©
m
-
©
~
8 =
N “ S - 2
I m— —_ ° =
PUNJAB SINDH KHYBER PAKHTUN BALOCHISTAN  AZAD KASHMIR GILGIT/BALTISTAN
KHWA

b. Term-wise Disbursement of Loans

ZTBL provides loans on short-term, medium-term, and long-term basis to meet various agricultural financing needs.
Short-term loans are primarily production loans with a maturity period of up to 18 months. Medium-term loans are
advanced for development purposes and are recoverable within 5 years. Long-term loans also serve development
purposes and are recoverable within 8 years. The breakdown of term-wise loan disbursements during the year 2024 is
shown below:
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TERM WISE DISBURSEMENT
Amount Disbursed (Rs. In Million)

& g
9 3 &
<
SHORT TERM MEDIUM TERM LONG TERM

¢. Security-wise Disbursement of Loans
Security-wise disbursement of loans indicates that 99% of loans were secured against pledge/ mortgage of tangible securi-
ties. Moreover, the Bank also disburses credit against personal and hypothecation as given in the chart below.

Security-wise Disbursement of Loans
= Amount Disbursed (Rs. In Million)
I
o
—
o~
o
N4
— w o
SECURED LOANS
HYPOTHECATION LOANS PERSONAL SURETY LOANS OTHER SECURITY

d. Land holding-wise Disbursement of Loans
The distribution of loan disbursements based on landholding size is illustrated below. Notably, small farmers owning land up to 12.5 acres
received the majority share of loans, amounting to Rs. 63,282.207 million during the year 2024.

HOLDING WISE DISBURSEMENT

64.01 ACRES & ABOVE 111
50.01 TO UNDER 64.00 ACRES 104
32.01 TO UNDER 50.00 ACRES 557
25.01 TO UNDER 32.00 ACRES 654
16.01 TO UNDER 25.00 ACRES 13
12.51 TO UNDER 16.00 ACRES 2

UNDER 12.50 ACRES

0 10,000 20,000 30,000 40,000 50,000 60,000 70,000

= Amount Disbursed (Rs. In Million)

e. Loan Size Wise

During the year 2024, disbursement pattern reveals a high concentration of loans disbursed in larger ticket sizes, with a clear skew
toward the upper end of the loan spectrum. Loans above Rs. 1 million account for 48.7% of the total disbursed amount—nearly half
of all lending by value. The next largest bracket, Rs. 500,001 to Rs. 1 million, accounts for an additional 31.5%. Together, these two
brackets represent over 80% of the total disbursement. Loans in the Rs. 200,001 to Rs. 500,000 range capture 16.7% of the total
disbursement. Disbursements for loans below Rs. 100,000 total just 0.44% of the overall amount.
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LOAN SIZE WISE DISBURSEMENT
= Amount Disbursed (Rs. In Million)
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f. Banking on Equality

OUTSTANDING PORTFOLIO OF FEMALE

BORROWERS AS OF 31.12.2024

No. of Borrowers Outstanding Balance
(Rs.in Million)
19,877 7,885

g. Province wise Loan Repayments

PROVINCE WISE LOAN REPAYMENTS
AS OF 31.12.2024

H Punjab 60,000 -
® Sindh <
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Khyber Pakhtun 50,000 - =
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B Gilgit Baltistan 40,000 -
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h. Achievement under PM Kissan Package — 2022

The PM Kissan package — 2022, introduced as a pivotal initiative with the aim of advancing the agricultural sector in Pakistan, with
a specific focus on improving the welfare of farmers and enhancing agricultural productivity. The agriculture sector serves as a
fundamental component of Pakistan's economy, making substantial contributions to the nation's GDP and representing a significant
source of employment for a large portion of the population. The PM Kissan package aims to offer comprehensive assistance,
encompassing financial aid, technological innovations, and resource management, to small and medium-scale farmers throughout
the country.

The financial assistance and subsidies were implemented with the aim of enhancing the economic well-being of agricultural
producers, particularly those with limited land holdings. The intended purpose of providing access to improved resources and
equipment was to augment agricultural productivity and operational efficiency. More specifically, the Prime Minister’s Youth
Business and Agriculture Loan Scheme - PMYB&ALS and the Markup Subsidy and Risk Sharing Scheme for Farm
Mechanization - MSRSSFM represent notable endeavors geared towards fostering entrepreneurial endeavors and advancing
agricultural modernization within Pakistan.

The PMYB&ALS program has fostered entrepreneurialism among young individuals by facilitating access to business loans with
advantageous terms and decreased interest rates. This endeavor has yielded outcomes in the form of increased job opportunities and
the advancement of creative business enterprises. Similarly, The MSRSSFM program has contributed to the improvement of
agricultural productivity through the increased accessibility to modern machinery, resulting in higher crop yields and more efficient
resource management.
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PM KISSAN PACKAGE AS OF DECEMBER 31,2024

Scheme No. of Borrowers Dirbursement
New To Bank Existing To Bank Total (Rs. Tn Million)
Mark-up Subsidy & Risk Sharing
Scheme for Farm Mechanization 2,816 2,881 5,697 12,037
Prime Minister Youth Business & 6,650 4,183 10,833 20,267

Agriculture Loan Scheme

GOP Mark-up Subsidy Scheme for
Revival of Agriculture/Livestock 4,102 7,792 11,894 4,851
Sector for Flood Affected Areas

Interest Free & Risk Sharing

Scheme for Landless Farmers in
Flood Affected Areas 457 12 469 2
Total 14,025 14,868 28,893 37,207

The importance of gender equality has been consistently acknowledged by ZTBL, and the organization is actively implementing measures
to guarantee equitable access to financial services for women. This encompasses the provision of loans, credit facilities, and other financial
products customized to the specific requirements of women, particularly those engaged in the agricultural and rural business sectors. In
accordance with the PM - Kissan Package - 2022, ZTBL has disbursed loans to 1,235 female borrowers totaling Rs. 1,626 million.

i. Revision of Maximum per Borrower/Party Credit Limit for Production Loan

The Board of Directors, in its 118th meeting held on March 04, 2024, in Islamabad, approved the revision of per borrower/party exposure
for Production Loans from Rs. 1.200 million to Rs. 2.500 million. Meanwhile, the per borrower/party exposure for Development Loans
remains at the already approved limit of Rs. 5.000 million.

j- Adoption of Digitalized Land Record System for Agri., Financing

All branches across Punjab Province have been fully equipped with the necessary devices, software installations, and training,
Consequently, the Bank has directed all regional offices and branches to fully utilize the Punjab Land Records Authority - Central Land
Records Management and Information System (PLRA-CLRMIS). This system is essential for preventing fraud, enhancing operational
efficiency, detecting counterfeit documents, reducing loan processing costs, and minimizing errors associated with the manual preparation
of revenue documents.

k. Agri. e-Credit Scheme

The bank played a vital role in the recovery process under the E-Credit Scheme with the recovery of Rs. 44.98 million during the year 2024.
The outstanding balance as of December 31, 2024, stood at Rs. 37.75 million.

1. Remedial Management Unit

Following the implementation of collection monitoring for (Bucket 1-89 days), the addition to Non-Performing Loans (NPLs) has been
significantly reduced. In the year 2024, the NPL addition amounted to Rs. 20,997 million, which is a reduction of Rs. 14,557 million
compared to the previous year 2023, when the NPL addition was Rs. 35,554 million.

m. Regular Outstanding Balance
The Bank has achieved a significant milestone by reaching a regular outstanding balance of Rs. 100 billion.
6. DEPOSIT MOBILIZATION

In 2024, ZTBL faced numerous challenges; however, the organization remained steadfast in its commitment to deposit mobilization,
particularly emphasizing small-ticket deposits. The deposit position as of December 31, 2024, is as follows:

Deposits
= 31.12.2023 (Rs. in Million) 31.12.2024 (Rs. in Million)
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ZTBL has made notable progress in building a sustainable deposit base, particularly in current accounts (CA), which grew by approxi-
mately 69%. Despite challenges, current account deposits grew substantially due to the successful Current Account (CA) Campaign
initiated last year. New products like the Bakht Account, introduced in 2023 to target women, attracted PKR 301 million under CASA. The
ZTBL Shandar Mahana Amdani Account, launched to enhance savings accounts (SA), accumulated PKR 3,785 million as of December
31, 2024. In the third quarter, the ZTBL Pension Account was launched to further strengthen CASA, offering special features for current
account holders. Efforts focused on attracting new customers, particularly for current accounts, bolstered the deposit base.

ZTBLs focus on innovative products, improved processes, and strategic branch development aims to achieve a sustainable and diversified
deposit base, enhancing the Bank’s financial stability and market presence.

* Home Remittance

ZTBL continues to offer Home Remittance services through cash over-the-counter transactions, providing a vital channel for facilitating
remittance inflows. To enhance this capability, the bank is in the process of implementing a robust Home Remittance System. This system
is designed to support diverse payment modes, including Freelance, Business-to-Consumer (B2C), and Consumer-to-Business
(C2B) transactions, significantly broadening the scope of services available to customers. Additionally, the integration of this
system with RAAST, Pakistan's instant payment system, is underway. Once operational, it will enable seamless and efficient
transaction processing, further strengthening ZTBL’s digital payment infrastructure.

Under the guidance of the Pakistan Remittance Initiative (PRI), ZTBL is also working to establish partnerships with local banks in
Pakistan to streamline and expand its remittance business. This strategic collaboration aims to enhance accessibility and
convenience for customers while driving growth in remittance inflows.

As of December 31,2024, ZTBL has processed a total of 16,780 transactions, contributing to an inflow of USD 4.56 million. These
transactions were executed through direct foreign partnerships and local arrangements as a sub-agent. This achievement
underscores ZTBL's commitment to strengthening its remittance operations and supporting the financial ecosystem of Pakistan.

7. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

The Human Resource Group encompasses all the important areas of the employee life cycle right from recruitment till retirement
and deals with perks, incentives, staff loans, capacity building, promotions, annual performance appraisals etc. The achievements
during the year 2024 are as under: -

*  Hiring of 600 MCOs/ OG-IIs (2 Batches) mainly to strengthen field operations.
* Induction of 45 experienced professionals both in field as well as head office.

* 264 employees were granted promotions.

* 334 Disciplinary cases were decided/disposed-off.

 Introduction of Mid-Year Performance Appraisal of employees.

* 442 cases of terminal benefits were processed.

¢ Introduction of Employee Loan and Advances Policy with enhanced limits.

o Structural re-alignment of HR Function.

» Elevation of internal HR staff, to take higher responsibilities.

*  Review for updation of HR Policies, in line with the industry.

*  Human Resource Information System (HRIS) review with consultant for optimal usage.
* Introducing credit and compliance discipline in staff financing.

First time placement of MCO/OG-III batch, after completion of initial training.

*  The Training & Development Division (T&DD) successfully trained 4,517 employees across key areas such as operations,
credit, compliance, risk management, and Islamic banking, surpassing the target of 3,325 in financial year 2024. Additionally,
416 students participated in various internship programs, including paid and unpaid internships. T&DD facilitated Quranic
education for employees' children and organized 320 National Financial Literacy Program (NFLP) sessions, exceeding the
target of 310, with 10,414 participants.
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List of Management Committees

a) Management Committee (ManComm)

b) Compliance Committee of Management (CCM)

¢) Procurement Committee (PC)

d) Committee for Islamic Banking Expansion

e) Assets Liability Committee (ALCO)

f) Medical Facilitation Committee (MFC)

g) Employee’s Grievances Handling Committee (EGHC)

h) IT Steering Committee (ITSC)

i) Internal Risk Management Committee (IRMC)

j) Head Office Committee on Write off of Losses

k) IFRS-9 Project Steering Committee

I) Standing Inquiry Committee (The Protection against Harassment of Women at the Workplace Act, 2010)
Material Development/Shift in Bank’s Policies

a) Pensioners prior to 01.01.2023 drawing Benevolent Fund grant on monthly basis, allowed to avail entire outstanding amount
on lump sum basis.

b) Encashment of 365 days LPR to retiring employees allowed @ 12 Basic Pay, subject to availability of leave balance.

¢) Special Conveyance Allowance to Differently Abled Person (DAP) employees enhanced from Rs. 3,000/~ to Rs. 4,000/- per
month, w.e.f. 01.01.2024.

d) Job Rotation Policy was reviewed by the Board to the extent that OG-III to SVP in the field offices may not be reposted to their
previous office/location within 12 months of transfer.

e) Introduced Allowance for employees performing official duties, on Saturday in connection with branch operations.
f) Performance Bonus-2023 granted to employees as per their performance rating.
g) Effective from 01.04.2024, salaries of employees revised @ 15% while merging two Adhoc reliefs in existing pay.

h) Medical facilities extended to working/retired spouses of Bank employees and their parents retired from Government/Private
Sectors, provided they do not avail treatment from their parent department.

i) One increment allowed to retiring employees after serving more than 6 months in retiring year, provided, they perform for at
least 03 months.

j) Introduced new Employee Loan and Advances Policy including facility of loan swapping for new appointees.

k) To ensure criminal/legal action against culprits involved in fraud/forgery and embezzlement cases, detailed comprehensive
SOPs for initiation of legal course of action prepared and issued for employees of the bank.

) Job description/role & responsibilities of various functionaries of the Bank reviewed and revised, as per business requirement.

m) To facilitate the business stakeholder for efficient and quick decision making, different management committees were
reconstituted to align the emerging business need.

n) Guidelines for use of social media and observance of Code of Conduct by Bank employees were reviewed and notified for
compliance purpose.

0) Updated handbook containing Field Functionaries’ job description was notified.

p) To bring efficiency in business of various offices, various powers like administrative, disciplinary & financial powers delegated
upon various functionaries.

q) To align the HR Policies with best market practices, almost 10 HR Policies reviewed by the management for approval of the
Board.

Future Outlook:
 Rationalization of manpower at Head Office and Field Offices through conduct of workload assessment.
*  Re-structuring of different offices in line with industry practices.
»  Review compensation benefits for employees of the Bank.
*  Succession planning of retiring employees through fresh recruitments/promotions.
»  Competency assessment and training needs of employees of the Bank.
» Digitization and centralization of pensionary/terminal benefits to employees of the Bank.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT

* Reviewed bank wide policies and products to mitigate inherent risks.

» Revision of Enterprise Risk Management Policy (ERM) under approval phase.
*  Developed Information/Cyber Security policies, procedures and guidelines.

* Conducted awareness/training sessions on Information/Cyber Security threats.
» Established a Cyber Security Operation Center.

* Developed a new Internal Risk Rating (IRR) model covering Obligor Risk Rating (ORR), Facility Risk Rating (FRR),
and Environmental Risk Rating (ERR) aimed at improving portfolio quality (under implementation phase).

* Consolidated e-CIB Standardized operating procedures (SOPs).

+ Staff loans have been shifted to CAD to avoid duplicity of functions at HR level and improved collateral management.
*  Development of standardized system generated redemption letters to avoid manual redemptions.

Future Outlook

* Improvement in Infrastructure of CA units (Strong Room/Fireproof Cabinet/Security equipment).

* Implementation of Internal Risk Rating (IRR) Model under digitalization phase.

¢ Cyber Hygiene Compliance, ISO 27001 Compliance along with Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI
DSS) Certification.

*  Procurement of Operational Risk Management system as per industry practice.
»  Capacity building for Risk Management professionals.

* In line with regulatory requirements and best industry practices, ZTBL’s strategic approach to risk involves compliance
and loss mitigation as well as organizational and cultural considerations. The Bank also aspires to come up to the
expectations of its stakeholders and serve the agriculture sector in particular and other under-served sectors in general
of the country through taking and managing risks in a controlled and transparent manner. The future of risk management
in the bank demands a proactive and adaptive approach that integrates technology, environmental sustainability, and
a deep understanding of the agricultural sector’s unique challenges. By embracing innovative solutions,
leveraging data analytics, and collaborating with stakeholders, the bank can not only mitigate risks but also
contribute to the long-term resilience and prosperity of the agricultural community in Pakistan.

9. INNOVATION & TECHNOLOGY
*  Mobile Banking, Internet Banking and WhatsApp Banking already launched.
»  Farmer’s portal especially designed to meet the need of farmers has been launched.

e ZTBL MCOs are equipped with 1,000 Jazz Business tablet that digitizes the loaning process providing solutions at the
farmer’s doorstep and making it virtually instantaneous.

» Digital on-boarding of customers is already live on Mobile App.
» ZTBL debit Card Loyalty and Discounts program launched.

e ATM channels including Cash withdrawal, IBFT, funds transfer, Bill payments and 24/7 monitoring of digital
transactions etc., are running successfully.

* USSD Project — (Unstructured Supplementary Service Data): -

Phase 1: Launch (Bill Inq., Mini-Statement, Local funds Transfer, Loan payment, Staff Loan details etc.)
¢ RAAST Solution for G2P is live.
»  ZTBL has issued more than 30,000 ATM PayPak Debit cards to its customers till 2024.
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ZTBL and llink discussed new digital initiatives on digital payments for agriculture sector.
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ZTBL & VRG joined hands to enable USSD Banking Solutions for Non-smart phone customers across the country.
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Ms. Florence Rolle, FAO Representative in Pakistan visiting ZTBL stall at Agri-Connections 2024
Conference and Expo held at Expo Centre Lahore.

Future Outlook
* 50 New ATMs Deployments are in process.
» Digital Agri Advisory Service (Weather Advisory) is in process.
* USSD Project — (Unstructured Supplementary Service Data): -
Phase 2: In-Progress (Bill Payment, IBFT and Mobile Top-ups).
*  RAAST Solution for P2P is in progress.
* Fintech onboarding in progress for e-ticketing (Bookme) etc.
» Digital on-boarding process on various portals for different banking products.
* Addition of Financial Transaction through WhatsApp.

* Additional features: P2M Payments, Bill Payments, Channels activation, QR Integration, Fintechs/Agri tech, Market
Place & Features/User Interface (UI)/User experience (UX) enhancements in mobile & internet banking.

* Re-Design of existing card variants & addition of New Card Variants (Islamic, Bakht & Junior).
e E-commerce.

10. SPECIAL ASSET MANAGEMENT (SAM)

During the year 2024, through strenuous efforts, ZTBL achieved significant improvements in managing its non-performing
loans (NPLs) and charged-off portfolios:

* NPL Principal Outstanding was reduced by 16%, declining from Rs. 29.9 billion in 2023 to Rs. 25.2 billion in 2024.
* Charged-Off Principal Outstanding decreased by 8%, from Rs. 36.0 billion in 2023 to Rs. 33.2 billion in 2024,
» The total infected portfolio was reduced by 11%, reaching the lowest level recorded in the past six years.
* The NPL ratio improved significantly, falling from 24% to 20% during 2024.
Recovery performance during 2024:
* Rs. 25.9 billion recovered against NPLs.
* Rs. 9.7 billion recovered against charged-off loans.
» Total recovery from infected portfolio amounted to Rs. 35.6 billion.

Infected Portfolio Performance — 2024

Metric 2023 2024 Change
NPL Principal Outstanding Rs 29.9 billion Rs 25.2 billion 1 16%
Charged-off Principal Rs 36.0 billion Rs 33.2 billion 1 8%
Total Infected Portfolio Rs 65.9 billion Rs 58.4 billion 1 11%
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Initiative taken by SAM Division

* Meetings of ZTBL Higher Management with Chief Secretary & Board of Revenue officials with regards to
Loans for Agricultural, Commercial and Industrial Purposes Act, 1973 (LACIP Act) Implementation support to
ZTBL.

+ Reorganization of Independent SAM Group.
* NPL Management Strategy was prepared in light of SBP instructions.
* RMR have become independent reporting directly to SAM Division.

* Weekly Zoom meeting conducted by SAM Group with field/ RMR’s regarding their allocated Infected Portfolio
targets and day to day recovery matters.

» Deployment of Auto Recovery Certificates generation under LACIP Act through CBAS.
+ Allocation of Regions to SAM Division Officers for performance monitoring.

» Tractor Repossession and recovery by hiring Repo Agencies.

* Robo/ Outbound Calls to the Defaulted borrowers by SAM Division Officers.

» First RMR Conference is scheduled to be held in 1Q25 to recognize the field performance through certificates
distribution by President.

Future Outlook

Going forward SAM Division is continuing the momentum of 2024, where it achieved the lowest outstanding infect-
ed portfolio in last six years and aim to achieve even better performance for which following steps are being taken;

* LACIP 2% Revenue Commission is being automated.
* Incentive Scheme is expected to be implemented in Quarter 1, 2025.
* Settlement Policy is expected to be implemented in Quarter 1, 2025.

11. OPERATIONS

* Centralized Processing Department (CPD) is playing an active role in the day-to-day account opening at
centralized level for smooth account approval. CPD is fully functional with all branches of the bank for account
opening.

* CPD provided training on account opening to all field functionaries via class room and zoom on need basis time
to time as arranged by the training department, besides this, CPD is also providing guidelines through
e-mails/telephonic calls to field functionaries to resolve their issues for smooth processing of Accounts.

* Branch Operations Department, in collaboration with the General Services Division, is actively relocating
ZTBL branches from residential or remote/difficult locations to business hubs to facilitate customers and
promote growth in the bank’s main and allied businesses. As of December 31, 2024, 12 branches have been
successfully relocated.

* For the first time in ZTBL’s history, Operations Manual 2024 has been developed, encompassing all rules and
regulations of the State Bank of Pakistan, providing a comprehensive operational framework for the bank.
SBP KPIs: Biometric Verification

* In compliance with State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), ZTBL ensures that every
new customer opening an account for depository business or seeking agricultural finance, as well as those
renewing existing business relationships, undergo thorough verification of their credentials.

» Field functionaries have proactively contacted borrowers in person and invited them to visit branches for
biometric verification. To facilitate verification in remote areas, branches have been equipped with wireless
biometric devices, enabling field staff to perform verifications on-site.

The biometric verification progress as of 2024 is as follows:

*  Regular Borrowers: 99.8% verification completed.

* C(lassified Borrowers: 99.2% verification completed.

* High and Medium Priority Depository Accounts: completed.

* Normal Priority Active Depository Accounts: 99.8% verification achieved.
Business Growth

Focus remained on Hajj Applications, Home Remittances, and Utility Bills Collection & Locker facilities during the
year 2024.

a) Utility Bills Collection
ZTBL achieved substantial progress in utility bills collection through its nationwide branch network.
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Target (No. of Bills) Achieved Achievement %
2,900,000 2,378,095 82.0%

b) Collection of Hajj Applications

During 2024, ZTBL successfully processed 1,106 Hajj applications, collecting a total of Rs. 1,214.880 million, with
1,016 applicants declared successful for Hajj-2024.

¢) Call Deposit Receipts (CDR)

The newly introduced product shall help in increasing the deposit base of the Bank viz-a-viz attract new customers. At
the same time handsome free of cost deposit will be added to bank’s deposit base and is a good source for enhancing
NTBs base of the Branches. Call Deposit Receipt is issued through customers’ own account or to walk in customers to
be submitted along with Bid/Tender documents as earnest money, which is mandatory requirement by all Government
Organizations, autonomous bodies, NGOs etc. Further, CDRs may also be issued in individual’s own name. ZTBL
have issued 246 CDRs amounting to Rs. 2,035.68 million (01.10.2024 to 31.12.2024) on account of current deposit.

Support Provided to Field Functionaries

Field Facilitation Department is playing an active role in the day-to-day system operations of the branches, supporting
501 branches with performance of centralized Start/ End of the day. Creation/revoking of User ID on daily basis, bifur-
cation of branch circle, Verisys from NADRA. In addition to the above, this Department also provide prompt support
to the field functionaries for the solution of the issues/problem faced by the branches.

12. AGRICULTURE TECHNOLOGY DISSEMINATION

* The Agriculture Technology Department of the Bank aims to identify and develop various agri-activities and
transfer the same technology through training and practical demonstrations. During the year under review, various
activities were carried out at ZTBL Farm and in the field to introduce and disseminate contemporary agricultural
techniques and technologies.

» ZTBL Farm, the major center for Agriculture Technology Transfer, has remained the center of major agricultural
activities. During the year, different fruits including olives, peach, plum, pear, and citrus were planted at ZTBL
Farm. In addition, to facilitate farmers, an Olive Oil Extraction Unit is running successfully. Moreover, poultry
farming has also been expanded for training and demonstration purposes. An updated fish farming technology,
Biofloc, was also initiated during the year.

e Mushroom activity is successfully being carried out at ZTBL Farm. Students from different universities and
agri-institutes have also been trained in mushroom farming. Similarly, honey bee farming activity was also
successfully carried out during the year.

* As part of the kitchen gardening activity, seed kits and seedlings of both winter and summer vegetables were
prepared for onward dissemination to promote home-grown, healthy, and hygienic vegetable production and
consumption.

* Wheat crop has also been cultivated at ZTBL Farm. Moreover, value addition activity of various fruits and
vegetables was also initiated at ZTBL Farm. This includes value addition of olive tea, dried chilies, olive pickle,
and garlic paste.

» To diversify fruit production, new orchards of grapes and multi-fruit plants were also established. ZTBL Farm
olive orchard was successfully rehabilitated.

¢ Trainings/workshops on mushroom production and kitchen gardening were also carried out in coordination with
Islamabad Club and Arid Agriculture University Rawalpindi to create awareness about these highly beneficial and
income-generating activities. The department also participated in various field days, seminars, exhibitions, etc.,
arranged in various parts of the country.

* During the year 2024, around 473 visitors, including students, farmers, and delegates from different institutes,
were facilitated at ZTBL Farm. Additionally, 9 students from different universities and agri., institutes were
supervised for internships at ZTBL Farm as well. The department also facilitated visits of around 380 ZTBL
officials and newly inducted MCOs to agri., institutes and universities.
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ZTBL arranged an awareness session on mushroom farming at the Islamabad Club. Mr. Tahir Yaqoob
Bhatti, President/CEO ZTBL, graced the event as the chief guest and briefed on the immense potential
of mushroom industry in Pakistan.

ZTBL's Agriculture Technology Department (ATD) actively participated in a winter kitchen gardening
training workshop organized by the Islamabad Club for its members.
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A glimpse of activities undertaken by Agriculture Technology Department.
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Future Outlook

» Being one of the high-demand products, the department plans to expand its honeybee farming activity during the year. In
addition, the cultivation of approximately 200 new fruit plants—including plum, apricot, and other varieties—is planned
for 2025. The grape orchard will also be converted to a drip irrigation system to enhance water efficiency.

* The cultivation of wheat using a super seeder and the expansion of poultry farming are also scheduled for implementation
during the year. Furthermore, the department intends to establish new blocks for floriculture and organic vegetable
production. A new initiative in quail farming will also be launched in 2025.

» Rooftop rainwater harvesting system integrated with efficient irrigation, to be further expanded in 2025 to enhance water
conservation and reduce dependency on groundwater.

* As part of its regular activities, the department will continue the production and value addition of various fruits and
vegetables at ZTBL Farm. Field days will be organized to promote agricultural awareness and practical learning.
Additionally, the department will participate in field days, seminars, workshops, and training sessions arranged by external
agencies. Visitors to ZTBL Farm will be facilitated and guided regarding various ongoing activities.

13. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During 2024, the Green Banking Unit revised its Green Banking Policy, aligning it with the State Bank of Pakistan’s
Environmental & Social Risk Implementation Manual 2022. A Green Banking Strategy was also developed and integrated into
the revised policy. As part of capacity-building efforts, 13 awareness sessions were organized, providing training to 530 ZTBL
employees on Green Banking practices. Furthermore, four ZTBL Regional Offices and their associated branches—in Islamabad,
Multan, Vehari, and Gujranwala—were transitioned to renewable energy sources under the "Own Impact Reduction” initiative.
At the ZTBL Head Office, a 309-kW solar energy system was installed across multiple facilities contributing significantly to
sustainable energy utilization. A 189 kW solar energy system has been installed at the ZTBL Farm to promote clean energy. An
amount of Rs. 2,637.68 million was disbursed under Green Banking products during the year 2024.

New Initiatives

Projects related to water conservation activities, such as rooftop rainwater harvesting and the catchment of rainwater runoff
through the construction of a water pond, were successfully completed at the ZTBL Farm under the Green Banking Initiatives.
Additionally, orchard of multiple fruit plants at ZTBL Farm was successfully converted to a high-efficiency irrigation system.
Awareness sessions on Green Banking were also conducted for ZTBL officials at ZTBL Staft College.

Future Outlook

The Green Banking Unit (GBU) will continue its Green Banking capacity-building program in 2025. It will also collect and
consolidate information on Green Banking activities and initiatives for quarterly reporting to the State Bank of Pakistan. An
Environmental and Social Risk Management Procedural Manual will be developed in collaboration with ZTBL’s Risk
Management Department and other relevant stakeholders to ensure effective implementation, compliance, and integration into
the credit and loan system. Furthermore, the Green Banking Unit plans to develop and publish additional Green Advisory
Services for both employees and clients in 2025.

14. ISLAMIC BANKING

The year 2024 has been a remarkable period for the Islamic Banking Division (IBD). A major breakthrough was the initiation of
financing activities, with disbursements starting for Three-Wheeler Loader Rickshaw and Tractor Financing under a prudent
approach. In line with the industry-wide transformation from conventional to Islamic banking, as pilot project, ZTBL Islamic
Banking Division successfully swapped two cases of tractor financing that were previously migrated from conventional to
Islamic Banking Branches (IBBs) at Kot Addu Branch (Muzaffargarh Region). During this period, IBD successfully developed
and launched several new financing and liability products while also making significant advancements in system development.
Additionally, the Division remains focused on ZTBL’s conversion into an Islamic bank, in alignment with the State Bank of
Pakistan’s (SBP) Islamic banking transformation guidelines issued on June 28, 2024. Considering ZTBL’s operational
limitations, the Conversion Plan was submitted to SBP after obtaining approval from the Board of Directors (BoD) with a
conservative approach. Below is a summary of key achievements and developments in 2024:

Islamic Banking Products
Financing Products Launched

i. ZTBL Islamic Loader Rickshaw Financing — Facilitating small entrepreneurs and farmers in transporting agricultural
goods.

ii. Tractor and Agri Machinery Financing — Providing financing for mechanized farming through tractors and other
agricultural machinery.

iii. Islamic Solar and Biogas Financing — Supporting renewable energy adoption for agricultural use.

iv. Zarai Islamic Financing Scheme for Milk Chilling Units — Enabling dairy farmers to preserve milk quality and reduce
wastage.

v. Zarai Islamic Dairy Value Chain Financing — Offering comprehensive financing for dairy farming, including livestock
acquisition and farm development.
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vi. ZTBL Islamic Rice Transplanter Financing — Supporting modern rice transplantation machinery to enhance efficiency.

vii. Zarai Islamic Trout Fish Financing — Providing financing in Gilgit Baltistan for trout fish breeding and commercial
sale.

Financing Products in Process

i.  Jaggery Machine Financing — Supporting the agricultural community engaged in the Gur-making business.

ii. Zarai Digital Financing — A production financing product aimed at digitizing financing channels for enhanced efficiency.

iii. Zarai Islamic Yak Financing — Supporting Yak farming in Gilgit Baltistan to enhance livelihoods.

iv. Kissan Zindagi Khushhal Scheme — Providing financing against lien on salaries for agricultural workers engaged in
farming.

v. Zarai Islamic Financing of Oil Expeller Unit — Facilitating the edible oil business for farmers.

vi. Zarai Islamic Agri Tourist Financing — Supporting landowners in establishing agri-tourism outlets and improving existing
orchards.

vii. Zarai Islamic Tahafuz-e-Ajnas Financing — Providing godown financing to secure agricultural produce.

viii. Zarai Islamic Khawateen Rozgar Scheme — Empowering women engaged in non-farm businesses such as dairy farming,
cattle farming, poultry farming, Ajrak making, stitching machines, and cane & bamboo furniture.

Deposit Products
Current Account Products
i. Islamic Current Account
ii. Assan Islamic Current Account
iii. Bakht Islamic Current Account — Developed in 2024
iv. ZTBL Islamic Pension Current Account — Developed in 2024
v. Basic Islamic Banking Account
Savings Account Products
i. Islamic Savings Account
ii. Assan Islamic Savings Account
iii. Bakht Islamic Savings Account — Developed in 2024
iv. ZTBL Islamic Pension Savings Account — Developed in 2024
v. Junior Account — Developed in 2024
vi. Islamic Business Deposit Accounts
vii. Senior Citizen Account
Term Deposit Products
i. Islamic Term Deposit Certificates
ii. Special Islamic Term Deposit Certificates
iii. Zarai Amadani Certificate
Deposit Products in Progress
» Zarai Hajj and Umrah Ziarat Account
IT Developments
Completed
* Islamic Financing Recovery Module
* IT modules for Islamic Financing Products (Solar Energy, Biogas Plants, Oil Expeller Unit, Jaggery Machine, Milk
Chilling Units)
» Digital Advice Printing
*  SECP Module for Islamic Banking Division
* Full ATM Functionality & Internet Banking (Mobile App)
In Progress
*  Pool Management Software
* Islamic Banking Window Module
+ Virtual Cost Centre Module
* PMY Financing Scheme in Islamic Mode
« Digital Account Opening Forms
« Digital Call Report System for efficient business follow-ups
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Product and Policy Review
* Risk Management Framework updated to include Shariah Non-Compliance Risk, per SBP guidelines.
* Profit & Loss Policy Framework aligned with industry best practices and approved by Shariah Board (awaiting BoD
approval).
» Service Level Agreements & Transfer Pricing Mechanism developed and approved by the Shariah Board.
* Conversion Manual outlining the transformation of conventional to Islamic banking and the products gap analysis.
» Shariah Review of Bank Documents is underway to assess product compatibility with Islamic principles.
*  Products Gap Analysis completed for Islamic financing and deposit products.
Staff Hiring & Capacity Building
Key Hiring
» Shariah Scholar (Mandatory Role)
* IT Manager (Islamic Banking Division)
Training & Awareness Programs
* Senior Management Awareness Session (Aug 2024)
* Five-Day Training for Islamic Banking Staff (Aug 2024)
e 21 Weekly Awareness Sessions for Staff (Available on Internal Portal)
Public Awareness Campaigns:
* Conducted five “Zarai Baithak” sessions in rural villages.
* Social media awareness via banners & videos on bank website and social media platforms.
Future Outlook
Annual Branch Expansion Plan

* SBP approved the conversion of 10 conventional branches & establishment of 30 Islamic Banking Windows at
conventional branches.

*  Upon implementation, IBD will operate 65 outlets (35 Islamic Banking Branches & 30 Windows).
ZTBL’s Conversion Plan (2027)

e ZTBL's agricultural loan portfolio requires a nuanced approach due to classification, going beyond the typical NPL and
Charged Off categories. Henceforth, ZTBL-IBD (Islamic Banking Division) has embarked the Conversion Plan to 25% of
Islamic Banking Network till CY-2027.

Key Focus Areas year 2025
» Strengthening deposit mobilization & financing operations in Islamic branches.
*  Developing IT modules for all liability & financing products.
*  Human Resource Development.
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- ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

Z1TBIL
Head office: 1, Faisal Avenue, P.o.Box No 1400 ISLAMABAD.
CORPORATE AFFAIRS DEPARTMENT
No. CAD/1(4)/AGM/19/2025/21-29 Dated: April 04, 2025

NOTICE OF 19 ™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 19" Annual General Meeting of Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited
will be held on Monday April 28, 2025 at 11:30 A.M. at ZTBL, Head Office, Islamabad, to
transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To confirm minutes of 18™ Annual General Meeting held on March 27, 2024

2) To receive, consider and adopt the audited unconsolidated financial statements of the
Bank and consolidated financial statements of the group (ZTBL & KSSL) for the year
ended December 31, 2024 together with Auditors’” and Directors’ Reports thereon.

3. To appoint Auditors of the Bank for the year ending December 31, 2025 and fix their
remuneration.

Special Business:

4, Approval of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) of President/CED, ZTBL
(Statement under Section 134 of Companies Act, 2017 in respect of Special Business is
attached.)

Any other Business:
To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair

By order of the Board
-
( TARIQ MAHMOOD TALIB )
Company Secretary
(051-9253087)

1. Government of Pakistan, through Secretary Finance Division, GoP, Islamabad.

State Bank of Pakistan, through Governor, Karachi.

& Governments of Punjab, Sindh, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Balochistan through Chief
Secretaries, Lahore, Karachi, Peshawar and Quetta.

4. Members, ZTBL Board

Additional Registrar of Companies, Company Registration Office, SECP, Islamabad

6. M/s Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Company, Chartered %aw.ﬁ
—

Company Secretary

Liod

o

Technology for Agriculture
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Crowe Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.

77 Floor, Gul Mohar Trade Centre,
8-F Main Market, Gulberg II,
Lahore-54660, Pakistan

Main +92-42-3575 9223-5
www.crowe.pk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED
REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES (CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) RULES, 2013

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the
Public Sector Companies (Corparate Governance) Rules, 2013 (the Rules) prepared by the Board
of Directors of Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited for the year ended December 31, 2024.

The responsibility for compliance with the Rules is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified,
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the
provisions of the Rules and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Rules. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Rules.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such
internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Rules requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its
related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to
those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's
length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of
the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party
transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the

Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the best practices contained in the Rules as applicable to the Company for the year

ended December 31, 2024.
Q_yuwe &*ﬁé% .

Lahore
Dated: March 25, 2025 CROWE HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO.
UDIN: CR202410169WQ9ka4rE1 Chartered Accountants

ove
Crowe Hussaln Chaudhury & Co.is a member of Crowe Global, a Swiss verein, Each member firm of Ciowe Global is a separate and independent jegal entity. Crowe Hussaln Chaudhury & Co.and
its affiliates are nat respansibla or abls for any acts or omissions of Crowe Global or any other member of Crowe Gicbal. Crowe Giobal does not render any professional services and does not

have an ownership or partnership interest in Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co
© 2025 Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC
SECTOR COMPANIES (CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) RULES, 2013

Name of Bank Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited
Name of the line ministry Finance Division, GoP
For the year ended December 31, 2024
I. This statement presents the overview of the compliance with the Public Sector

Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (hereinafter called "the Rules")
issued for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby
the Bank is managed in compliance with the best practices of public sector
governance.

I1. The Bank has complied with the provisions of the Rules in the following manner:

S. Provision of the Rules Rule Y | N
No. No. Tick the

relevant box

1 The independent directors meet the criteria of 2(d)

independence, as defined under the Rules.

3(2) v

2 The Board has at least one-third of its total numbers as
independent directors. At present the Board includes:

Date of
appointment

Category Names

Independent
Directors

1.

w

Mr. Naeemuddin
Khan

Mr.Sahibzada Rafat
Raoof Ali
Dr.Ayesha Waqgar
Dr.Talat Naseer
Pasha

24.08.2023

11.10.2024

11.10.2024
11.10.2024

Executive
Directors

Mr. Tahir Yaqoob
Bhatti

31.08.2023

Non-
Executive

. Mr. Ahmed

Taimoor Nasir

05.05.2023

Directors

The directors have confirmed that none of them is
serving as a director on more than five public sector
companies and listed companies simultaneously, except
their subsidiaries.

3(5)

The appointing authorities have applied the fit and
proper criteria given in the Annexure to the Rules in
making nominations of the persons for election as Board
members under the provisions of the Act.

3N

The Chairman of the Board is working separately from
the Chief Executive of the Bank.

41)
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6 The Chairman has been elected by the Board of 4(4) v
directors except where Chairman of the Board has been
appointed by the Government.

7 | The Board has evaluated the candidates for the position 5(2) N/A
of the Chief Executive on the basis of the fit and proper
criteria as well as the guidelines specified by the
Commission.

(Not applicable where the chief executive have been
nominated by the Government)

8 | (a) The Bank has prepared a “Code of Conduct” to 5(4) v
ensure that professional standards and corporate values
are in place.

(b) The Board has ensured that appropriate steps have i
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company
along with its supporting policies and procedures,
including posting the same on the company’s website
(www.ztbl.com.pk)

(c) The Board has set in place adequate systems and \
controls for the identification and redressal of
grievances arising from unethical practices.

9 The Board has established a system of sound internal 5(5) v
control, to ensure compliance with the fundamental
principles of probity and propriety; objectivity, integrity
and honesty; and relationship with the stakeholders, in
the manner prescribed in the Rules.

10 | The Board has developed and enforced an appropriate 5(5)(b)(iii) N
conflict of interest policy to lay down circumstances or
considerations when a person may be deemed to have
actual or potential conflict of interests, and the
procedure for disclosing such interest.

11| The Board has developed and implemented a policy on | 5(5)(b)(vi) v
anticorruption to minimize actual or perceived
corruption in the Bank.

12 [ The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by 5(5)(c)(ii) N
establishing open and fair procedures for making
appointments and for determining terms and conditions

of service.
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" 13 | The Board has ensured compliance with the law as well | 5(5)(c)(iii) v
as Bank’s internal rules and procedures relating to
public procurement, tender regulations, and purchasing
and technical standards, when dealing with suppliers of
goods and services.

14 | The Board has developed a vision or mission statement 5(6) \
and corporate strategy of the Bank.

15 | The Board has developed significant policies of the 5(7) v
Bank. A complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with the dates on which they were
approved or amended, has been maintained.

16 | The Board has quantified the outlay of any action in 5(8) v
respect of any service delivered or goods sold by the
’ Bank as a public service obligation, and has submitted
its request for appropriate compensation to the
Government for consideration.

17 | The Board has ensured compliance with policy 5(11) N
directions requirements received from the Government.
[_ 18 |[(a) The Board has met at least four times during the 6(1) N
, year.
(b) Written notices of the Board meetings, along with 6(2) \

agenda and working papers, were circulated at least
seven days before the meetings.

(c) The minutes of the meetings were appropriately 6(3) v
recorded and circulated.

19 | The Board has monitered and assessed the performance 8(2) N
of senior management on annual/half-yearly/quarterly
basis and held them accountable for accomplishing
objectives, goals and key performance indicators set for
this purpose.

, 20 | The Board has reviewed and approved the related party 9 V|
5 transactions plaged before it after recommendations of
the audit committee. A party wise record of transactions
entered into with the related parties during the year has
been maintained

21 | (a) The Board has approved the profit and loss account ] N
for, and balance sheet as at the end of, the first, second
and third quarter of the year as well as the financial year
end.

(b)In case of listed PSCs, the Board has prepared half
yearly accounts and undertaken limited scope review by
the auditors.

e e e
|
|
|
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(©)The Board has placed the annual financial statements N
on the Bank’s website

22 | All the Board members underwent an orientation course 11 v
arranged by the Bank to apprise them of the material
\ developments and information as specified in the Rules.

23 (a) The Board has formed the requisite committees, as 12 v
specified in the Rules.

(b) The committees were provided with written term of <
reference  defining their duties, authority and
composition.

(c) The minutes of the meetings of the committees were \
circulated to all the Board members.

(d) The Committees were chaired by the following non- R\
executive directors:

Committee | Number of | Name of Chair
Members
, Audit 03 Syed Javed
* Committee
Risk 03 Mr. Zaigham
Management Mahmood Rizvi
Committee
Human 04 Mr.Nacemuddin Khan
Resource
Committee
Procurement 03 Mr. Haaris Mahmood
| Committee Chaudhary

Nomination 04 Mr.Ahmed  Taimoor
Committee Nasir

24 | The Board has approved appointment of Chiel Financial 13 N
Officer, Company Secretary and Chief Internal Auditor,
. with their remuneration and terms and conditions of
! employment.

25 | The( ‘hief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary 4N
have requisite qualification prescribed in the Rules.

36 | "The Bank has adopled International Financial Reporting o | v
Standards notified by the Commission in terms of sub-
section (1) of section 225 of the Act

57 The directors' report for this year has been prepared | in| 17 v
compliance with the requirements of the Act and the
Rules and fully describes the salient matters required to

be disclosed.

o) Sipilisyise,;
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- are not, directly or indirectly, concerned or interested in
any contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf
of the Bank except those disclosed to the company.

28 | The directors., CEO and executives, or their relatives, 18 v ]

29 (@) A formal and transparent procedure for fixing the 19 v
remuneration packages of individual dircctors has been
set in place and no director is involved in deciding his
owWn remuneration.

(b) The annual report of the Bank contains criteria and
| details of remuneration of each director.

2]
[=]

. The financial statements of the Bank were duly 20 v

; endorsed by the Chief Executive and Chief Financial

Officer. before consideration and approval of the
approval of the Audit Committee and the Board.

31  The Board has formed an Audit Committee, with | 21 (1) N
defined and written terms of reference, and having the and
| following members: 21 (2)

Nameof | Category | Professional
Member | | background

| Mr.Sahibzada | Independent | Business/Banking
|

|

|

I Rafat Raoof Ali |
' Dr.Avesha | Independent

Economics/

|| Wagar | Business

! Mr.Ahmed ' Non- ' Finance/Accounts/
|| Taimoor Nasir | Executive | Computer Science

' The Chief Executive and Chairman of the Board are not

f mcmbcrs of the Audit Committee. |

32 | '(a) “The Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Internal 21(3) N
| Auditor. and a representative of the external auditors
" attended all meetings of the Audit Committee at which
issues relating to accounts and audit were discussed.

(b) The Audit Committee met the external auditors, at |
lcast once a year, without the presence of the Chief
| Financial Officer, the Chief Internal Auditor and other
exccutives.
' (¢) The Audit Committee met the Chief Internal Auditor
| and other members of the internal audit function, at least
| once a vear, without the presence of chiel lumnuall

| officer and the external auditors, i

’ S—

22 v

33 |(a) The Board has set up an effective internal audit |
funcuon which has an audit charter. duly approved by

‘ ' the Audit Committee.
{

e e
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| (b) The Chief Internal Auditor has requisite

‘ qualification and experience prescribed in the Rules. v
(¢) The internal audit reports have been provided to the

external auditors for their review. v

34 The external auditors of the Bank have confirmed that 23(4) N

the {irm and all its partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
cuidelines on Code of Ethics as applicable in Pakistan.

The auditors have confirmed that they have observed 23(5) v
applicable guidelines issued by IFAC with regard to
provision of non-audit services

2
]

\
PRESIDENT/QEO
TAHIR YAQOOB BHATTI

o) Sip nilis yicne)j
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SCHEDULE II

Explanation for Non-Compliance with the
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

We confirm that all other material requirements envisaged in the Rules have been complied
with except for the following, towards which reasonable progress is being made by the
Company to seek compliance by the end of next a0ccounting year:

- S, Rule/ Reasons for non-compliance Future course of action
jio. sub-rule No.
| 1 6(1) Although four meetings of the | Three Directors have been

| Board were held during the year | appointed on the Board in
; 2024, however in 2" and 3" | October 2024 in place of
‘ quarters, Board meetings could | retiring ones. It will be ensured
not be held as three Directors | that meetings are held as per
i retired in  March 2024 on | regulatory requirements.
completion of their three years
term. Owing to the reason, the
Board fell below its minimum
requirement.

a«@; =
/;RESID NT/CEO H N BOARD
TAHIR YAQOOB BHATTI NAEEMUDDIN KHAN

Mol Sip ilis yise )
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Crowe Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.

7" Floor, Gul Mohar Trade Centre,
8-F Main Market, Guiberg H,
Lahore-54660, Pakistan

Main +92-42-3575 9223-5
www.crowe.pk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Zarai Taraqiati Bank
Limited (the Bank), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2024, and the unconsolidated statement of profit and loss account, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in
equity and the unconsolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, along with unaudited
certified returns received from the branches except for one hundred and sixty eight (168) branches
which have been audited by us and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information, and we state that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit and loss
account, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of
changes in equity and the unconsolidated cash flow statement together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give
the information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of
the Bank’s affairs as at December 31, 2024 and of the profit, the other comprehensive income, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Che
—

Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.Is a member of Crowe Global, a Swiss verein. Each member firm of Grows Global is a separate and independert legal entity. Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.and
ts affillates are not responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of Growe Global or any other mefr bar of Crowe Global Crowe Giobal does not render any professional services and does not

have an ownership or partnership intenast in Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.

© 2025 Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co,
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Following is the key audit matter:

Key Audit Matter

How the Matter was Addressed in our
Report

1. Adoption of IFRS-09 and recognitio

expected credit loss against financial assets

n of

Refer to the note 4.1.2 to the annexed
unconsolidated financial statements.

As of December 31, 2024, the Bank's
financial assets, including advances,
represent a significant portion of its total
assets. The Bank adopted IFRS 9 ‘Financial
Instruments’ from January 1, 2024, in
accordance with SBP’s BPRD Circular letter
No. 7 of 2023. The Standard introduces a
new impairment model based on Expected
Credit Losses (ECL) on the financial assets,
replacing the previous ‘incurred credit
losses’ approach. The Bank applied the
modified retrospective approach, without
restating comparatives for 2023.

The adoption of IFRS 9 led to a transition
adjustment of Rs. 5,498.565 million to
retained earnings as of January 1, 2024.
The details of impact if this adoption are
provided in Note 4.1.2 to the
unconsolidated financial statements.

The estimation of Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) involves significant management
judgements and estimates, particularly in
areas such as the selection of risk
parameters (PD, LGD, EAD), the
classification of advances into stages, and
the use of forward-looking economic data.
Additionally, the Bank must assess
recoveries for non-performing loans and
ensure compliance with SBP’s provisioning
requirements for Stage 3 advances. Due
to these complexities, we identified the
adequacy and completeness of ECL as a
key audit matter.

Our key audit procedures relating to adoption of
IFRS-09 and recognition of expected credit loss
against financial assets included:

« Obtained an understanding of the Bank’s
methodology for estimating ECL on all
financial assets, including its accounting
policies and key assumptions applied in
the adoption of IFRS 9.

« Evaluated the design and implementation
of controls over the ECL estimation
process, including model validation
procedures and compliance with SBP's
IFRS 9 instructions.

« Evaluated the completeness and accuracy
of critical data used in the ECL model,
including exposure at default (EAD),
probability of default (PD), and loss given
default (LGD).

s Assessed the appropriateness of the
staging criteria used to classify advances
under IFRS 9 and SBP Prudential
Regulation, ensuring proper identification
of significant increase in credit risk (SICR)
and credit-impaired advances based on
both quantitative and qualitative
indicators.

« Evaluated the selection of macroeconomic
variables used in the ECL model, ensuring
their relevance to the agricultural sector
and the reliability of forecasts, as well as
the reasonableness of the weightages
assigned to different economic scenarios
in the ECL computation.

« Performed independent recalculations of
ECL on selected loan exposures to validate
the mathematical accuracy of the model.

« Considered the adequacy of the related
disclosures and assessed whether these
are in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework.

he
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the
requirements of Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Bank'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Bank'’s financial reporting process.

Cye
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to
continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

o) Sip nilis yine)j
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From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Bank as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and the returns referred above from the branches have been found
adequate for the purpose of our audit;

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit
and loss account, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated cash flow statement
(together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking
Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were in
accordance with the objects and powers of the Bank and the transactions of the Bank which
have come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was
deducted by the Bank and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7
of that Ordinance.

We confirm that for the purpose of our audit we have covered more than sixty per cent of the total
loans and advances of the Bank.

Other Matter

The unconsolidated financial statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2023, were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on March

04, 2024.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad
Nasir Muneer.

Lahore CROWE HUSSAI UDHURY &
Dated: March 25, 2025 Chartered Accauntants

UDIN: AR202410169xVBprKs4L
e
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Note  ...... Rupees in '000 ......
ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 3,125,812 3,661,179
Balances with other banks 6 7,492,526 31,925,573
Lendings to financial institutions 7 30,950,072 6,560,700
Investments 8 376,274,453 372,212,120
Advances 9 109,121,210 105,507,660
Property and equipment 10 1,844,619 1,538,612
Right-of-use assets 11 857,055 856,939
Intangible assets 12 172,425 255,925
Deferred tax assets 13 13,272,502 12,730,814
Other assets 14 34,428,323 27,126,949
577,538,997 562,376,471
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 16 451,707 2,605,372
Borrowings 17 408,066,969 399,877,699
Deposits and other accounts 18 56,621,831 57,169,073
Lease liabilities 19 097,225 983,391
Subordinated loan - -
Deferred tax liabilities - -
Other liabilities 20 29,023,447 27,576,255
495,161,179 488,211,790
NET ASSETS 82,377,818 74,164,681
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital 21 52,678,432 52,678,432
Reserves 12,113,062 9,520,922
Surplus on revaluation of assets 22 2,244,829 1,622,051
Un-appropriated profit 15,341,495 10,343,276
82,377.818 74,164,681
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23

The annexed notes 1 to 48 and annexures I & II form an integral part of these financial statements.

Rl
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Note .. Rupees in '000 ......

Mark-up / return / interest earned 24 111,252,316 142,316,092
Mark-up / return / interest expensed 25 86,482,397 118,051,429
Net mark-up / interest income 24,769,919 24,264,663
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME

Fee and commission income 26 1,139,924 1,312,045
Dividend income 66,735 135,730

Foreign exchange income - -
Income from derivatives - -
(Gain on securities 27 2,339,449 266,525
Net gains/(losses) on derecognition of financial assets = ™
measured at amortised cost

Other income 28 1,909,285 714,181
Total non-mark-up / interest income 5,455,393 2,428,481
Total income 30,225,312 26,693,144

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES

Operating expenses 29 16,115,478 14,552,349
Workers welfare fund = =
Other charges 30 1,881 39,804
Total non mark-up / interest expenses 16,117,359 14,592,153
Profit before credit loss allowance 14,107,953 12,100,991
Credit loss allowance and write offs - net 31 (11,783,986) (5,505,176)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 25,891,939 17,606,167
Taxation 32 12,931,237 6,622,033
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 12,960,702 10,984,134
veees RUPEES ..0ees

Basic earnings per share 33 2.46 2.09
Diluted earnings per share 33 246 2.09

The annexed notes 1 to 48 and annexures I & II form an integral part of these financial statements.

» (o Y
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
... Rupees in '000 ...

Profit after taxation for the year 12,960,702 10,984,134

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account in
subsequent periods:

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches - -
Movement in surplus on revaluation of investments - net of tax 622,778 708,223
622,778 708,223

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in
subsequent periods:

Remeasurement gain on defined benefit obligations - net of tax 128,222 2,759,751
Movement in surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net of tax - -
Movement in surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets - net of tax

128,222 2,759,751

Total comprehensive income 13,711,702 14,452,108

The annexed notes 1 to 48 and annexures I & II form an integral part of these financial statements.

cac
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating (loss) / profit before working capital changes 37
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets:

Lendings to financial institutions

Securities classified as FVPL

Advances

Other assets (excluding advance taxation)

Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Bills payable
Borrowings from financial institutions
Deposits and other accounts
Other liabilities (excluding current tax)

Interest received
Interest paid
Employees' benefits paid
Income tax paid
Net cash flow (used in) / generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Investments in securities classified as FVOCI
Dividend received
Investments in property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Net cash flow generated from / (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment of lease liability against right-of-use assets
Net cash flow used in financing activities

(Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 34
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 34

2024 2023
...... Rupees in '000 ......
(1,457,038) 736,637
(24,394,000) 33,062,442
(3,404,062)

(11,166,186)

(19,482,766)

(1,692,601) (392,606)
(40,656,849) 13,187,070
(2,153,665) 2,024,867
8,189,270 44,978,986
(547,242) 9,836,379
1,133,517 60,809
6,621,880 56,901,041
103,963,074 136,619,933
(87,798,173)  (115,474,523)
(1,122,943) (984,900)
(9,732,090)  (7,019,096)
(30,182,139) 83,966,162

6,097,291 ||  (62,992,840)
66,735 135,730
(586,321) (463,114)
25,899 90,987
5,603,604  (63,229,237)

[ (388,395)][  (345,951)]
(388,395) (345,951)
(24,966,930) 20,390,974
35,586,752 15,195,778
10,619,822 35,586,752

The annexed notes 1 to 48 and annexures I & TI form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 Reorganization and conversion

The Federal Government in its cabinet meeting held on August 28, 2002 decided for the
reorganization and conversion of Agricultural Development Bank of Pakistan (ADBP) into a public
limited Company for the purposes of ensuring good governance, autonomy, delivering high quality
and viable financial services to a greater number of rural clientele and adequate returns to
stakeholders. Accordingly, the Agricultural Development Bank of Pakistan (Reorganization and
Conversion) Ordinance, 2002 was promulgated for taking over the entire undertaking of ADBP and
for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.

1.2 Status

As required under section 3 of the Agricultural Development Bank of Pakistan (Reorganization and
Conversion) Ordinance, 2002, Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited ("the Bank") was incorporated as a
public limited Company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act,
2017) on October 23, 2002, Consequently, under SRO 823(1)/2002 dated November 18, 2002, all
the assets, contracts, liabilities, proceedings and undertakings of ADBP were transferred to, and
vested in Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited on December 14, 2002, the effective date specified by the
Federal Government, on the basis of net worth determined at Rs. 8.7 billion. The Bank is domiciled
in Pakistan and its registered office is situated at 1-Faisal Avenue (Zero Point), Islamabad. The Bank
operates 501 (2023: 501) branches including 25 (2023: 25) Islamic Banking branches in Pakistan as
at the close of the year.

13 Nature of business

The main purpose of the Bank is to provide sustainable rural finance and services particularly to
small farmers and low-income households to strengthen the rural and agricultural sector, mitigate
poverty, capital market and investment activities and other banking business.

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

2.1 These financial statements represent separate financial statements of the Zarai Taraqgiati Bank
Limited. The consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiary are issued separately.

2.2 The financial results of the Islamic banking branches have been consolidated in these financial
statements for reporting purposes, after eliminating inter-branch transactions / balances. Key
financial figures of the Islamic banking branches are disclosed in Annexure II to these financial
statements.

2.3 The Bank believes that there is no significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

2
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2.4 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. These comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP).

In case requirements of the Companies Act, 2017, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, or the
provisions of and directives issued by the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS
or IFAS, the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, and
the said directives shall prevail.

24.1  The disclosures made in these financial statements have been based on a format prescribed by SBP
vide BPRD Circular No. 2 dated February 9, 2023 with further addition made vide BPRD Circular
Letter No, 13 of 2024 dated July 1, 2024 and accounting and financial reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan,

2.4.2  The SBP, vide BSD Circular Letter No. 10, dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of
International Accounting Standard 40 ‘Investment Property’ (IAS 40) for banking companies till
further instructions. Moreover, SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 04, dated February 25, 2015 has
deferred the applicability of Islamic Financial Accounting Standard (IFAS) 3, Profit and loss sharing
on Deposits. Further, according to a notification of Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) dated April 28, 2008, International Financial Reporting Standard 7 ‘Financial
Instruments Disclosure’ (IFRS 7), has not been made applicable for banks. Accordingly, the
requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these financial
statements. However, investments have been classified and disclosed in accordance with the
requirements prescribed by SBP through various circulars.

243  As per BPRD Circular Letter No. 16 of 2024 dated July 29, 2024, unlisted equity securities are
currently carried at the lower of cost or breakup value as per the exemption granted by SBP.
Effective from January 1, 2025, as per the requirement of IFRS 9, these will be measured at fair
value under IFRS 13.

2.4.4 The Bank received an extension from SBP up to December 31, 2025 for application of EIR in
general for all financial assets and liabilities, however as financial assets other than advances and
financial liabilities were already effectively carried at EIR before the implementation of IFRS 9
hence said extension has only been applied on advances. Therefore, advances are now carried at
cost, excluding staff loans which are carried at amortized cost, net of expected credit loss
allowances.

Further, SBP through BPRD Circular Letter No. 1 of 2025 dated January 22, 2025 has clarified the
followings:

- Islamic Banking Institutions (IBIs) are allowed to follow Islamic Financial Accounting Standards
(IFAS) 1 & 2 where applicable and continue the existing accounting methodology on other Islamic
products until issuance of further instruction in this regard,

- The treatment of charity should be in line with the existing practices as defined in SBP instructions
issued via IBD Circular No. 02 of 2008 and should not be recognized as income.

cac
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245  All Islamic products are governed by the product manual approved by the Shariah Board of the
Bank. The related accounting and revenue recognition policies are outlined in notes 442, 4.14.2
these financial statements, respectively. Other than the products disclosed in the aforementioned
notes, all remaining Islamic products are accounted for under IFRS 9.

2.4.6  Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are effective in the current year

As directed by SBP via BPRD Circular Letter No. 7 of 2023 dated April 13, 2023, IFRS 9,
(Financial Instruments) is effective in Pakistan for period beginning on or after January 1, 2024. In
addition, due to the application of IFRS 9, SBP vide BPRD Circular No.2 dated February 9, 2023,
has also amended the format of the annual financial statements. Details regarding the
aforementioned adoption and amendment, including the impact thereof, are discussed in more detail
in note 4.1 to these financial statements.

Except for the above, certain other amendments to standards, interpretations and improvements to
accounting standards became effective, however, these do not have any material effect on the
financial statements of the Bank and, therefore, are not disclosed.

2.4.7  Standards, Interpretations and amendments to accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following new standards and interpretations of and amendments to existing accounting
standards will be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard,
interpretation or amendment;
Effective date (annual
periods beginning on or

after)
- IAS 21 - Lack of exchangeability - (Amendments) January 01, 2025
- IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts January 01, 2026

-IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an  Not yet announced
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments)

The Bank expects that adoption of the same will not affect its financial statements in the period of
initial application.

2.4.8  Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires the
management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
These estimates affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. The areas
where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Bank's unconsolidated financial
statements or where judgement was exercised in the application of accounting policies are as

follows:
Note

Valuation and impairment of financial instruments 49 & 4.16
Classification of investment in subsidiaries and associates 4.5
Valuation and depreciation of property and equipment 4.6
Valuation and depreciation of right-of-use assets and related lease 438
Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 4.10
Valuation of defined benefit plan 4.2
Taxation 4.11
(72
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Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the

revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

3 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for:
- Certain investments that have been marked to market and are carried at fair value.

- Post employment benefits that are recorded at pre: ut value using actuarial valuation.

- Right-of-use assets and their related lease liability w ‘ich are measured at their present values.

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Bank's functional and
presentation currency. The amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand rupees.

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The materila accounting policy information related to preparation of these financial statements are
consistent with those of the previous financial year, except as disclosed in note 4.1 below.

4.1 Changes in accounting policies
4.1.1  Revised format of financial statements

SBP through its BPRD Circular No. 2 dated February 9, 2023, has amended the format of annual
financial statements of banks. All banks are required to prepare their annual financial statements on
the revised format effective from accounting year starting from January 1, 2024. Accordingly, the
Bank has prepared these financial statements on the new format prescribed by SBP. The adoption of
the new format contains additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements’
presentation, primarily due to the implementation of IFRS 9 as applicable in Pakistan. However, the
corresponding figures continue to be classified and disclosed in accordance with the previous
financial accounting and reporting framework.

Adoption of revised financial statements format has also resulted in following material changes (due
to which the corresponding presentations have also been changed):

- Right-of-use-assets (note 11) amounting to Rs. 857,055 million (2023: Rs. 856.939 million) which
were previously shown as part of property and equipment are now shown separately on the
statement of financial position,

- Lease liabilities (note 19) amounting to Rs, 997.225 million (2023: Rs. 983.391 million) which
were previously shown as part of other liabilities are now shown separately on the statement of
financial position.

4.1.2 IFRS 9 - 'Financial Instruments'

During the year, as directed by SBP vide its BPRD Circular No. 7 of 2023 dated April 13, 2023,
IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments' (the Standard) became applicable to the Bank.

BPRD Circular No. 3 of 2022 dated July 5, 2022 issued by SBP provides detailed instructions on
implementation of IFRS 9 (the Application Instructions) for ensuring smooth and consistent
implementation of the standard across banks.

cac
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The Standard addresses recognition, classification, measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities. The Standard has also introduced a new impairment model for
financial assets which requires recognition of impairment charge based on ‘Expected Credit Losses'
(ECL) approach rather than ‘incurred credit losses' approach as previously followed. The ECL has
impact on all the assets of the Bank which are exposed to credit risk.

The Bank has adopted IFRS 9 in accordance with the Application Instructions from January 1,
2024, using the modified retrospective approach and has not restated comparatives for the 2023
reporting period. Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities resulting
from the adoption of IFRS 9 were recognised in the retained earnings as at January 1, 2024 without
restating the comparative figures as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in the
Standard. Accordingly, the information presented for 2023 does not reflect the requirements of IFRS
9 and therefore is not comparable to the information presented for 2024 under IFRS 9.

SBP through its BPRD Circular Letter No. 16 of 2024 dated July 29, 2024, has amended and
extended the timelines for application instructions. Under the revised guidelines, banks are required
to implement modification accounting for financial assets and liabilities in accordance with the
Standard. These changes took effect from October 1, 2024, and have been applied retrospectively
from January 1, 2024. SBP through its BPRD Circular Letter No. 1 of 2025 dated January 22, 2025,
SBP further clarifies that modification accounting to be applied to loans modified on or after
January 1, 2020.

[~
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4.1.2.1.1 As per paragraph 3.2 of the Application Instructions, Government securities in local currency
are exempted from the application of ECL framework, details are mentioned in note 4.1.2.10 to
these financial statements.

4.1.2.1.2 Certain debt securities are held by the Bank in separate portfolios to meet everyday liquidity
needs. The Bank seeks to minimise the costs of managing these liquidity needs and therefore
actively manages the return on the portfolio. That return consists of collecting contractual
payments as well as gains and losses from the sale of financial assets. The investment strategy
often results in sales activity that is significant in value. The Bank considers that under IFRS 9
these securities are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

4.1.2.1.3 The Bank previously classified certain equity investments as Available-for-Sale (AFS), Upon
implementing TFRS 9, the Bank designated these equity investments as strategic and made an
irrevocable election to classify them at FVOCL

4.1.2.2 Tmpact on regulatory capital

The introduction of IFRS 9 has resulted in reduction in regulatory capital of the Banks, which
has reduced their lending capacity and ability to support their clients. In order to mitigate the
impact of ECL models on capital, SBP has determined that it may be appropriate for the banks
to introduce a transitional arrangement for the impact on regulatory capital from the application
of ECL accounting. Annexure B of the Application Instructions issued by SBP has detailed the
transitional arrangement.

The transitional arrangement applies only to provisions for Stage 1 and Stage 2 financial assets.
The transitional arrangement must adjust CET1 capital. Where there is a reduction in CET1
capital due to new provisions, net of tax effect, upon adoption of an ECL accounting model,
the decline in CET!1 capital (the “transitional adjustment amount™”) must be partially included
(i.e., added back) to CET1 capital over the “transition period” of five years.

Moreover, SBP has allowed to adjust the amount of Stage 1 and Stage 2 provisions in Tier 2
Capital that have not been added back to CET 1 and vice versa as per Annexure A of BPRD
Circular no 16 of 2024 dated July 29, 2024,

Had IFRS 9 not been applied then CAR would have been higher by 2.02 bps from 36.01 % to
38.03%.

4.1.2.3 Classification and measurement

Under the new standard, classification and measurement of financial assets depends on how
these are managed based on business model and their contractual cash flow characteristics.
Financial assets that do not meet the Solely Payment of Principal and Interest (SPPI) criteria
are required to be measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVPL) regardless of the
business model in which they are held.

Recognition and initial measurement

Debt securities issued are initially recorded when they are originated, All other financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Bank becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument,

e
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A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured at transaction price. The fair value of a
financial asset on initial recognition is generally its transaction price. If the Bank determines
that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price then the financial
instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair
value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is
recognized in statement of profit and loss account on an appropriate basis over the life of the
asset but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data, or
the transaction is closed out. Advances other than staff loans are initially measured at
transaction price i.e., the amount of loan disbursed at disbursement date.

Staff loans are recognized at fair value at the time of disbursement. The fair value is
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows using the prevailing market rates for
instruments. The difference between the disbursed amount and the fair value at initial
recognition is recorded as a employee benefit expense.

Classification

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset other than advances except for staff loans is classified
as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or FVPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and

is not designated as at FVPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
SPPL

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and

is not designated as at FVPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cashflows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
SPPIL

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Bank may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCIL. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis.

Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in scope of
the standard are never bifurcated. Instead, the whole hybrid instrument is assessed for
classification.

Advances are carried at cost, net of expected credit loss allowances, excluding staff loans,
which are measured at amortized cost.

2
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are either classified as fair value through profit and loss account (FVPL),
when they are held for trading purposes, or at amortized cost. Financial liabilities classified as
FVPL are measured at fair value and all the fair value changes are recognized in statement of
profit and loss account. Financial liabilities classified at amortized cost are initially recorded at
their fair value and subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method. Markup
expense and foreign exchange gain and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss

account. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss
account,

4.1.2.4 Business model assessment

A financial asset is classified as either Held to collect, Held to collect and sale and Others
based on Business model assessment. The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a
business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects
the way the business is managed, and information is provided to management. The assessment
requires judgement based on facts and circumstances on the date of assessment. The
assessment considers the policies and objectives for the portfolio of financial assets, risk
affecting, performance evaluation, business manager’s compensation and historical sales
information.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis are measured at FVPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash
flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

4.1.2.5 Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as
well as interest margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Bank considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Bank considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- prepayment and extension terms;

- terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
loans); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates),

A prepayment feature aligns with SPPI if it mainly represents unpaid principal and profit,
including reasonable compensation for early termination,

2
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4.1.2.6

4.1.2.7

Subsequent measurement

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
at FYPL losses, including any markup or dividend income, are recognised in
statement of profit and loss account.

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

at amortised cost effective interest method in case of investments, lendings to financial
institutions, cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with other
banks, staff loans and other financial assets. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Markup and impairment are recognised
in statement of profit and loss account.

Debt investments  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value and is assessed for

at FYOCI impairment under the new ECL model. Markup income is calculated
using the effective interest method and includes amortisation of
premiums and accretion of discount and impairment are recognised in
profit and loss account. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
OCL On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to statement of profit and loss account.

Equity investments These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are

at FVOCl1 recognised as income in statement of profit and loss account unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment, in which case they are adjusted from the carrying value of
investment, Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are
never reclassified to profit and loss account.

Advances at cost Advances are carried at cost, net of expected credit loss allowances,
excluding staff loans, which are measured at amortized cost, net of
expected credit loss allowances.

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the
financial asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of
any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount for investments and
lendings to financial institution. For financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss
allowance or impairment allowance before January 1, 2024.

The “gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

A
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4.1.2.8 Calculation of markup income and expense

Income from performing advances is recognised on accrual basis as per the terms of the
contract. However, where debt securities, classified as investments in the financial statements,
are purchased at premium or discount, such premium / discount including the transaction cost
is amortized through the statement of profit and loss account over the remaining maturity of the
debt security using the effective interest rate method. The interest income on staff loans is
recognized in line with the EIR, while any expected credit losses are assessed and accounted
for in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9. Income from advances except for staff
loans are recognized in statement of profit and loss account using contractual rate. Similarly,
under the local regulatory requirement, income recoverable on classified advances and
investments (debt securities), is recognized on a receipt basis.

Income on rescheduled / restructured advances and investments is recognized as permitted by
SBP regulations.

Markup expense on financial liabilities (comprising deposits and borrowings) is recognized on
an accrual basis in the period in which it is incurred, based on effective interest rate method.

4.1.2.9 Derecognition
The Bank derecognises a financial asset when:

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire; or

- it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which either:
i. substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred;
ii. the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount
of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized), and the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in OCI is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss account, except that in case of the derecognition of equity securities held at
FVOCI, cumulative gains or losses are transferred to unappropriated profit.

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expired. The Bank also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

4.1.2.10 Impairment

The impairment requirements apply to financial assets measured at amortized cost, and FVOCI
(other than equity instruments), advances at cost and certain loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts. At initial recognition, an impairment allowance (or provision in the case of
commitments and guarantees) is required for expected credit losses ("ECL’) resulting from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (*12-month ECL’). In the event of a
significant increase in credit risk, a provision is required for ECL resulting from all possible
default events over the expected life of the financial instrument (‘lifetime ECL").
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Measurement of ECL
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

- financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive);

- financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows;

- undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to the Bank if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that
the Bank expects to receive; and

- financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any
amounts

Non-Performing financial assets

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost, at
cost and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI, and finance lease receivables are
credit-impaired (referred to as ‘Stage 3 financial assets”). A financial asset is ‘non-performing’
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

- the restructuring of a loan by the Bank on terms that the Bank would not consider otherwise;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually
considered to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving
contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of
impairment, In addition, a agri loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered credit-
impaired even when the regulatory definition of default is different.

Under SBP's IFRS 9 Application instructions, the Bank is not required to compute ECL on
Government Securities and on Government guaranteed credit exposure in local currency. The
Bank is required to calculate ECL on it’s non-performing financial assets as higher of provision
under Prudential Regulations (PR) and ECL under IFRS 9. Further, the Banks are advised to
recognize income on impaired assets (loans classified under PRs i.e., OAEM and Stage 3
loans) on a receipt basis in accordance with the requirements of Prudential Regulations issued
by SBP.

The Bank calculates the ECL against agriculture portfolios as higher of PR and ECL under
IFRS 9 at borrower / facility level as instructed under Annexure A of BPRD Circular no 16 of
2024 dated July 29, 2024.
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Based on the requirements of IFRS 9 Application Instructions, the Bank has performed an ECL
assessment considering the following key elements:

- PD: The probability that a counterparty will default over the next 12 months from the
reporting date (12- month ECL, Stagel) or over the lifetime of the product (lifetime ECL,
Stage 2). PD is estimated using external rating issued by the rating agencies. The Bank has
used Transition Matrix issued by rating agencies for the estimation of PD. The Bank has used
roll-rate method using the days past due (DPD) criteria to estimated PD for its agri portfolio.
PD are then adjusted with forward looking information for calculation of ECL.

- EAD: The expected balance sheet exposure at the time of default, incorporating expectations
on drawdowns, amortisation, pre-payments and forward-looking information where relevant.
The Bank estimates EAD for financial assets carried at an amortised cost and carried at cost
equal to principal plus profit. Each repayment date is assumed to be default point in the
model and the ECL is calculated on EAD at each reporting date and discounted at the

effective interest rate or contractual interest rate for advances other than staff loans for which
effective interest rate is used.

- LGD: An estimate of the loss incurred on a facility upon default by a customer. LGD is
calculated as the difference between contractual cash flows due and those that the Bank
expects to receive, including from the liquidation of any form of collateral. It is expressed as
a percentage of the exposure outstanding on the date of classification of an obligor.

Presentation of allowance for Expected Credit Loss in the Statement of Financial Position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

- Financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of
the assets,

- For advances measured at cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
advances.

- Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision in other liabilities.

- where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the
Bank does not identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on
the drawn component and instead presents a combined loss allowance for both components.
The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn
component is presented as a provision; and

- debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognized in the statement of
financial position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the
loss allowance is disclosed and is recognized in OCI.

4.1.2.11 Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

A SICR is assessed in the context of an increase in the risk of a default occurring over the life
of the financial instrument when compared to that expected at the time of initial recognition. It
is not assessed in the context of an increase in the ECL. The Bank used several qualitative and
quantitative measures in assessing SICR. Quantitative measures relate to deterioration of
Obligor Risk Ratings (ORR) or where principal and / or markup payments are 60 days or more
past due. Qualitative factors include unavailability of financial information and pending
litigations.
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As required by the Application Instructions, financial assets may be reclassified out of Stage 3
if they meet the requirements of PR issued by SBP. Financial assets in Stage 2 may be
reclassified to Stage 1 if the conditions that led to a SICR no longer apply. However, a
minimum period of 3 months from initial downgrade is required before any facility is moved
back to Stage 1 from Stage 2. For a facility to move back from Stage 3 to Stage 2, it should
meet the criteria defined under the respective Prudential Regulations for de-classification of

account / facility. An exposure cannot be upgraded from Stage 3 to Stage 1 directly and should
be upgraded to Stage 2 initially.

IFRS 9 includes a rebuttable presumption that a default does not occur later than 90 days past
due and it also presumes that there is SICR if credit exposure is more than 30 days past due. In
order to bring consistency, SBP has allowed the backstop to the rebuttable presumption of days
past due of credit portfolio against a specific credit facility and its stage allocation under IFRS
9 as mentioned in Annexure-C of BPRD Circular No. 3 of 2022. However, banks are free to
choose more stringent days past due criteria. Bank align its policy with Annexure-C of BPRD
Circular No. 3 of 2022; hence, SICR is considered if credit exposure exceeds 60 days past due.

4.1.2.12 Undrawn loan commitments and guarantees:

Financial guarantees’ are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. ‘Loan commitments’ are firm
commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

When estimating lifetime ECL for undrawn loan commitments, the Bank estimates the
expected portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The
ECL is then based on the present value of the expected cash flows if the loans are drawn down,
based on a probability-weighting of the three scenarios.

4.1.2.13 Governance, ownership and responsibilities

The Bank has set up a robust governance framework requiring Risk Management, Finance,
Business, Credit Risk, Internal Audit and IT functions to ensure compliance with IFRS 9
requirements,

The Bank's Credit Risk Review & Administration Division performs credit risk assessment,
monitors Significant Increase in Credit Risk of the borrowers, reviews Credit Ratings and
obligor attributes.

The Technology Operations & Support Division extracts the data required for ECL
calculations. IT Division also provide support for system development and upgrades.

The Bank’s Finance & Accounts Division takes ownership of ECL models and methodologies
used in calculation of ECL. Finance & Accounts Division assess the financial impact, meet the
financial reporting requirements and presents quarterly results to Board of Directors (BOD) /
its Board Sub Committee.

The Enterprise Risk Management Division calculates impact of ECL on bank’s capital
adequacy, leverage ratio and Liquidity requirements.

As per the Bank's policy, the Bank’s Internal Audit function carries out ECL model validation,
reviews IFRS 9 methodology and impact calculated by Finance & Accounts Division.
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4.2 Staff retirement benefits

The Bank operates the following staff retirement benefits for its employees:

a) Pension scheme

The Bank operates defined benefit funded pension scheme approved by the income tax
authorities, for its eligible employees who opted for employees' benefits scheme, introduced in
1975 and 1977 for clerical / non-clerical staff and for executives / officers, respectively. The
Bank's costs are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by independent
actuary by using 'Projected Unit Credit Method'.

b) Gratuity scheme

The Bank operates a defined benefit funded gratuity scheme approved by the income tax
authorities, established upon introduction of Staff Regulations - 2005 (SR-2005) for the

employees governed under SR-2005. Contributions to this Fund are made by the Bank on the
basis of actuarial valuation.

) Provident fund scheme

The Bank operates a defined contribution funded provident fund scheme for its employees who
did not opt for the employees' benefit scheme introduced in 1975 and 1977 for clerical / non-
clerical staff and for executives / officers respectively. Under this scheme, equal contributions
at defined rates are made by the member employees and the Bank. The Bank also operates non-
contributory provident fund for its employees who opted for the new employees' benefit
scheme, as mentioned above. Under this, non-contributory provident fund, contributions at
defined rates are made by its member employees only. Both of these provident funds are
approved by the income tax authorities.

d) Benevolent scheme

The Bank also has two funded defined benefit benevolent fund schemes for its employees,
separately for officers and for clerical and non-clerical staff. Equal contribution to these
schemes are made by employees and the Bank. The Bank is also liable to meet any shortfall in
the fund, determined on the basis of actuarial valuation.

e) Post retirement medical benefits

The Bank operates an unfunded defined benefit post retirement medical benefit scheme for all
of its employees. Provision is made in the financial statements for the benefit based on
actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains / losses are accounted for in the manner similar to pension
scheme.

f) Employees' compensated absences

The Bank accounts for all accumulating compensated absences when the employees render
service that increases their entitlement to future compensated absences. The compensated
absences are only encashable at the time of retirement and that too for a certain period
provided in the terms of employment. Provision is made in the financial statements for the
benefit based on entitled un-availed leave balances carried forwarded to the next year on the
basis of actuarial valuation carried out using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'.
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4.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, balances with treasury banks and balances with other
banks.

4.4 Advances
4.4.1 Loans and advances

These are stated at cost less expected credit loss allowances except for staff loans which are
stated at amortized cost less credit loss allowances.

44.2  Islamic Financing and Related Assets

Diminishing Musharaka

In Diminishing Musharaka financing, the Bank enters into Musharaka based on Shirkat-ul-milk
for financing an agreed share of fixed asset (e.g. house, land, plant or machinery) with its
customers and enters into periodic rental payment agreement for the utilisation of the Bank’s
Musharaka share by the customer. The customer purchases the Bank's share gradually as per
his undertaking.

4.5 Investments
Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Bank has significant influence but not control.
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Bank has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries and associates is reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists
the investment’s recoverable amount is estimated at higher of its value in use and its fair value
less cost 1o sell. Gains and losses on disposal of investments in subsidiaries and associates are
included in the profit and loss account,

4.6 Property and equipment and depreciation
Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment losses (if any) and consists of
expenditure incurred, advances made and other costs directly attributable to operating fixed
assets in the course of their construction and installation. Cost also includes applicable
borrowing costs, if any. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as and
when assets are available for use as intended by the management.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment, except freehold land which is not amortized and capital work-in-
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.
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Depreciation is computed over the estimated useful lives of the related assets at the rates set
out in note 10.2 to these financial statements, after taking into account the residual value, if
any. Depreciation is charged on reducing balance method except for vehicles, computer
equipment and leasehold land which are depreciated / amortized on straight line method. The
residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each reporting date,

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the assets are available for use while no
depreciation is charged in the month in which the assets are disposed off.

Gains / losses, if any, on disposal of property and equipment fixed assets are charged to the
profit and loss account during the year.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account.

4.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized from the month when these assets are available
for use, using the straight line method, whereby the costs of the intangible assets are amortized
over their useful lives over which economic benefits are expected to flow to the Bank. The
useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

4.8 Right-of-use assefs and their related lease liability

4.8.1 Right of-use assets

On initial recognition, right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to initial lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation /
accumulated impairment losses and are adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability. The
remeasurement of lease liability will only occur in cases where the terms of the lease are
changed during the lease tenor. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over their expected useful
lives using the straight-line method.

Depreciation on additions (new leases) is charged from the month in which the leases are
entered into. No depreciation is charged after the leases are matured or terminated.

4.8.2 Lease liability against right-of-use assets

The lease liabilities are initially measured as the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate,

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. The lease liability is also remeasured to reflect any reassessment or change in lease
terms. These remeasurements of lease liabilities are recognised as adjustments to the carrying
amount of related right-of-use assets after the date of initial recognition.
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Each lease payment is allocated between a reduction of the liability and a finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to the profit and loss account as markup expense over the lease period

so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

4.9 Impairment

Carrying values of assets are reviewed at each reporting date for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be
recoverable. If such indication exists, and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts, Recoverable amount
is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The resulting impairment loss is
taken to the profit and loss account except for the impairment loss on revalued assets, which is
adjusted against the related revaluation surplus to the extent that the impairment loss does not
exceed the surplus on revaluation of that asset,

4.10 Assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

The Bank occasionally acquires assets in settlement of certain advances. These are stated at the
carrying value of such assets.

4.11 Taxation

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after
taking into account available tax credits, exemptions and rebates as laid down in the applicable
income fax law. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments wherever considered
necessary, relating to prior years which arise from assessments framed / finalized during the
year.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for all temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting
purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is
based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities using the tax rates enacted at the reporting date. A deferred tax asset is recognized
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available and the credits
can be utilized. Deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefits will be realized. The Bank also recognizes deferred tax asset / liability on
deficit / surplus on revaluation of securities in accordance with the requirements of TAS 12
‘Income Taxes'. The related deferred tax asset / liability is adjusted against the related deficit /
surplus.

Prior years

The taxation charge for prior years represents adjustments to the tax charge relating to prior
years, arising from assessments and changes in estimates made during the current year, except
otherwise stated.

4.12 Borrowings / deposits and their costs
Borrowings / deposits are recorded at the proceeds received.

Borrowings / deposits costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which these are
incurred using effective mark-up / interest rate method,
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4.13 Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to a repurchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements
as investments and the counter party liability is included in borrowings. Securities purchased
under an agreement to resell (reverse repo) are not recognized in the financial statements as
investments and the amount extended to the counter party is included in lendings to financial
institutions. The difference between the purchase / sale and re-sale / re-purchase price is
recognized as mark-up income / expense on a time proportion basis, as the case may be.

4.14 Revenue recognition

4.14.1 - Mark-up / interest on advances (other than Islamic financing which is disclosed in Note
4.14.2) and returns on investments are recognized on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method except that mark-up / interest on non-performing advances and
investments is recognized on a receipt basis, in accordance with the requirements of the
Prudential Regulations issued by SBP. Where the debt securities are purchased at premium or
discount, such premium / discount is amortised through the profit and loss account over the
remaining period of maturity.

- Fee, brokerage and commission income is recognized on accrual basis,

- Profit / (loss) on sale of investments is credited / charged to the profit and loss account for the
current year.

- Income from interbank deposits in saving accounts is recognized in the profit and loss
account as it accrues using the effective interest method.

- Dividend income is recognized when the Bank's right to receive has been established.

- Recoveries against loans written-off under Government relief packages are accounted for on
cash receipt basis.

- Operating lease rentals are recorded in the profit and loss account on a time proportion basis
over the term of lease arrangements.

4.14.2 Revenue recognition under product manual as approved by Shariah Board of the Bank

- Income from diminishing musharaka is recognised on time propoertionate basis over the term
of contract.

4.15 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange rate
prevailing on the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
expressed in Pak Rupee terms at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date.

4.16 Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Bank becomes a
party to the contractual provision of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual right to future cash flows from the asset expires or is transferred along with the risk
and reward of ownership of the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised when obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the financial asset and
liability is recognised in the profit and loss account of the current period.
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4.17  Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the
financial statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off and the Bank intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities, simultaneously.

4,18 Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the financial statements require measurement at,
and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Bank's financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
utilises market observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair
value measurements are categorised into different levels based on how observable the inputs
used in the valuation technique utilised are (the ‘fair value hierarchy’):

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items (unadjusted).
Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than Level 1 inputs.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market data),

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the item and transfers of items between
levels are recognised in the period they occur,

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Bank that either require fair value
measurements or only fair value disclosures as at December 31, 2024 are disclosed in note 40,

4.19 Dividend distribution and appropriation

Dividends (including bonus dividend) and other appropriations (except appropriations which
are required by law) are recognized in the period in which these are approved.

4.20 Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss atiributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares, if any.

4.21 Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged either in providing
particular products or services (business segment), or in providing product or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment), and is subject to risk and rewards
that are different from those of other segments. The Bank is engaged in providing agri-
financing and branch banking, islamic banking and treasury operations and operates only in
Pakistan.

4,22 Related party transactions

Transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at
arm's length at normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party
transactions using valuation modes as admissible.
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4.23 Other payables

Liabilities for other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the

consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
Bank.

4.24 Other receivables

These are recognized at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given. An assessment
is made at each reporting date to determine, whether there is an indication that a financial asset,
or a group of financial assets, may be impaired. If such an indication exists, the estimated
recoverable amount of that asset is determined and an impairment loss is recognized for the
difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying value.

4.25 Statutory reserve

In compliance with the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Bank is
required to maintain a statutory reserve to which an appropriation equivalent to 20% of the
profit after tax is made till such time the reserve fund equals the paid up capital of the Bank,
However, thereafter, the contribution is reduced to 10% of the profit after tax.

4.26 Cash reserve requirement

The Bank maintains liquidity equivalent to at least 6% of its time and demand deposits in the
form of liquid assets i.e. cash and banks.

4.27 Grants

Grants of non-capital nature are recognized as deferred income at the time of their receipt.
Subsequently, these are recognized in the profit and loss account to the extent of the actual
expenditure incurred. Expenditure incurred against grants committed but not received, is
recognized directly in the profit and loss account and reflected as a receivable from donors.

Grants that compensate the Bank for the cost of an asset are recognized in the profit and loss
account as other operating income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

The grant related to an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position initially as
deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that it will be received and that the Bank
will comply with the conditions attached to it.

4.28 Contingencies

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Bank has a possible obligation as a result of past
events, existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Bank or the Bank has a
present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
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2024 2023
Note Rupees in 000
3 CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
In hand
Local currency 1,133,799 911,540
With State Bank of Pakistan in:
Local currency current account 5.1 1,621,700 1,834,020
With National Bank of Pakistan in;
Local eurrency current account 180,216 393,638
Local currency deposit account 52 188.231 520,283
368,447 913,921
Prize bonds 1,866 1,698
3,125,812 3,661,179
Less: Credit loss allowance held against cash and balances with treasury banks - -
Cash and balances with treasury banks - net of credit loss allowance 3125812 3,661,179

5.1  This represents current accounts maintained with SBP under cash reserve requirement of the Banking Companies Ordinance,
1962.

5.2 These carry mark-up at rates ranging from 13.50% to 22.20% (2023: 14.5% to 20.50%) per annum.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in "000
6 BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan
In current accounts 111,847 99,618
In deposit accounts 6.1 7,382,163 31,825,955
7,494,010 31,925,573
Less: Credit loss allowance held against balances with other banks (1,484) -
Balances with other banks - net of credit loss allowance 7,492,526 31,925,573
6.1  These carry mark-up at rates ranging from 6.75% to 24% (2023: 14.50% to 24.50%) per annum.
2024 2023
Note Rupees in "000
7 LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Call money lendings T2 14,500,000 3,000,000
Musharakah lending 7.3 13,650,000 600,000
Repurchase agreement lendings (reverse repo) 7.4 2,804,700 2,960,700
30,954,700 6,560,700
Less: Credit loss allowance held against lending to financial institutions (4,628) -
Lending to financial institutions - net of credit loss allowance 30,950,072 6,560,700
7.1  Particulars of lendings
In local currency 30,954,700 6,560,700
In foreign currencies - -
30,954,700 6,560.700

7.2 This carries mark-up at rates 13.85% to 13.90% (2023: 22% to 22.75% ) per annum having maturity during January 2025.
7.3 This carries mark-up at rates 12% to 12.75% (2023: 22% ) per annum having maturity during January 2025.

7.4  This carries mark-up at rates 13.28% (2023: 22.3% ) per annum having maturity during January 2025.
17~
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7.5  Securities held as collateral against lendings to financial institutions

2024 2023
Held by F.urlher Held by Further
given as Total given as Total
Bank Bank
collateral collateral
a— 1] T T G —————————
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2,804,700 - 2,804,700 2,960,700 - 2,960,700

7.6 Lending to financial institutions - Particulars of credit loss allowance

1‘[024
: Credit loss
Lending || nowance held
Rupees in "000
Domestic
Performing Stage 1 30.954.700 4,628
Under performing Stage 2 = =
Non-performing Stage 3
Substandard v =
Doubtful - -
Loss = =
Total 30,954,700 43623
2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Rupees in '000
Opening balance " = " -
Impact of adoption of IFRS9 490 - - 490
Balances as at 01 January after adoping IFRS 9 490 - - 490
New financial assets originated or pruchased | 4,628 || - | - ” 4,628
Financial assets that have been derecognised (490) - - (490)
4,138 - - 4,138
Closing balance 4,628 - - 4,628

o2
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8.4
84.1

8.4.2

Quality of securities

Details regarding quality of FVPL securities are as follows:

2024

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2023

Cost
Rupees in '000

Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed

Pakistan Investment Bonds

Details regarding quality of FVOCI securities are as follows:

Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed

Market Treasury Bills
Pakistan Investment Bonds
Ijarah Sukuks

Shares

Listed companies
Food and personal care products - cost

Unlisted companies

Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limitec

Pakistan Agricultural Storage and
Services Corporation Limited

3,404,062 -
95,249,487 231,281,101
268,124,131 131,183,410
2,159,001 3,922,164
365,532,619 366,386,675
89,296 89.296
2024 2023
k Break
Cost Breakup Cost reakup
value value
Rupees in "000
10,523 17,327 10,523 8,873
- 1,557,625 - 1,629,500
10,523 1,574,952 10,523 1,638,373

Investment in Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited has been fully provided for due to negative
break up value in prior financial statements. Cost per share is Rs. 10 to Rs. 13.5 having total cost

amounting to Rs. 10.523 million,

Investments in Pakistan Agricultural Storages and Services Corporation Limited was transferred
to the Bank at the time of conversion of ADBP into the Bank at nominal value of Rs. 1. Cost per
share is Rs. 1,000 having total cost amounting to Rs, 2.50 million,

2
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2024 2023
Cost
Rupees in '000

Non Government debt securities

Listed

- AAA g =

- AA+ AA, AA- 1,977,271 2,126,906

- A+ A, A- 113,750 -
2,091,021 2,126,906

Unlisted

- AAA = -

- AA+, AA, AA- . .

- A+ A, A- 265,250 328,750

265,250 328,750

2024 2023

Rupees in "000

8.5 Information related to subsidiary company

Country of incorporation Pakistan
Percentage of Holding (%) 100 100
Assets 2,040,747 1,727,771
Liabilities 561,829 519,214
Revenue 220,919 196,868
Profit after tax 218,767 166,714
Total comprehensive income 270,362 196,336
coe
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2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
9.5 Particulars of write offs:

9.5.1 Against credit loss allowance / provisions - =
Directly charged to profit and loss account - -

9.5.2 Write offs of Rupees 500,000 and above 9.6 - -
Write offs of below Rupees 500,000 - -

9.6 Details of Loan write offs of Rupees 500,000 and above

In terms of sub-section (3) of section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 the
statement in respect of written-off loans or any other financial relief of five hundred thousand
rupees or above allowed to a person(s) during the year has to be disclosed. Detail of charge offs
out of extinguished loan portfolio exceeding five hundred thousand rupees is NIL.

9.7  Particulars of charged off

In terms of Prudential Regulations for Agricultural Financing - Part B (specific regulations) the
Bank extinguishes its loans through provisions. The total balance for these off-balance sheet
loans extinguished against provisions as at December 31, 2024 amounts to Rs. 53,081.05
million (2023: Rs. 56,976.83 million) with an addition of Rs. 1,892.48 million (2023: Rs.
7,123.56 million) as charge off loans during the year.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
10 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Capital work-in-progress 10.1 181,928 69,326
Property and equipment 10.2 1,662,691 1,469,286
1,844,619 1,538,612
10.1  Capital work-in-progress
Civil works 55,146 61,385
Equipment 116,566 -
Consultancy charges 9,801 7,618
Others 10.1.1 415 323
181,928 69,326

10.1.1 This includes soil testing and other charges incurred at sites.

(#

3210) Sip wilis e




<
N
o
N
T
o
O
o
L
o
-
<
)
Z
Z
<

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

LLWJ ZTBL s

(8606%) (9T1'T9)
1697991 PLY'B69'E SOS'IOE'S  169°799'1  L¥9'EET 08€'0F1 98T'69F T 98T'69F'1  STE'pIC'E 119°E86'F 217
(L10°Ly) (z6z'09)
%0T 16286 9STFI0°1 LESTIT'] 16T°86 £ST'BE $08'9T g10'eet S10°€T1 020'€20'1 SE0OPI°T SAPIRA
Ay - uawdmba 1amo
%EE/%0T T 9£0°50T 8€0'50Z 4 < - z z 9€0'50T 8€0°60Z pue 9o130 ‘sndmo)
(zs9) (659) wswdmba a0
%EE/%0T  BTL9SS Z5L'08p'1 08%'LE0'T  BTL'OSS 6CE°CEL 0rs'18¢ $SS0IE $SS01E SPO'OPE'T 6657959°1 pue 2o1jj0 ‘sandwo)
(6zH'1) (siv'n)
%0T [ %01 1202T CEEPPE PLS P98 1¥T0ZT LTL'eT 191°¢1 £$8°6TT £58°6TT SE0°TTE 888°15¢ S2ImXY pue amimng
day - pue|
%< 8506 991°TI $TIT 850°6 Lty = SEL’6 SEC’6 689°11 LAl b ployasea] uo s3up[ing
PuE]
%S LEP'LTT 108°2rE srzoLs LHrLee ¥60°T1 150°01 06%'6CT 06¢'62C LOL'OEE L61°09S ployesea] uo sFuipjing
pue|
%S SEL'OVY 8S0'E6T £6L'EEL SEL'DPP 1Z5°¢T ¥Z8'L ZEV' IS ZEr'osy LES'69C 696'SCL pioyeay uo s3uipymg
s1eak 56 01 O
10y suua aser] QLT ZLy'9 Lol 0LTY 917 - 98y 98Py 95zZ'e TrL0T pIoyasea - pue’y
- 616°S01 - 616501 616°S01 o = 616501 616501 - 616501 pjoysalg - pueg
Sarrasressnnens _.—._.I._. -u_ m@ﬂ&-—ﬁ— L L T T T T T T T T T T T T I R LI L L
(1zsodsip uo
(paasajsuen) anjeAn
uopepadag anea wopedadag 5 aneA yoog uonepaadap) Guindnp) o anfeA uonenaidag N
jo WooglaN  PREINEMYY Lt JaN Bmsop) FEE LR r P 00d BN qoog 13N  PIAENWNNIY 10D uwopditasag
(suonippy  Sumadg *
aey vogenpaadag ¥ !

¥T07 1€ 10qmaoaq

$Z07 “1E A2 PIpua Ieax

$707 T Adenuep

yuamdmba pue Huadeag 71

J




<
N
o
N
T
o
O
o
L
o
-
<
)
Z
Z
<

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

LLWJ ZTBL s

(LZ8EST) (D3 1°881)

987'69%'1  STERIS'E 119°686'y  9RZ'69¥'1  799'91T P6LCRI LOS'PES'T  LOSPES'T  06F'ISHE L66'S86'
‘ F 2277
(€s6'ek1) (90€°8L1)
%0T S10°€Tt 0Z0°€TO'1 SEoori’t  SI0'ECT £VE'9Y or0'FT 1L9'6L1 1L9°6L1 0£9°021°1 10£°00€°T SO
{152°t) (1sz't) aqy - wemdmbs 1p0
%EE /%0 T 9£0°S0T 8E0°60Z T 5 2 T [4 LRTTIT 68T'CTIT PUE 2230 Jayndmior
(€79'2) (€29'7) uatdmbs 1210
%EE/%0T  ¥SSOIE SPO'OPE'l 665'959°1  $SS01E SHLB01 OFFEEL 658°58T 658°S8T £T6'6ET'1 78L°6TS" pue 20130 “sandwo))
%0T /%01  ES8'6ZT SE0'TTE 888°1SS £SR'6TT 810'sz 85¥'6 EI¥'SHT C1¥'ShT L10°L6T 0EF'THS SIMXY PUB SINGILLIT]
€gay - pug|
%S SESH 689°TT $TTIT $E5'6 zos - LEO'OT LEO'0T LT vzTiiz plotjasea] uo sSuppng
pue]
%S 06v°62C LOL'OEE L61'095 06¥'6TT £E6°'T1 0z5'9 £06'VET £06'VET PLL'SIE LLY'ESS ployasea] uo sauip[ing
pue|
%S TEPOSH LES'69T 696°STL ZEP95Y $06'ET 9EETI 000°8%% 000'89+ ££9°5HT EE9°ETL pjoyeay uo sSupjimng
smeah 66 03 OF
10) suuo) aser] 98P 9679 L0l 98ty LT - 0L E0LY 6£0°9 TrL'ol PIOYasEa] - pue’]
- 616601 = 616601 616°501 - - 616°S01 616°S0T E 616'S01 Pjoysa1] - pue
L T P T R T T sam QQQ. -—w m@ﬂn—q—“ e EsssEsIsaRss s ssnatassa R anaa RasREsbssssENTIIRRREEEEE
(eaodip o (pasaagsuer anpe
vopepaadaq anjeA uopepaidag s anfeA yoog uonwpaidap) P ies .w dsi u: oo~ w an[eA uonsRaadag s
jo Noog AN PAIRMINIDY 10D 19N 3mso|y [ aBaey M\ P 00 3N joog 1aN PoIEIAIINIDY 00 uoydpisaqg

)8 [EOUUY

Wi I {suopippy  ZmuadQ

€207 ‘1€ J2quiag

Z0Z 1€ Pqudag pIpus Jvag £207 1 ATsnuwp

J




<
N
o
N
T
o
O
o
L
0
-
<
)
Z
=z
<

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

LLWJ ZTBL s

2277

‘ugspie g 10 yueq wetidojosaq) Jeimynoudy

Jo oweu oy Ut [{us are {Jiw Sy :€¢OT) [ "$Y Jo anfeA jooq Suiaeyq pue| ployases] pue (uenpu 98'1 Sy *£Z0Z) UOHIMM 9g'] “SY Jo 1500 FUIARY pup] ployeay Jo SUSWMIOP 2PN Y],

679 10971 91109 T
€99°0t6 BLTY16
6£0°50C 6£0°50T
STL'TEY 6LS'8LY
oze'e ozTe'e
ITH'8S ZRERS
oo, v saedny
ET0T yZoz

SIOIaA

OV - mamdmbe o pue 2oggo ‘sanduio)
justndmba 32130 pue 20130 ‘Rindmo)

Pue] ployesea]

:dnsyeang asim Lio3ayea Bumo(ioy Sutary osn ul [[ys swa) pasioaidap Afjny e juewdinba pue Auadoad jo jsoo ut papnjdng

Auadosd appt Ajueiodum jo yunoure Fulkmey

S0l

£01

E
/.w.




<
(9
T
o
O
o
L
o
-l
<
)
Z
Z
<

270
6E6'9S8 # 6E6°9SR $S0'LS8 = SS0°LSR 1€ Iaquada(] 1e junowe Surdires Surso]d 18N
696'95T - 69695 SSHSLT = SSHSLT 1eaf 2 10 28N> uonerdaidaq
£61°1T > £61°1T 11€'6¥ . Lesr Teak 21 Sunnp suondje
£20'bTE 3 £T0PCE 788'¥TE - T88'vTE 182K oy} Surmp suonippy
8LOTIS = 8L0'118 6£6'958 - 6£6'958 10 Arenue je junoure Suifires Sumado 1N ‘Q
SLR0IS = SLEOIS TLE'E6S + TLE'E6S uonesida pare|nWNooY ,W
€66°1TE' T - gs6'1ee’ T 1Ig0sKT - T1E0SH 1500 .
10 Arenuef 3y . B
e T oy M
| mmon | seyo [ ssupppng | oL [ sewpQ | s3wppng | w
ETOT ¥zoz i
SLASSV ASN-40-LHOM™E 11 /w
JATS ‘PsTD poounge wised)|  JuswRpnuR Bd sy 0s [ 9€l 00SE AT o :
JAHS ‘nsi) poowge wised|  uawapnUS 1d sy - $TS'T £18°¢ 02S-HZV A¥H TpuoH & ]
dAH Ue[g Jesumsnpy | quowdpnua ad sy | OFS 90T £9L'1 TLE-[AV SV BIOAOL
JATS ‘ye[nuenry ppays| juewepnua 1ad sy - I 88L°1 96~[H - 9 [ SU[Y Efjoi0]) BodoL
e g0, 01 soadny
paazoad
siafng Jo stenapted [esodsIp jo 3poA s angea yoog 150D uondprasag

:smO[[0F st are 1eak off) Suunp sanred paejal 0 $19558 paxyy Jo [esodsip Jo ma 0701

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

LLWJ ZTBL s




<
N
N
T
o
O
o
L
o
-
<
)
Z
Z
<

2477 -

(uommu SHR081 "SY (ETOT) UONINU HSG"EET S JO 1500 BUIALY 2SN UT [[S SWall pastuiowre ATy are Sjasse S[qUIUeIuE Jo 1500 Ul papnjau] 71 ,M

2,

ST6'SST  OLI'8ST S60'PS  STESST  BST8S PZOIPT  6ST'EL  G6ST'EL  TI6'6TT 1L0°E0€ m

sreaf € %EEEE & 180'78 180'28 = = = = o 180°Z8 180'78 QY - 2mmyos pindwo) "w
smak ¢ %EEEE ST6'SST  680'90T v10°T9F  STA'SST  8ST'RS PTO'IYT  6SI'EL  6SI'EL  LE8°LPI 066°02T armmyos Jandwo) :

T T T T TP TR P T TP P e H—H—@— H—w WUH-W-.-H— T L L L T R P P

g

i i anjea uopesplowe - In[eA jooq adren P, .“..._a”_: anjea  uopESHJoWE 150
A1) Inyasn owm””“ Hooq 19N PIIENUWNIDY & 19u 3ujso]) UONBSHIOWY nipe M.:n..“_a do ooq 32N PAEINUNDY 2 uopduasag
€207 "1€ quadag £70T "T€ JOqIIada(] PIPUI JBI{ £707 ‘1 Aenuep
STP'TLL  LS¥'TOF TI6WLS  ST¥TLL  LIE¥I] LIS0E  SZ6'SST  ST6'SSC  OL1'SST S60°+FS
steak ¢ 9%EETEE . 130°Z8 180'Z8 - - = = = 180°z8 180'8 gayv - areamyos sndwo)
steaf ¢ %EEEE sTy'zll  90%'0TE 16826  STY'TLl  LIEWIL LI8'0E  STGE'SST  STE'SST  680°90T ¥10°29¢ aremyos wndwo)
B T e gm_- uhm 80&—.—1 L L L T Ty
anjeA
anjea uoyBsIAoWE anjeA yooq adaey2 anjes  uonesIomE
UONEZNI0WYE 130 SUORIPPY Nooq jpu 150D
| InJosf) Joaey Hooq 2N PEMWNIDY j2u 3ujso]) uopESpIOWY Japuado No0q @) pPAE[MUNNDY nonduasag
PZ0Z “1£ 12quddaq PZ0T ‘1E 9G] PIPUI JEIY #Z0T ‘1 Adenuep

SLIASSY ATAIDNVINI I

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

LLWJ ZTBL s




<
N
o
N
T
o
O
o
L
o
-
<
)
Z
Z
<

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

) ZTBL

2377

“JI[IQEI] XE] PA9NPaI JO ULIOY 3y} UF SIBAA 1INy I Pazi[eal 9q 0} Pajoadxd $)1Jaudq 2]qeqoad 243 JO AIBWNSI 153q SUIWITEURW ) sjuasaidal S1y ], 'SI0UBADE
$5018 JO 9] 0} PIIOLSII UIQ SBY SWY J2AYS SIUB[E] JJO PUE SIOUBAPE 10§ uOISIA0Id JO WIR[d Y *[QOT ‘3OUBUIPIQ) X, SWOU] 3y} 01 J[MPAYIS GUIAIS Y} JO SUL U] - [°E]

PIROELTI  (8850Z8€) EPISIT | 65T 9E0°ST
(£06'%29°1) (790°698) (88T°vL) (£55°189)
TEF85S1) (790°698) - (08€'689)
(19%'09) - (88T°FL) LT8'L
Lie'sse'yl  (9ZS°159°T) 1€4°68T°L TISLILST
ST0PL8'91 - 1£7°68T°1 ¥8SH8S ST
(867'815°T) (975°159°7) . 8TTEE]
** 000, ul s3dny vttt
€20 ‘1€ 120 2/V T19d €207°1
JoquIda([ 3y Ul pasiuSesdy mw pasiudedny Arenuer )y
Z0SCLTEl  (ISSLITD (SL6'SL6T) vITSE9Y FIS0ELZI
(£v9°691°S) (18S'L11°T) (168°307) = (10C°Ev1'%)
E0V 1€5°0) (1962L6) - - (Z¥'8Ss'1)
(zse'sLa) A (168°802) - (19+'99)
(888°799'7) (065'7r1) % “ (86T'815°T)
SHI'TPL'81 - (¥80°L9L°T) PIT'SES'Y S10vL891
sesannees @::- _u_ Muunm_._“ sssnnsass
P07 ‘1€ 120 DIV TRd 6 SyAI jo PT0T 1
13qua2a Iy W pasmuBosay uwy pasiufosay  mondope jo poedw  Lienuer )y

cc

(A4

ajoN

SJUSUNSIAUL JO UONENjeAdl uo snjdmg
UOLBZIMOIE PUR UOLBIIAIP XB) Pajeia[addy

00 $20uaIayIp Kivsodwid) Aqexe],

§90UBApE pue sueo] Sujuuiojiad-uou jsureSe UOISIACL]
suejd jgauaq paugaQg
1U0 SDUAIJIP Aderoduwsd) a[quanpa(g

SJUQUIISIAUL JO UONEN[BABL U0 snjding
UOHEZIMOWE PUB UONERIOAIAOp XB) PIIRIA[220Y
sueyd Jjauaq pauga(]
10 sPWIIIPIP LAresodud) I[qEXE ],
SO0UEAPE puR sueo| Suruioprad-uou 1suiese UOISIAOI]

1U0 SDUIIJIP Atedodumd) squanpad

SLASSY XVL aqaydddad €1

I8 i

g




ZTBL v ANNUAL REPORT 2024

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
14 OTHER ASSETS

Income / mark-up accrued in local currency on :

- advances 14.1 13,421,515 11,235,916

- securities 12,218,003 6,702,050

- deposits 34316 446,626
Amount recoverable from Federal Government 14.2 2,887,888 2,853,635
Tax recoverable 14.3 422,652 422,652
Branch adjustment account 1,625,809 1,626,582
Taxation (payments less provision) 14.4 1,453,883 1,677,055
Receivable from defined benefit plans: 38.6.1

gratuity scheme - SR - 2005 1,184,271 1,140,994
Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 14.5 407,301 420,731
Due from Islamic Banking 3,655 -
Stationery and stamps in hand 163,445 147,042
Stock of farm machinery 11,237 11,237
Advances against salary and expenses 60,882 60,339
Security deposits 7,899 7,199
Advances and other prepayments 14.6 1,656,453 644,944
Clearing and settlement 57,706 589,903
Others 276,481 128,713

35,893,396 28,115,618

Credit loss allowance held against other assets 14.7 (1,465,073) (988,669)
Other assets - net of credit allowance 34,428,323 27,126,949

14.1 This does not include Rs. 12,290.111 million (2023: Rs. 11,055.675 million) on account of
unrealised mark-up on non performing loans and advances kept in the memorandum account in
accordance with the Prudential Regulations for Agriculture Financing.

14.2  This includes amount recoverable from Federal Government on account of crop loan insurance
premium amounting to Rs. 2,802.541 million (2023: Rs. 2,697.820 million), small livestock
farmers premium amounting to Rs. 80.486 million (2023: Rs. 150.95 million) and animal
tagging charges amounting to Rs. 4.86 million (2023: Rs. 4.86 million).

143 This includes tax recoverable of Rs. 309.359 million (2023: Rs. 309.359 million) for
assessment years 1991-92 to 2013-14 as disclosed in Note 15.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
14.4 Taxation - net
Opening receivable 1,677,055 2,495,135
Charge during the year 32 (9,955,262) (7.837,176)
Advance income tax / withholding tax 9,732,090 7,019,096
Closing receivable 1.453 883 1,677,055
14.5 Market value of non-banking assets acquired
in satisfaction of claims 829,904 818,343

222
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

2024 2023
Rupees in '000

14.5.1 Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Opening Balance 420,731 423,709
Additions 2,221 361
Disposals (15,651) (3,339
Closing Balance 407,301 420,731

14.5.2 Gain on Disposal of Non-banking assets acquired in
satisfaction of claims

Disposal Proceeds 55,897 12,194
less : Cost (15,651) {3,189)
Gain 40,246 9,005

14.6  This includes accretion of premium income of Rs. 1,480.992 million (2023: Rs. 430.860
million)

2024 2023
Rupees in '000

14,7 Credit loss allowance held against other assets

Tax recoverable 422,652 422,652
Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 407,301 420,731
Amount recoverable from Federal Government 551,140 66,234
Stock of farm machinery 11,237 11,237
Accrued interest on advances of ex-employees 16,070 15,595
Amount depasited with courts / legal charges recoverable 56,673 52,220

1,465,073 988,669

14.7.1 Movement in credit loss allowance held against other assets

Opening balance 988,669 939,492
Charge for the year 521,703 99,530
Reversals (45,299) (50,353)

476,404 49,177
Closing balance 1,465,073 988,669
22
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

15 CONTINGENT ASSETS

15.1  There is a contingency of an amount of Rs, 297.149 million and Rs. 54.828 million on account
of minimum income tax levied by the Income Tax authorities under section 80-D of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 1979, and various tax refunds pertaining to assessment years 1991-92 to 1998-
99 and assessment year 1999-2000 respectively despite the income of the Bank being exempt
from tax up to income year ended 30 June 1999. The Bank paid, under protest, these disputed
tax demands and also filed writ petition in this respect in the Honorable Lahore High Court,
Rawalpindi Bench, Rawalpindi. Later on, the Bank withdrew the said petition on the directions
of the Federal Government and the case was referred to the Law and Justice Division of the
Government of Pakistan (GoP) which decided the reference in the Bank’s favour. The Federal
Board of Revenue (FBR), disagreed with the aforesaid decision, further took up the matter with
Federal Cabinet for its review. Federal Cabinet referred the case to the Attorney General of
Pakistan (AGP) for final decision which was received on March 12, 2011 whereby the AGP
decided that Section 27-A of the ADBP Ordinance should prevail over the said section 80-D of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 1979.

15.2  Assistant Commissioner, Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed the order on 11.05.2019 for the
period January 2012 to December 2012 creating a demand of Rs 6.42 million (Principal +
Penalty). On 03.06.2019, payment of impugned tax Amounting Rs.6.6 million (Principal + 10%
Surcharge) has been made, under protest, to avail the SRB Amnesty Scheme. Bank has filed
appeal before Commissioner (Appeals), SRB. Main Appeal heard and further adjourned to
12.08.2022 but remained undecided and appeal/case has been transferred to Appellate Tribunal
by the Commissioner (Appeals-I) on 30.06.2022, being time barred at the Commissioner
Appeals, The Bank is expecting a favourable decision.

15.3  Assistant Commissioner, Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed the order on 11.07.2019 for the
period January 2013 to December 2013 creating a demand of Rs 2.75 million. On 03.06.2019,
payment of impugned tax amounting to Rs. 2.75 million was made, under protest, to avail the
SRB Amnesty Scheme. Bank filed appeal before Commissioner (Appeals), SRB. Main Appeal
heard and further adjourned to 12.08.2022 but remained undecided and appeal/case has been
transferred to Appellate Tribunal by the Commissioner (Appeals-I) on 30.06.2022, being time
barred at the Commissioner Appeals. The Bank is expecting a favourable decision.

15.4  Assistant Commissioner, Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed the order on 24.01.2020 for the
period of January 2014 to December 2014 which created a demand of Rs.54.6 million. On
03.06.2019 payment of impugned tax was made for Rs, 2.86 million, under protest, to avail the
SRB Amnesty Scheme. Bank filed appeal before Commissioner (Appeals), SRB. Main Appeal
heard and further adjourned to 12.08.2022 but remained undecided and appeal/case has been
transferred to Appellate Tribunal by the Commissioner (Appeals-I) on 30.06.2022, being time
barred at the Commissioner Appeals. The Bank is expecting a favourable decision.

o
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
16 BILLS PAYABLE
In Pakistan 451,707 2,605,372
17 BORROWINGS
Secured
Borrowing from State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)
Redeemable preference shares 17.2 54,461,536 54,461,536
Repurchase agreement borrowings 17.3 251,568,896 330,098,427
Repurchase agreement borrowings - others 17.4 13,014,346 14,239,236
Borrowings From Other Banks 17.5 19,385,015 -
Total secured 338,429,793 398,799,199
Unsecured
Call borrowings 17.6 69,637,176 1,078,500

408,066,969 399,877,699

17.1  Particulars of borrowings with respect to currencies
In local currency 408,066,969 399,877,699

17.2  Redeemable preference shares have been issued to SBP carrying mark-up of 7.5% (2023: 7.5%)
per annum, redeemable on March 7, 2027. The principal of the preference shares and return
thereon is guaranteed by the Federal Government of Pakistan,

17.3  These carry markup at the rate of 13.07% (2023: 22.04% to 23% ) per annum and is secured
against Market Treasury Bills having face value amounting to Rs. 54,000 million (2023:
Rs.249,000 million) and Pakistan Investment Bonds amounting to Rs.203,000 million (2023:
Rs.125,000 million). These are repayable by January 2025 (2023: January 2024).

17.4  These carry markup at the rate of 12.75% to 13.30% (2023: 22% to 22.85%) per annum and are
secured against Market Treasury Bills having face value amounting to Rs. 13,996 million (2023:
Market Treasury Bills having face value amounting Rs.10,000 million and Pakistan Investment
Bonds having face value amounting Rs 6,071 million). These are repayable by January 2025
(2023: January 2024),

17.5  These carry markup at the rate of 15.00% (2023: NIL) per annum. These are repayable by January
2025 (2023: NIL).

17.6  These carry markup at the rate of 11.00% to 15% (2023: 20.80% to 21.00%) per annum. These are
repayable by January to May 2025 (2023: January 2024).
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

2024 2023
Rupees in '000
18 DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers - local currency

Current deposits 10,175,082 6,104,401
Saving deposits 11,950,511 13,078,871
Term deposits 33,230,903 34,268,326
Others 187,903 37,255

55,544,399 53,488,853
Financial Institutions - local currency

Current deposits 126,063 75,364
Saving deposits 951,369 3,604,856

Term deposits - -
1,077,432 3,680,220
56,621,831 57.169,073

18.1 Composition of deposits

- Individuals 7,205,077 4,839217
- Government (Federal and Provincial) 6,684,568 5,426,031
- Public sector entities 11,087,913 16,887,956
- Banking companies 2,434 -
- Non-Banking Financial Institutions 1,074,998 3,680,220
- Private sector 30,566,841 26,335,649

56,621,831 57,169.073

18.2  These include deposits eligible to be covered under insurance arrangements in accordance with
DPC Circular No. 04 dated June 22, 2018 amounting to Rs, 18,803.058 million (2023: Rs.
12,735.989 million).

19 LEASE LIABILITIES 2024 2023
Rupees in '000

Outstanding amount at the start of the year 983,391 907,653
Additions during the year 270,098 296,173
Lease payments including interest (336,217) (304,542)
Interest expense 126,658 118,859
Remeasurement (46,705) (34,752)

Outstanding amount at the end of the year 997,225 983,391

19.1 Contactual maturity of lease laibilities

Short-term lease liabilities - within one year 82,572 51,066

Long-term lease liabilities

-1 to 5 years 425,336 369,874

- 5 to 10 years 429,234 507,960

- More than 10 years 60,083 54,491
914,653 932,325

Total lease liabilities 997,225 983,391
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
20 OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency on:
- borrowings 3,407,005 5,050,416
- deposits and other accounts 2,647,689 2,446,712
Accrued expenses 1,746,765 1,162,422
Net liabilities relating to Bangladesh 20.1 189 189
Payable to Ministry of Food Agriculture & Livestock  20.2 168,000 168,000
Provision for: 38.6.1
- pension scheme 6,344,733 5,845,680
- employees' post retirement medical benefits 10,439,311 9,409,455
- employees' compensated absences 2,153,930 1,926,253
Payable to subsidiary company 43 162,044 154,910
Due to Islamic Banking - 114,491
Security deposits 21,559 38,182
Deferred income 20.3 9,058 9,535
Others 20.4 1,923,164 1,250,010

29,023 447 27,576,255

20.1  Net liabilities relating to Bangladesh

Liabilities 2,012,286 1,982,916
Assets (2.012,097) (1,982,727)
20.1.1 189 189

20.1.1 This represents the amount relating to the activities of the Bank in Bangladesh (former East
Pakistan) before its separation. In accordance with the Finance Division letter No. F.5(12)PEC(op-
FR)/78-236 dated May 6, 1979 the Bank has to calculate interest on the loans made in Bangladesh
as it does in the case of corresponding borrowings made from the SBP. Instead of carrying the
interest to profit and loss account, the Bank shows it in the statement of financial position only.
The Bank is accruing interest at the rate of 8% per annum on its loans and advances made in
Bangladesh with contra increase in its liabilities relating to its activities in Bangladesh. However,
the Bank has no control over these assets.

20.2  This represents payable under Crop Maximization Project - Productivity Enhancement on
Sustainable Basis.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
20.3 Deferred income
Opening balance 9,535 10,038
Amortization during the year 28 (477)_ (503)
Closing balance 0,058 9.535

20.3.1 Deferred income comprises the grants from the Asian Development Bank via Government of
Pakistan for Rural Support Development Finance Project (RSDFP).

20.4  These represent various payables which include insurance claims payable / adjustable against the
loan liability of the borrowers, withholding taxes, contribution received from borrowers, clearing
proceeds payable etc.
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21 SHARE CAPITAL
21.1  Authorized capital

2024 2023 2024 2023
Number of shares Rupees in "000

Ordinary and Preference shares
12,500,000,000  12,500,000,000 of Rupees 10 each 125,000,000 125,000,000

21.2  Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

2024 2023
Number of shares

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each

1,186,961,201  1,186,961,201 - fully paid in cash 11,869,612 11,869,612
65.282,866 65,282,866 - Issued as bonus shares 652,828 652,828
4,015,599,174  4,015,599,174 - Issued against loan from SBP 40,155,992 40,155,992
5,267,843,241 5,267,843,241 52,678,432 52,678,432

21.3 - Paid-up

Shareholder Na; afordingry value
shares

per share
State Bank of Pakistan 4,015,599,174 10 40,155,992 40,155,992
Government of Pakistan 1,251,189,067 10 12,511,891 12,511,891
Government of Punjab 292,340 10 2,923 2,923
Government of Sindh 125,545 10 1,255 1,255

Government of Khyber

Pakhtunkhwa 71,740 10 717 717
Government of Balochistan 37,875 10 379 379
Erstwhile East Pakistan 527,500 10 5,275 5,275
Lat 5,267,843,241 52,678,432 52,678,432
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2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
22 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS
Surplus on revaluation of securities measured at FVOCI:
Quoted investments 3,118,309 3,442,514
Other securities 1,657,923 (262,021)
Surplus on revaluation of securities measured at FVOCI: 4,776,232 3,180,493
Deferred tax on surplus on revaluation of securities
measured at FVOCL: (2,531,403) (1,558,442)
2,244,829 1,622,051
23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
23.1 Contingent liabilities
In respect of cases filed against the Bank:
23.1.1 by borrowers; 402 (2023: 606) cases 338,547 402,962
23.1.2 by employees; 417 (2023: 468) cases 23.1.2.1 276,281 271,387

23.1.2.1 This includes employees pension related litigations for addition of certain allowances in
pensionable pay. These cases are under adjudication in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan.
The financial impact of these cases are not quantifiable at this point of time. In the opinion of the
legal advisor favorable outcomes of these contingencies is expected, hence, no provision is
incorporated in these financial statements.

23.2 Tax related contingencies

23.2.1 Income Tax

The Bank faces cumulative contingent liabilities amounting to Rs. 92,794.558 million under
various sections of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, for tax years 2002 to 2024, which are under
litigation at various forums including the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, the Honorable
Islamabad High Court, and the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. Key cases include Rs.
669.768 million w/s 161/205 for tax years 2009-2012, Rs. 19.528 million u/s 155 for tax years
2014-2015, Rs. 74,054.835 million u/s 122(5A) for tax years 2010-2024, Rs. 0.412 million u/s
153(1)(b) for tax year 2015, Rs. 170.675 million w/s 149 for tax years 2015-2016, Rs. 87.532
million w/s 151 for tax years 2015-2016 and Rs. 1,565.379 million u/s 122(1) for tax year 2018
alongside Rs. 1,392.216 million w/'s 4(b) for tax year 2022. Other cases include a demand of Rs.
712 million for tax year 2015/-2016, Rs. 29.121 million for tax year 2019, and Rs. 9,917.854
million from disputes covering assessment years 2002-2003 and tax years 2003-2009. In the
opinion of the legal advisor favorable outcomes of these contingencics are expected, hence, no
provision is incorporated in these financial statements.

(4
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23.2.2 Federal Excise Duties / Sales tax

For the tax years 2008-2016, the Bank is facing total contingent liabilities amounting to Rs.
1,951.757 million related to Federal Excise Duties and Sales Tax matters. These cases are
currently under litigation at various forums, including the Honorable Islamabad High Court, the
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, and other relevant tribunals and authorities. For the years
2008-2012, contingent liabilities amounting to Rs. 825.121 million were contested, with Rs. 343
million decided in favor of the Bank, leaving Rs. 482.121 million still under dispute. For the
periods January 2013 to December 2014, demands of Rs. 738.892 million and Rs. 681.109
million were raised for Federal Excise Duties, and Rs. 4.470 million and Rs. 13.295 million for
Sales Tax. For December 2016, a demand of Rs. 10.06 million by the Punjab Revenue Authority
was partially contested. The Sindh Revenue Board raised demands for July 2011 to December
2011 and January 2015 to December 2016, totaling Rs. 21.57 million. In the opinion of the legal
advisor favorable outcomes of these contingencies are expected, hence, no provision is
incorporated in these financial statements.

2024 2023
Rupees in '000

233 Commitments against

Capital expenditure 1,253,127 417,926

Consultancy expenditure 7,770 5,628

24 MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

Loans and advances 29,505,256 21,938,959
Investments 77,267,075 114,378,666
Securities purchased under resale agreement 684,157 1,707,104
Call money lendings 2,622,172 2,001,900
Balances with banks 1,173,656 2,287,499
Bai Muajjal income - 1,964

111,252,316 142 316,092

—_— e e
24.1 Interest income recognised on:

2024
Rupees in '000
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 4,755,059
Financial assets measured at FVOCI 71,456,357
;?6%11416
24.2 Interest income recognised on:
Financial assets measured at FVPL 5,810,718
Financial assets measured at cost 29,230,182
ot 35,040,000
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2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
25 MARK-UP/RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED
Deposits 9,270,798 8,063,057
Redeemable preference shares - SBP 4,084,615 4,084,615
Securities sold under repurchased agreement 64,534,343 104,147,978
Call borrowings 6,994,176 1,621,298
Other borrowings 1.443,348 -
On lease liability against right-of-use assets 126,658 118,859
Bank commission and other charges 28.459 15,622

86.482.397 118,051,429

26 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Branch banking customer fees 62,495 62,776
Credit related fees 1,073,667 1,245,576
Commission / exchange gain on remittances

including home remittances 3,762 3,693

1,139,924 1,312,045

27 GAIN ON SECURITIES

Realised 27.1 2,323,122 266,525
Unrealised - Measured at FVPL 16,327 -
2,339,449 266,525
274 Realised gain on:
Federal Government Securities 2,323.122 266.525

28 OTHER INCOME

Rent on property - KSSL - subsidiary company 5,176 6,584
Rent on property - others 37,939 33,347
43,115 39,931
Gain on sale of property and equipment - net 12,571 35,441
Gain on sale of non banking assets
acquired in satisfaction of claims - net 14.5.2 40,246 9,005
Deferred income amortization 20.3 477 503
Discount income 1,770,596 525,786
Others 28.1 42,280 103,515
l,909!285 714,181

28.1 Other includes sale of scrap, sale of tender forms, recoveries against penalties imposed by SBP
and private use of vehicles etc.

sl
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Note

OPERATING EXPENSES

Total compensation expense 29.1
Property expense

Rent & taxes

Insurance

Utilities cost

Repair and maintenance (including janitorial charges)
Depreciation - right of use assets

Depreciation 10.2

Information technology expenses

Software maintenance

Hardware maintenance

Depreciation 10.2
Amortisation 12
Network charges

Other operating expenses

Directors' fees and allowances

Fees and allowances to Shariah Board

Legal and professional charges

Outsourced services costs (refer note 35.1)

Travelling and conveyance

NIFT clearing charges

Depreciation 10.2
Training and development

Postage and courier charges

Communication

Stationery and printing

Marketing, advertisement and publicity

Donations 29.2
Auditors Remuneration 293
Motor vehicle expenses

Others

cot
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2024

2023

Rupees in '000

10,208,805 9,857,029
15,286 11,737
23,431 15,872

477,951 346,211
338,386 211,210
275,455 256,969
36,311 36,556
1,166,820 878,555
262,177 76,084
107,834 84,972
74,944 58,726
114,315 58,258
167,391 131,772
726,661 409,812
11,168 17,481
7,230 6,168
200,718 201,740
2,285,063 1,818,570
105,195 120,882
20,793 22,974
122,386 121,380
64,380 40,144
34,152 31,471
28,175 29,213
99,846 80,429
30,810 40,268
450 -
6,893 6,960
740,429 706,374
255,504 162.899
16,115,478 14,552,349
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2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
29.1 Total compensation expense

Salaries 4,764,078 4,316,721
Cash bonus / awards etc, 1,097,424 1,008,984
Charge / (reversal) for defined benefit plans: 38.6.5
- Pension scheme 1,113,869 1,370,721
- Benevolent scheme - officers / executives 35,951 211,396
- Benevolent scheme - clerical / non-clerical (107,883) (31,692)
- Gratuity scheme - staff regulation 2005 (14,468) (25,681)
- Employees' compensated absences 513,721 100,739

1,541,190 1,625,483
Contribution to defined contribution plan 38.1.7 40,398 44,425
Rent and house maintenance 477.413 459,103
Utilities 90,378 90,781
Medical 29.1.1 1,861,467 1,970,584
Conveyance 336,457 340,948
Grand Total 10,208,805 9.857,029

29.1.1 This includes post retirement medical benefit amounting to Rs. 1,567.873 million (2023: Rs.
1,733.045 million).

29.2 Donations

Ripple Koncepts 250 -
Karwan-E-Alhuda Skardu 200 -
450 =
293 Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 1,897 1,897
Fee for half year review 431 431
Other statutory certifications 2,254 2,310
Sales tax 733 742
Out of pocket expenses 1,578 1,580
6.893 6,960

30 OTHER CHARGES

Penalties imposed by State Bank of Pakistan 1,881 39,804
cHt
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2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
31 CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCE AND WRITE-OFFS - NET
Credit loss allowance against balances with other 6 (3,691) -
banks
Credit loss allowance against lending to financial 7.6 4,138 -
institutions
Credit loss allowance for diminution in value of 83.2 (23) -
investments
Credit loss allowance against loans & advances 9.4 (2,560,815) 4,427,486
Fixed assets charged-off 2,524 1,043
Reversal of credit loss allowance against other 14.7.1 476,403 49,177
assets
Recovery of written off / charged off bad debts (9,702,522) (9.982,882)

(11,783,986) (5,505,176)

32 TAXATION

Current 9,469,365 7,837,176

Prior year 322 485,897 -

Deferred 2,975,975 (1,215,143)
32.1 12,931,237 6,022,033

32.1 Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit

2024 2023
Rupees in '000
Accounting profit for the year 25,891,939 17,606,167
Tax rate 54% 49%
Tax on accounting income 13,981,647 8,627,022

Tax effect of permanent differences

Penalties imposed by SBP 1,016 13,931

Repair allowance and rent collection allowance

allowed against rental income (5,588) (4,696)
(4,572) 9,235

Tax effect of prior years 485,897 -

Others (1,531,735) (2,014,224)

Tax charge for the year 12,931,237 6,622,033

32.1.1 The effective tax rate for the year is 49.94% (2023: 37.61%)

32.1.2 By the virtue of the Income Tax (Amendment) Ordinance, 2024, the Federal Government has
raised the corporate tax rate for the banking companies to 44%. The current year overall tax rate
is 54% which includes 10% super tax,

4
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2024 2023
Rupees in '000
33 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit after tax for the year - Rupees in '000 12,960,702 10,984,134
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5,267,843,241  5,267,843,241
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 2.46 2.09

33.1 There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Bank.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
34  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 3,125,812 3,661,179
Balances with other banks 6 7,494,010 31,925,573
10,619,822 35,586,752
2024 2023
Number
a5 STAFF STRENGTH
Permanent 3916 3,803
Contractual 16 9
Total staff strength 3,932 3,812

351 In addition to the above, 3,297 (2023: 3,268) employees of Kissan Support Services (Private)
Limited, fully owned subsidiary of the Bank, were assigned to the Bank as at the end of the year
to perform other than guarding and janitorial services.

36 CREDIT RATING

VIS Credit Rating Company Limited in its report dated June 27, 2024 has reaffirmed credit rating
of the Bank at AAA (2023: AAA) with stable outlook and short-term credit rating of A-1+ (2023:
A-1+).

et
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OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

Profit before taxation
Less: Dividend income

Adjustments:

Net mark-up / interest income

Depreciation

Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Amortization

Amortization of deferred income

Credit loss allowance and write-offs

Provision for employees post retirement
medical benefits

Charge for defined benefit plans - net

Gain on sale of non banking assets acquired in

satisfaction of claims - net

Discount income

Gain on securities

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets

(72

Note

10.2

29
12

20.3
31

38.6.5
29.1

28.0
28
27
28

o) Sinoilisyise;

2024 2023
Rupees in '000
25,891,939 17,606,167
(66,735) (135,730)
25,825,204 17,470,437
(24,769,919) {24,264,663)
233,647 216,662
275,455 256,969
114,315 58,258
(477) (503)
(2,081,464) 4,477,706
1,567,873 1,733,045
1,541,190 1,625,483
(40,246) (9,005)
(1,770,596) (525,786)
(2,339,449) (266,525)
(12,571) (35,441)
_(27,282,242) (16,733,800)
(1,457,038) 736,637
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38 DEFINED BENEFIT AND CONTRIBUTION PLANS
The Bank operates the following retirement benefit plans for its employees:

Pension Scheme - funded

Benevolent Scheme - funded

Employees Gratuity Scheme - funded

Post Retirement Medical Benefits - unfunded
Employees Compensated Absences - unfunded
Defined Contribution Plan

38.1  Brief description of each fund is as follows:

38.1.1 Pension scheme

The Bank operates an approved pension scheme for employees who opted for the scheme introduced
in year 1975 for clerical / non-clerical staff and in the year 1977 for officers / executives. The
contributions are made on the basis of actuarial recommendation.

38.1.2 Benevolent scheme - officers
The Bank operates an approved funded benevolent scheme for all officers / executives of the Bank
for which contributions are made at the rate of 2% of basic pay to a maximum of Rs. 200, by each

officer / executive. Employee contributions are matched by an equal amount of contributions by the
Bank. The Bank is also liable to meet any shortfall in the fund.

38.1.3 Benevolent scheme - staff

The Bank operates an approved funded benevolent scheme for all clerical / non-clerical staff for
which contributions are made at different rates but not exceeding Rs. 100 by each employee.
Employee contributions are matched by an equal amount of contributions by the Bank. The Bank is
also liable to meet any shortfall in the fund.

38.1.4 Gratuity under Staff Regulations - 2005 (SR-2005)

The Bank also operates a separate Gratuity Fund scheme, w.e.f. August 2006, established upon
introduction of Staff Regulations - 2005 (SR-2005) for the employees governed under SR-2005.
Contributions to this Fund are made by the Bank on the basis of actuarial valuation.

38.1.5 Post retirement medical benefits

The Bank provides post retirement medical benefits to eligible retired employees, Provision is made
annually to meet the cost of such medical benefits on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by
independent actuary by using Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method.

38.1.6 Employees compensated absences - unfunded

The liability of the Bank in respect of long-term employees compensated absences is determined
based on actuarial valuation carried out using Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method.

12~

3ol Sinilis e




ZTBL v ANNUAL REPORT 2024

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

38.1.7 Defined contribution plan

The Bank operates an approved non-contributory provident fund (General Provident Fund) through
an independent trust for 1378 (2023: 1,630) employees who are governed under Staff Service

Regulations 1961. Contributions to the fund are made only by employees at the rate of 8% of mean
of pay scale per month,

The Bank also operates Contributory Provident Fund scheme introduced in 2006 (w.e.f. July 2006)
for 2538 (2023: 2,127) employees governed under SR-2005. Contributions to the Contributory
Provident Fund are made by the employees and the Bank, if their remaining service is more than ten
years from the date of option / appointment, at the rate of 2% of monetized salary per month. During
the year, the Bank contributed Rs. 40.398 million (2023; Rs.44.425 million) in respect of this fund.

The Bank has contributory provident fund scheme for benefit of all its permanent employees. The
Funds are maintained by the Trustees and all decisions regarding investments and distribution of
income etc. are made by the Trustees independent of the Bank. The titles of the funds are as follow:

Employees Provident Fund;

Employees Provident Fund (Officers);
Employees Provident Fund (Staff); and
Employees Contributory Provident Fund

The size of the Funds at the reporting date was Rs. 8,041,89 million (2023: Rs, 6,721.05 million). As
intimated by the Trustees, the cost of the investments made at year end amounts to Rs. 7,752.68
million (2023: Rs.6,489.05 million) which is equal to 96.41% (2023: 96.55%) of the total fund size.
The fair values of the investments amount to Rs. 8,041.89 million (2023: Rs. 6,721.05 million) at
that date, The category wise break up of investment is given below:

2024 2023
Rupees in '000
Term Deposit Receipts 4,325,000 5,434,300
Government securities 3,427,681 1,054,753

7,752,681 6,489,053

38.2 Funding policy
Schemes are funded on the basis of actuarial recommendation subject to maximum permissible limits
under Income Tax rules. Any deficit in defined benefit plans is to be met by the Bank.

38.3 Risks associated with defined benefit plans
Investment risk

The risk arises when the actual performance of the investments is lower than expectation and thus
creating a shortfall in the funding objectives.

Longevity risk

The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at
the plan level over the entire retirce population.

oAt
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Salary increase risk

The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The

risk arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability
accordingly.

Withdrawal risk

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the benefit
obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way.

38.4  Principal actuarial assumption

Latest actuarial valuation is carried out as at December 31, 2024. The acmarial valuations were made
using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method based on the following significant assumptions:

2024 2023
wewens P wEEviR

Valuation discount rate - pension & medical scheme under SSR-1961 12.25 15.50
Valuation discount rate - all other schemes 12.25 15.50
Expected rate of increase in salary 10.25 13.50
Expected rate of return on plan assets - pension fund 12.25 15.50
Expected rate of return on plan assets - other funds 12.25 15.50
Expected rate of increase in pension 8.00 11.25
Expected rate of medical inflation - allowances 8.00 15.50
Expected rate of medical inflation - hospitalization 12.25 13.50

385 Number of employees under the scheme

The number of employees (including beneficiaries) covered under the following defined benefit

schemes are:
2024 2023
Number
- Pension Scheme - funded 5,004 4915
- Benevolent Scheme (officers) - funded 3,477 3,439
- Benevolent Scheme (staff) - funded 400 318
- Gratuity under Staff Regulations - 2005 (SR-2005) 2,538 2,127
- Post Retirement Medical Benefits - unfunded 6,343 7,036
- Employees Compensated Absences - unfunded 4,965 3,757
[~
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40 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

40.1 Fair value of financial assets

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as held to maturity, is based on quoted
market price. Quoted securities classified as held to maturity are carried at cost. The fair value of unquoted
equity securities, other than investments in associates and subsidiaries, is determined on the basis of the
break-up value of these investments as per their latest available audited financial statements.

The fair value of unquoted debt securities, fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities, fixed term
deposits and borrowings cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to the absence of a current and
active market for these assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not
significantly different from their carrying values since these are either short-term in nature or, in the case of
customer loans and deposits, are frequently repriced.

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2; Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
........... Rupees in '000 ...........
On balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments
- Federal Government Securities - 370,614,398 - 370,614,398
- Shares 3,207,605 - - 3,207,605
- Debt securities (TFCs, Sukuk) 2,352,450 - - 2,352,450
5,560,055 370,614,398 - 376,174,453

Financial assets not measured at fair value
- Subsidiary company - 100,000 - 100,000

(4t 5.560.055 370,714,398 - 376274453
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2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
........... Rupees in '000 ...........
On balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assefs measured at fair value
Investments
- Federal Government Securities - 366,131,111 - 366,131,111
- Shares 3,531,810 - - 3,531,810
- Debt securities (TFCs, Sukuk) 2,449,199 - s 2,449,199
5,981,009 366,131,111 - 372,112,120
Financial assets not measured at fair value
- Subsidiary company - 100,000 - 100,000
5981009 366,231.111 - 372212.120

40.2 Valuation technique used & key inputs

Revaluation rates for Treasury Bills and Pakistan Investment Bonds are contributed by money market
brokers on daily basis while for listed securities daily prices are shared by Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Investment in subsidiary and other unlisted securities have not been carried out at fair value in accordance
with the SBF guidelines.

40.3 Fair value of non-financial assets

Property and equipment as well as non-banking assets, are measured at fair value under Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy.

40.4 There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year,

V2
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41 SEGMENT INFORMATION

41.1 Segment Details with respect to Business Activities:
The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows:

2024

Britncl Islamic
banking & Treasury J Total
: : banking
_agri financing

«ssaeeese Rupees in '000 .........
Profit and Loss

Net mark-up/return/profit 14,936,222 9,566,582 267,115 24,769,919
Inter segment revenue - net 4,673,678 (4,673,678) - -
Non mark-up / return / interest income 3,107,651 2,339,449 8,293 5,455,393
Total Income 22,717,551 T:232.353 275,408 30,225,312
Segment direct expenses 15,813,956 68,997 234,406 16,117,359
Inter segment expense allocation - - - -
Total expenses 15,813,956 68,997 234,406 16,117,359
Credit loss allowance _ (11,783,986) (11,783,986)

Profit before tax 18,687,581 7,163,356 41,002 25,891,939

Statement of Financial Position

Cash and Bank balances 3,800,292 6,550,505 267,541 10,618,338
Investments - 374,617,656 1,656,797 376,274,453
Net inter segment lendings 68,566,097 - - 68,566,097
Lendings to financial institutions - 17,300,072 13,650,000 30,950,072
Advances - performing 101,613,315 - 8,032 101,613,315

- non-performing (net of provision) 7,499,863 - - 7,499,863
Others 35,496,738 13,737,680 1,340,506 50,574,924
Total Assets 216,976,305 412,205,913 16,922,876 646,105,094
Borrowings 54,461,536 339,805,433 13,800,000 408,066,969
Subordinated debt - - - -
Deposits & other accounts 55,266,865 - 1,354,966 56,621,831
Net inter segment borrowing - 68,066,097 500,000 68,566,097
Others 27,188,518 2,094,536 1,189,325 30,472,379
Total Liabilities 136,916,919 409,966,066 16,844,291 563,727,276
Equity 80,054,404 2,244 829 78,585 82,377,818
Total Equity & Liabilities 216,971,323 412,210,895 16,922,876 646,105,094
Contingencies & Commitments 96,622,040 - - 96,622,040
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2023
Draze Islamic
banking & Treasury . Total
. . banking
agri financing
sessesns. Rupees in '000 .........

Profit and Loss
Net mark-up/return/profit 9,936,225 14,111,056 217,382 24,264,663
Inter segment revenue - net 2,587,856 (2,587,856) - -
Non mark-up / return / interest income 2,159,969 266,525 1,987 2,428,481
Total Income 14,684,050 11,789,725 219,369 26,693,144
Segment direct expenses 14,393,032 58,246 140,875 14,592,153
Inter segment expense allocation - - -
Total expenses 14,393,032 58,246 140,875 14,592,153
Credit loss allowance (5,505,176) - - (5,505,176)
Profit before tax 5,796,194 11,731,479 78,494 17,606,167
Statement of Financial Position
Cash and Bank balances 3,555,250 27,925,739 4,105,763 35,586,752
Investments - 370,022,133 2,189,987 372,212,120
Net inter segment lending 62,218.616 - - 62,218,616
Lendings to financial institutions - 5,960,700 600,000 6,560,700
Advances - performing 85,398,098 - - 85,398,098

- non-performing (net of provision) 20,109,562 - - 20,109,562
Others 34,772,201 7,500,019 237,019 42,509,239
Total Assets 206,053,727 411,408,591 7,132,769 624,595,087
Borrowings 54,461,536 344,337,663 1,078,500 399,877,699
Subordinated debt - - - -
Deposits & other accounts 52,062,200 . 5,106,873 57,169,073
Net inter segment borrowing - 61,718,616 500,000 62,218,616
Others 27,012,524 3,730,261 422,233 31,165,018
Total Liabilities 133,536,260 409,786,540 7,107,606 550,430,406
Equity 72,517,467 1,622,051 25,163 74,164,681
Total Equity & Liabilities 206,053,727 411,408,591 7,132,769 624,595,087
Contingencies & Commitments 71,735,770 - - 71,735,770

41.2 Segment Details with respect to geographical locations

The Bank operates only in Pakistan and hence no geographical location wise disclosure is presented.

42 TRUST ACTIVITIES

The Bank is not engaged in any significant trust activities.
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):
Paid-up capital (net of losses)

Capital Adequacy Ratio:

Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital
Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital
Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital

Eligible Tier 2 Capital

Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2)

Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs):
Credit Risk

Market Risk

Operational Risk

Total

Common Equity Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio

2024

2023

... Rupees in '000 ...

52,678,432 52,678,432
74,684,118 66,784,561
74,684,118 66,784,561
4,174,704 3,425.817
78,858,822 70,210,378
154,389,975 144,301,307
20,718,775 7,063,625
43,898,575 34,927,413
_ 219,007,325 186.292.345
34.10% 35.85%
34.10% 35.85%
36.01% 37.69%

SBP through its BSD Circular No. 07 dated April 15, 2009 requires the minimum paid-up capital
(free of losses) for all locally incorporated banks to be raised to Rs. 10 billion by the year ended on
December 31, 2013. The paid-up capital of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2024 stands at
Rs. 52.678 billion and is in compliance with the SBP requirement. In addition, the banks are also
required to maintain a minimum capital adequacy ratio (CAR) of 11.50% (2023: 11.50%) of the risk
weighted exposure. The Bank's CAR as at December 31, 2024 is 36.01% (2023: 37.69%) of its risk

weighted exposure.

Leverage Ratio (LR):
Eligible Tier-1 Capital
Total exposures
Leverage ratio

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):
Total High Quality Liquid Assets
Total Net Cash Outflow

Liquidity Coverage Ratio

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR)
Total Available Stable Funding
Total Required Stable Funding

Net Stable Funding Ratio

2024

2023

... Rupees in '000 ...

74,684,118 66,784,561
577,770,414 562,544,100
12.93% 11.87%

75,177,791 43,825,505
32,376,518 5,314,602
232% 825%
200,257,341 189,685,484
162,878,163 _ 156,982,972
123% 121%

The full disclosures on the CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY
REQUIREMENTS as per SBP instructions issued from time to time is placed on the website of the
Bank. The link to the full disclosure is available at http://www.ztbl.com.pk.
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45 RISK MANAGEMENT

This section presents information about the Bank’s exposure to and its management and control of risks, in

particular, the primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments such as credit, market, liquidity and
operational risks.

Risk management is a dynamic process of identification, measurement and monitor and control risks with the
aim to optimize risk-reward trade-off. The Bank has setup a centralized risk management function at the
organizational level which encompasses a broader framework of risk committees, enterprise risk management
division and its departments responsible for each category of risk i.e. Loan Review, IT risk, Collateral
Management and Portfolio analytics covering Portfolio credit risk, market & liquidity risk, operational and
equity position risks. The Bank's risk management function is independent of the business and operations and
directly reports to the President through Chief Risk Officer. The Bank's systematic and integrated risk
management function for each category of risk is as follows:

45.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial losses arising when a customer or counterparty is unable or unwilling to
perform as per the contractual terms resulting in reduction in portfolio. The Bank’s credit appraisal structure is
well-defined. Credit appraisal, approval and review methods are integral parts of lending operations. The credit

portfolio is reviewed and analysed on quarterly basis and reports are submitted to the Management for decision
making,.

The Obligor Risk Rating (ORR) model for fresh borrowers is in place as the credit risk rating of the borrower is a
concise indicator to evaluate Bank’s credit exposure. An internal rating system categorizes all credits into
various classes on the basis of underlying credit quality. The ultimate objective of the system is to generate
accurate and consistent risk ratings and portfolio monitoring / analysis.

Regarding Basel Accords compliance, the Bank has implemented Standardized Approach (SA) for calculation of
capital charge against credit risk weighted assets.

Particulars of bank's significant on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet credit risk in various sectors are analysed
as follows:
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45,3 Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and system or from external events. In order to manage operational issues, an Operational Risk
Model (ORM) has been developed which comprises Key Risk Indicator (KRI), Control Self
Assessment (CSA) and Operational Loss Event Data Collection. This model has been successfully
implemented in all Bank wide entities. The data of the Operational Risk Model is collected and

analysed on quarterly basis and results are elevated to senior management / Internal Risk
Management Committee.

With regards to Basel Accords compliance, the Bank has implemented Basic Indicator Approach
(BIA) to calculate capital charge against operational risk weighted assets. Disaster recovery and
business continuity plan includes separate IT business continuity plan which caters to IT specific
business continuity planning requirements.

45.3.1 Operational risk - Disclosures Basel II specific

The Bank uses Basic Indicator Approach to calculate capital charge for operational risk as per
Basel regulatory framework. This approach is considered to be most suitable in view of the
business model of the Bank which relies on an extensive network of branches to offer one - stop,
full - service banking to its clients. The Bank has developed and implemented an inhouse
Operational Risk Management Framework. Operational loss is reviewed and appropriate
corrective actions taken on an ongoing basis, including measures to improve security and control
procedures. Key Risk Indicators have also been developed along with thresholds which are being
closely monitored for breaches. Risk Evaluation exercise is carried out for new products, processes
and systems or any significant change in the existing product, processes and systems as per the
operational risk policy of the Bank.

454 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the major risk for banks. It arises when the cushion provided by the liquid assets
are not sufficient enough to meet its obligation. Liquidity risk is being calculated by maturity
ladder of balance sheet items, liquidity stress testing, regulatory returns on liquidity standards
under Basel III, and different analysis for management purpose.
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46 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged, reclassified or additionally incorporated in these
financial statements wherever necessary to facilitate comparison and better presentation.

47 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 25 MAR 2025 by the Board
of Directors of the Bank. '

48 GENERAL

The figures in the financial statements are rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, unless
otherwise stated.
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Annexure - I1

ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

The bank is operating 25 (2023: 25) Islamic banking branches and 0 (2023: 10) Islamic branches
windows at the end of the year,

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000

ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 141,150 282,787
Balances with other banks 126,391 3,822,976
Due from financial institutions 1 13,650,000 600,000
Investments 2 1,656,797 2,189,987
Islamic financing and related assets - net 8,032 -
Fixed assets 120,687 121,463
Intangible assets - -
Due from Head Office - -
Other assets 1,219,819 115,556
Total Assets 16,922,876 7,132,769
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 4,435 1,367
Due to financial institutions 13,800,000 1,078,500
Deposits and other accounts 3 1,354,966 5,106,873
Due to Head Office 4 963,273 338,996
Subordinated debt - =
Other liabilities 221,617 81,870

16,344,291 6,607,606
NET ASSETS 578,585 525,163
REPRESENTED BY
Islamic Banking Fund 500,000 500,000
Reserves = =
Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of assels 11,953 (23,039)
Accumulated profit 5 66,632 48,202

578,585 525,163
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 6
At
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Annexure - Il

The profit and loss account of the Bank's Islamic banking branches for the year ended is as follows:

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
Profit / return earned 7 2,196,093 1,299,771
Profit / return expensed 8 1,928,978 1,082,389
Net Profit / return 267,115 217,382

Other income
Fee and Commission Income 2,578 1,966
Dividend Income
Foreign Exchange Income - -
Income / (loss) from derivatives -

Gain on securities 3,667 21
Other Income 2,048 -
Total other income 8,293 1,987
Total Income 275,408 219,369
Other expenses
Operating expenses 234,406 140,875
Workers Welfare Fund - -
Other charges - -
Total other expenses 234,406 140,875
Profit before provisions 41,002 78,494
Provisions and write offs - net =
Profit before taxation 41,002 78,494
Taxation 22,572 37.445
Profit after taxation 18,430 41,049
P~
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Annexure - I1

2024 2023
Rupees in '000
3 Deposits
Customers - local currency
Current deposits 392,796 223,294
Savings deposits 719,767 4,723,567
Term deposits receipts 242,165 155,397
Others 238 4,615
1,354,966 5,106,873

Financial Institutions
Term deposits receipts

1,354,966 5,106,873

3.1  Composition of deposits
- Individuals 1,023,657 899,046
- Non-Banking Financial Institutions - 2,905,801
- Private Sector 131,309 1,162,869
-Govt./Public Sector Entities 200,000 139,157
1,354,966 5,106,873

3.2 This includes deposits eligible to be covered under insurance arrangements in accordance with DPC
Circular No. 04 dated June 22, 2018 amounting to Rs, 1,026.551 million (2023: Rs. 899.576 million).

4 Due to head office represents inter branch transactions between Islamic and Conventional.
2024 2023
Rupees in '000

5 Islamic Banking Business Unappropriated Profit
Opening Balance 48,202 7,153
Add: Islamic Banking for the year 41,002 78,494
Less: Taxation 22,572 37,445
Closing Balance 66,632 48,202

6 There are no contingencies and commitments related to the Islamic business as at reporting date.
(2023: Nil)

7 Profit / return earned of financing, investments and placement

2024 2023
Rupees in '000
Profit earned on:

Financing 515 -

Investments 342,024 413,986

Placements 1,853,554 885,785
Total 2,196,093 1,299,771
(A
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Annexure - IT

2024 2023
Rupees in '000
8 Profit on deposits and other dues expensed
Deposits and other accounts 261,484 449,096
Commission and other charges 3,520 1,493
Call borrowings/ Funds acceptances 1,663,974 631,800
1,928,978 1,082,389
9 Pool Management

Currently, ZTBL Islamic Banking Division (ZTBL - IBD) is maintaining five pools for profit
declaration and distribution i.e., general pool, special pool 3, special pool 5, special pool 7 and special
pool 10.

General pool

The General Pool comprises of depositors’ funds, Bank’s equity inclusive of current deposits and
mudaraba placements from ZTBL Head Office. The Bank acts as fund manager (Mudarib) and invests
the funds in Shariah compliant modes of financings, investments and placements (remunerative
assets), The profit of the pool is calculated on all the remunerative assets booked by the Bank and is
shared amongst the members of the pool on pre-defined mechanism based on weightages announced
before the commencement of period concerned.

The distributable profit of the pool is finalized after deduction of direct expenses only while indirect
expenses including administrative and general expenses are borne by ZTBL - IBD as Mudarib.

Weightages for distribution of profit in general pool

Profit is calculated on the basis of daily product balance in mudaraba based depositors’ accounts and
paid as per pre-defined weightages.

While considering weightages emphasis is given to the quantum, type and the period of risk assessed
by following factors:

Contracted period of deposits;

Frequency of profit distribution, i.e. monthly, quarterly or on maturity; and

Volume of the deposit.

Identification and allocation of pool related income & expenses

The distributable profit of the pool is finalized by including direct income earned by income
generating / remunerative assets and after deducting direct expenses of the period concerned, while
indirect expenses including administrative and general expenses are borne by ZTBL - IBD as Mudarib.

Parameters associated with risk and rewards
Following are the considerations attached with risk & reward of general pool:

- Period, return, safety, security and liquidity of investment;
- Financing proposals under process at various stages and likely to be extended in the near future;
- Expected withdrawals of deposits according to the maturities affecting the deposit base;
- Maturities of funds obtained from Principal Office, Islamic Banking Institutions and Shariah compliant
organizations as regulated in Pakistan;
- Element of risk attributed to various types of investments; and
- SBP rules & Shariah Clearance.
cHrL
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Special pool

The special pools comprise of depositors® funds, Bank’s equity inclusive of current deposits and
Mudaraba placements from head office, The Bank acts as Fund Manager (Mudarib) and invests the
funds in Shariah compliant modes of financings, investments and placements (remunecrative assets).
The profit of the pools is calculated on all the remunerative assets booked by the Bank and is shared
amongst the members of the pool on pre-defined mechanism based on weightages announced before
the commencement of concerned period.

The distributable profit of the pool is finalized after deduction of direct expenses only while indirect
expenses including administrative and general expenses are borne by ZTBL - IBD as Mudarib.

Weightages for distribution of profit in general pool

Profit is calculated on daily product basis and paid as per pre defined weightages. While considering
weightages emphasis is given to the quantum, type and the period of risk assessed by following
factors:

- Contracted period, nature and type of deposit / fund.;

- Payment cycle of profit on such deposit / fund, i.e. monthly, quarterly or on maturity; and
- Magnitude of risk.

Tdentification and allocation of pool related income & expenses

The distributable profit of the pool is finalized by including direct income eamed by income
generating / remunerative assets and after deducting direct expenses of the period concerned, while
indirect expenses including administrative and general expenses are borne by ZTBL - IBD as Mudarib.

Parameters associated with risk and rewards
Following are the considerations attached with risk & reward of special pool:

- Period, return, safety, security and liquidity of investment;

- Financing proposals under process at various stages and likely to be extended in the near future;

- Expected withdrawals of deposits according to the maturities affecting the deposit base;

- Maturities of funds obtained from principal office, Islamic banking institutions and Shariah
compliant organizations as regulated in Pakistan;

- Element of risk attached to various types of investments; and

- SBP rules & Shariah Clearance.

Avenues / sectors of economy / business where Mudaraba based deposits have been deployed:

2024 2023
Rupees in '000

Investments 1,656,797 2,189,987

Due from financial institutions 13,650,000 600,000

Balances with other banks 126,391 3,822,976
[z~
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Annexure - II

Charging expenses

The direct expenses are charged to the pool, while indirect expenses including the establishment cost is
borme by ZTBL - IBD as Mudarib. The direct expenses to be charged to the pool may include
depreciation of ijarah assets, cost of sale of inventories, insurance / takaful expenses of pool assets,
taxes, stamp fee or documentation charges, brokerage fee for purchase of securities / commodities,
impairment / losses due to physical damages to specific assets in pools, write-offs of financings and
loss on sale of investments, etc.

2024 2023
Rupees in '000

Credit loss allowances &

Mudarib share (in amount and percentage of distributable income)

2024 2023
Rupees in '000
Rabbul Mal 73% 251,311 414,840
Mudarib 27% 91,305 90,179
342,616 505,019

Amount & percentage of mudarib share transferred to depositors
threugh Hiba

2024 2023
Mudarib share 91,305 90,179
Hiba 20,228 40,321
Hiba percentage of mudarib share 22.15% 44, 71%

This is not a special Hiba and it has been distributed across the board to all the investment account
holders.

Profit rate earned vs profit rate distributed to the depositors during the year

2024 2023
Profit rate earned 18.03% p.a. 19.66% p.a.
Profit rates distributed to depositors 13.07% p.a. 13.45% p.a.

(At
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/ ’ : Crowe Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co,

7™ Floor, Gul Mehar Trade Centre,
B-F Main Market, Gulberg I,
Lahore-54660, Pakistan

Main +92-42-3575 9223-5
www.crowe.pk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consalidated financial statements of Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited
and its subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at December 31, 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss account, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information,
and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2024, and its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

g

Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.is a member of Crowa Giobal, a Swiss verein, Each member firr of Crowe Global is a separate and independent legal entity. Crowe Hussaln Chaudhury & Co. and
its affiliates are not responsible or llable for any acts or omissions of Crowe Global or any other member of Crowe Global Crowe Giobal does not render any professional services and does not

have an ownarship or partnership interest in Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.

© 2025 Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.
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Following is the key audit matter:

Key Audit Matter

How the Matter was Addressed in our
Report

1. Adoption of IFRS-09 and recognitio

n of

expected credit loss against financial assets

Refer to the note 4.1.2 to the annexed
consolidated financial statements.

As of December 31, 2024, the Group's
financial assets, including advances,
represent a significant portion of its total
assets. The Group adopted IFRS 9
‘Financial Instruments’ from January 1,
2024, in accordance with SBP's BPRD
Circular letter No. 7 of 2023. The Standard
introduces a new impairment model based
on Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on the
financial assets, replacing the previous
‘incurred credit losses’ approach. The
Group applied the modified retrospective
approach, without restating comparatives
for 2023.

The adoption of IFRS 9 led to a transition
adjustment of Rs. 5,498.565 million to
retained earnings as of January 1, 2024.
The details of impact if this adoption are
provided in Note 4.1.2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The estimation of Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) involves significant management
judgements and estimates, particularly in
areas such as the selection of risk
parameters (PD, LGD, EAD), the
classification of advances into stages, and
the use of forward-looking economic data.
Additionally, the Group must assess
recoveries for non-performing loans and
ensure compliance with SBP’s provisioning
requirements for Stage 3 advances. Due
to these complexities, we identified the
adequacy and completeness of ECL as a
key audit matter.

Our key audit procedures relating to adoption of
IFRS-09 and recognition of expected credit loss
against financial assets included:

Obtained an understanding of the Group's
methodology for estimating ECL on all
financial assets, including its accounting
policies and key assumptions applied in
the adoption of IFRS 9.

Evaluated the design and implementation
of controls over the ECL estimation
process, including model validation
procedures and compliance with SBP's
IFRS 9 instructions.

Evaluated the completeness and accuracy
of critical data used in the ECL model,
including exposure at default (EAD),
probability of default (PD), and loss given
default (LGD).

Assessed the appropriateness of the
staging criteria used to classify advances
under IFRS 9 and SBP Prudential
Regulation, ensuring proper identification
of significant increase in credit risk (SICR)
and credit-impaired advances based on
both quantitative and qualitative
indicators.

Evaluated the selection of macroeconomic
variables used in the ECL model, ensuring
their relevance to the agricultural sector
and the reliability of forecasts, as well as
the reasonableness of the weightages
assigned to different economic scenarios
in the ECL computation.

Performed independent recalculations of
ECL on selected loan exposures to validate
the mathematical accuracy of the model.

Considered the adequacy of the related
disclosures and assessed whether these
are in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework.

che.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the
requirements of Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Che>

30l Sip ilis yine;




w ZTBL s ANNUAL REPORT 2024

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

/N Crowe

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that
were of mast significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023, were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on March

04, 2024.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad
Nasir Muneer.

KO @a
Lahore CROWE HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO.
Dated: March 25, 2025 Chartered Accountants

UDIN: AR202410169rSFq]1BY6
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Chartered Accountants
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8-F, Main Market, Gulberg Ii,
Lahore - 54000
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks

Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions

Investments

Advances

Property and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

LIABILITIES
Bills payable
Borrowings
Deposits and other accounts
Lease liabilities
Subordinated loan
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

NET ASSETS
REPRESENTED BY

Share capital
Reserves

Surplus on revaluation of assets

Un-appropriated profit

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

16
17
18
19

20

2]

22

23

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2024 2023

...... Rupees in 000 ......
3,125,812 3,661,179
7,492,564 31,925,611
30,950,072 6,560,700
376,174,453 372,112,120
109,121,210 105,507,660
1,852,427 1,547,972
857,055 856,939
172,427 255,925
13,475,947 12,875,669
34,429,584 27,121,746
577,651,551 562,425,521
451,707 2,605,372
408,066,969 399,877,699
55,088,529 55,863,297
997,225 983,391
29,290,386 27,822,525
493,394,816 487,152,284
83,756,735 75,273,237
52,678,432 52,678,432
12,113,062 9,520,922
2,244,829 1,622,051
16,720,412 11,451,832
83,756,735 75.273.237

The annexed notes 1 to 48 and annexures I & 1I form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND L.OSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Mark-up / return / interest earned
Mark-up / return / interest expensed
Net mark-up / interest income

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME

Fee and commission income

Dividend income

Foreign exchange income

Income from derivatives

Gain on securities

Net gains/(losses) on derecognition of financial assets
measured at amortised cost

Other income

Total non-mark-up / interest income

Total income

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES

Operating expenses

Workers welfare fund

Other charges

Total non mark-up / interest expenses

Profit before credit loss allowance
Credit loss allowance and write offs - net

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Note

24
25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33
33

2024 2023
...... Rupees in '000 ......
111,252,316 142,316,092
86,200,979 117,820,473
25,051,337 24,495,619
1,139,924 1,312,045
66,735 135,730
2,339,449 266,525
1,873,341 847,689
5,419,449 2,561,989
30,470,786 27,057,608
16,060,571 14,675,692
1,881 39,804
16,062,452 14,715,496
14,408,334 12,342,112
(11,783,986) (5,505,176)
26,192,320 17,847,288
13,012,852 6,696,439
13,179,468 11,150,849
. Rupees ......
2.50 2,12
2.50 2.12

The annexed notes 1 to 48 and annexures I & II form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
..« Rupees in '000 ...

Profit after taxation for the year 13,179,468 11,150,849
Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account in

subsequent periods:

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches - -

Movement in surplus on revaluation of investments - net of tax 622,778 708,223
622,778 708,223

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in
subsequent periods:

Remeasurement gain on defined benefit obligations - net of tax 179,817 2,789,373
Movement in surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net of tax d =
Movement in surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets - net of tax

179,817 2,789,373

Total comprehensive income 13.982.063 14,648,445

The annexed notes 1 to 48 and annexures I & II form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2024 2023
Note  ..... Rupees in '000 ......
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating (loss) / profit before working capital changes 37 (1,297,346) 846,938
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Lendings to financial institutions (24,394,000) 33,062,442
Securities classified as FVPL (3,404,062) -
Advances (11,166,186)|| (19,482,766)
Other assets (excluding advance taxation) (1.691,866) (390,298
(40,656,114) 13,189,378
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Bills payable (2,153,665) 2,024,867
Borrowings from financial institutions 8,189,270 44,978,986
Deposits and other accounts (774,768) 9,735,996
Other liabilities (excluding current tax) 1,096,607 39,338
6,357,444 56,779,187
Interest received 103,963,074 136,619,933
Interest paid (87,538,768)  (115,353,741)
Employees' benefits paid (1,119,125) (1,040,883)
Income tax paid (9,890,591) (7.069,556)
Net cash flow (used in) / generated from operating activities (30,181,426) 83,971,256
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net Investments in securities classified as FVOCI 6,097,291 (62,992,840)
Dividend received 66,735 135,730
Investments in property and equipment (587,220) (470,658)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 26,085 93,437
Net cash flow generated from / (used in) investing activities 5,602,891 (63,234,331)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease liability against right-of-use assets (388,395)| (345,951)]
Net cash flow used in financing activities (388,395) (345,951)
(Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents (24,966,930) 20,390,974
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 34 35,586,790 15,195,816
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 34 10,619.860 35,586,790

The annexed notes 1 to 48 and annexures | & 11 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1. THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS
The "Group" consists of:
Holding company
- Zarai Taraqgiati Bank Limited
Subsidiary company
- Kissan Support Services (Private) Limited

1.1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
(a) Reorganization and conversion

The Federal Government in its cabinet meeting held on August 28, 2002 decided for the
reorganization and conversion of Agricultural Development Bank of Pakistan (ADBP) into a public
limited Company for the purposes of ensuring good governance, autonomy, delivering high quality
and viable financial services to a greater number of rural clientele and adequate returns to
stakeholders. Accordingly, the Agricultural Development Bank of Pakistan (Reorganization and
Conversion) Ordinance, 2002 was promulgated for taking over the entire undertaking of ADBP and
for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.

{b) Status

As required under section 3 of the Agricultural Development Bank of Pakistan (Reorganization and
Conversion) Ordinance, 2002, Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited ("the Bank") was incorporated as a
public limited Company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act,
2017) on October 23, 2002. Consequently, under SRO 823(1)/2002 dated November 18, 2002, all
the assets, contracts, liabilities, proceedings and undertakings of ADBP were transferred to, and
vested in Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited on December 14, 2002, the effective date specified by the
Federal Government, on the basis of net worth determined at Rs. 8.7 billion. The Bank is domiciled
in Pakistan and its registered office is situated at 1-Faisal Avenue (Zero Point), Islamabad. The
Bank operates 501 (2023: 501) branches including 25 (2023: 25) Islamic Banking branches in
Pakistan as at the close of the year,

(¢) Nature of business

The main purpose of the Bank is to provide sustainable rural finance and services particularly to
small farmers and low-income households to strengthen the rural and agricultural sector, mitigate
poverty, capital market and investment activities and other banking business.

7202
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1.2  Kissan Support Services (Private) Limited ("the Company")

Kissan Support Services (Private) Limited was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited
company on September 19, 2005 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, It is a fully owned
subsidiary of Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited (ZTBL). The registered office of the Company is
situated at 1-Faisal Avenue (Zero Point), Islamabad. The Company's principal business is the

provision of consultancy, advisory, agency and other support services on contractual basis or
otherwise to the Bank.

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

2.1 These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidiary company.

2.2 The financial results of the Islamic banking branches have been consolidated in these financial
statements for reporting purposes, after eliminating inter-branch transactions / balances. Key

financial figures of the Islamic banking branches are disclosed in Annexure II to these financial
statements.

2,3 The assets and liabilities of the subsidiary company have been consolidated on a line by line basis
and the carrying value of investment held by the Bank is eliminated against the subsidiary’s equity
held by the Bank in the consolidated financial statements. Intra-group balances and transactions
have been eliminated.

2.4 The Group believes that there is no significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

2,5 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. These comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP).

In case requirements of the Companies Act, 2017, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, or the
provisions of and directives issued by the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS
or IFAS, the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, and
the said directives shall prevail.

o
wn
-

The disclosures made in these financial statements have been based on a format prescribed by SBP
vide BPRD Circular No. 2 dated February 9, 2023 with further addition made vide BPRD Circular
Letter No. 13 of 2024 dated July 1, 2024 and accounting and financial reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan.
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2.5.2 The SBP, vide BSD Circular Letter No. 10, dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of
International Accounting Standard 40 ‘Investment Property’ (IAS 40) for banking companies till
further instructions. Moreover, SBP vide BPRD Circular No, 04, dated February 25, 2015 has
deferred the applicability of Islamic Financial Accounting Standard (IFAS) 3, Profit and loss
sharing on Deposits. Further, according to a notification of Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) dated April 28, 2008, International Financial Reporting Standard 7 ‘Financial
Instruments Disclosure’ (IFRS 7), has not been made applicable for banks. Accordingly, the
requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these financial
statements. However, investments have been classified and disclosed in accordance with the
requirements prescribed by SBP through various circulars.

2.5.3 As per BPRD Circular Letter No. 16 of 2024 dated July 29, 2024, unlisted equity securities are
currently carried at the lower of cost or breakup value as per the exemption granted by SBP.

Effective from January 1, 2025, as per the requirement of IFRS 9, these will be measured at fair
value under [FRS 13.

2.5.4 The Bank received an extension from SBP up to December 31, 2025 for application of EIR in
general for all financial assets and liabilities, however as financial assets other than advances and
financial liabilities were already effectively carried at EIR before the implementation of IFRS 9
hence said extension has only been applied on advances, Therefore, advances are now carried at
cost, excluding staff loans which are carried at amortized cost, net of expected credit loss
allowances.

Further, SBP through BPRD Circular Letter No. 1 of 2025 dated January 22, 2025 has clarified the
followings:

- Islamic Banking Institutions (IBIs) are allowed to follow Islamic Financial Accounting Standards
(IFAS) 1 & 2 where applicable and continue the existing accounting methodology on other Islamic
products until issuance of further instruction in this regard,

- The treatment of charity should be in line with the existing practices as defined in SBP instructions
issued via IBD Circular No, 02 of 2008 and should not be recognized as income.

2.5.5 All Islamic products are governed by the product manual approved by the Shariah Board of the
Group. The related accounting and revenue recognition policies are outlined in notes 4.4.2, 4.14.2
these financial statements, respectively. Other than the products disclosed in the aforementioned
notes, all remaining Islamic products are accounted for under IFRS 9.

2.5.6 Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are effective in the current year

As directed by SBP via BPRD Circular Letter No. 7 of 2023 dated April 13, 2023, IFRS 9,
(Financial Instruments) is effective in Pakistan for period beginning on or after January 1, 2024. In
addition, due to the application of IFRS 9, SBP vide BPRD Circular No.2 dated February 9, 2023,
has also amended the format of the annual financial statements. Details regarding the
aforementioned adoption and amendment, including the impact thereof, are discussed in more detail
in note 4.1 to these financial statements,

A
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Except for the above, certain other amendments to standards, interpretations and improvements to
accounting standards became effective, however, these do not have any material effect on the
financial statements of the Group and, therefore, are not disclosed.

2.5.7 Standards, Interpretations and amendments to accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following new standards and interpretations of and amendments to existing accounting
standards will be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard,
interpretation or amendment:

Effective date (annual
periods beginning on or

after)
- IAS 21 - Lack of exchangeability - (Amendments) January 01, 2025
- [FRS 17 - Insurance Contracts January 01, 2026

- IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Not yet announced
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments)

The Group expects that adoption of the same will not affect its financial statements in the period of
initial application.

2.5.8 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires the
management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
These estimates affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. The areas
where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Group's consolidated financial
statements or where judgement was exercised in the application of accounting policies are as

follows:

Note
Valuation and impairment of financial instruments 49 &4.16
Classification of investment in subsidiaries and associates 45
Valuation and depreciation of property and equipment 4.6
Valuation and depreciation of right-of-use assets and related lease 4.8
Valuation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 4.10
Valuation of defined benefit plan 4.2
Taxation 4.11

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

3 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for:
- Certain investments that have been marked to market and are carried at fair value.

- Post employment benefits that are recorded at present value using actuarial valuation.

- Right-of-use assets and their related lease liability which are measured at their present values,

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group's functional and
presentation currency. The amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand rupees.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policy information related to preparation of these financial statements are
consistent with those of the previous financial year, except as disclosed in note 4.1 below,

4.1 Changes in accounting policies

4.1.1 Revised format of financial statements

SBP through its BPRD Circular No. 2 dated February 9, 2023, has amended the format of annual
financial statements of banks. All banks are required to prepare their annual financial statements on
the revised format effective from accounting year starting from January 1, 2024, Accordingly, the
Group has prepared these financial statements on the new format prescribed by SBP. The adoption
of the new format contains additional disclosures and certain changes in the financial statements’
presentation, primarily due to the implementation of IFRS 9 as applicable in Pakistan. However, the
corresponding figures continue to be classified and disclosed in accordance with the previous
financial accounting and reporting framework.

Adoption of revised financial statements format has also resulted in following material changes (due
to which the corresponding presentations have also been changed):

- Right-of-use-assets (note 11) amounting to Rs. 857.055 million (2023; Rs. 856.939 million) which
were previously shown as part of property and equipment are now shown separately on the
statement of financial position.

- Lease liabilities (note 19) amounting to Rs. 997,225 million (2023: Rs. 983.391 million) which
were previously shown as part of other liabilities are now shown separately on the statement of
financial position.

4.1.2 TFRS 9 - 'Financial Instruments’

During the year, as directed by SBP vide its BPRD Circular No. 7 of 2023 dated April 13, 2023,
IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments' (the Standard) became applicable to the Bank.

BPRD Circular No. 3 of 2022 dated July 5, 2022 issued by SBP provides detailed instructions on
implementation of IFRS 9 (the Application Instructions) for ensuring smooth and consistent
implementation of the standard across banks.

The Standard addresses recognition, classification, measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities. The Standard has also introduced a new impairment mode!l for
financial assets which requires recognition of impairment charge based on ‘Expected Credit Losses'
(ECL) approach rather than ‘incurred credit losses' approach as previously followed. The ECL has
impact on al) the assets of the Group which are exposed to credit risk.

cac
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The Group has adopted IFRS 9 in accordance with the Application Instructions from January 1,
2024, using the modified retrospective approach and has not restated comparatives for the 2023
reporting period. Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities resulting
from the adoption of IFRS 9 were recognised in the retained earnings as at January 1, 2024 without
restating the comparative figures as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in the
Standard. Accordingly, the information presented for 2023 does not reflect the requirements of
[FRS 9 and therefore is not comparable to the information presented for 2024 under IFRS 9.

SBP through its BPRD Circular Letter No. 16 of 2024 dated July 29, 2024, has amended and
extended the timelines for application instructions. Under the revised guidelines, banks are required
to implement modification accounting for financial assets and liabilities in accordance with the
Standard. These changes took effect from October 1, 2024, and have been applied retrospectively
from January 1, 2024. SBP through its BPRD Circular Letter No. 1 of 2025 dated January 22, 2025,
SBP further clarifies that modification accounting to be applied to loans modified on or after
January 1, 2020.
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4.1.2.1.1 As per paragraph 3.2 of the Application Instructions, Government securities in local currency are

exempted from the application of ECL framework, details are mentioned in note 4.1.2.10 to these
financial statements.

4.1.2.1.2 Certain debt securities are held by the Group in separate portfolios to meet everyday liquidity
needs. The Group seeks to minimise the costs of managing these liquidity needs and therefore
actively manages the return on the portfolio. That return consists of collecting contractual payments
as well as gains and losses from the sale of financial assets. The investment strategy often results in
sales activity that is significant in value. The Group considers that under [FRS 9 these securities are
held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets.

4.1.2.1.3 The Group previously classified certain equity investments as Available-for-Sale (AFS). Upon
implementing IFRS 9, the Group designated these equity investments as strategic and made an
irrevocable election to classify them at FVOCI.

4.1.2.2 TImpact on regulatory capital

The introduction of IFRS 9 has resulted in reduction in regulatory capital of the Banks, which has
reduced their lending capacity and ability to support their clients. In order to mitigate the impact of
ECL models on capital, SBP has determined that it may be appropriate for the banks to introduce a
transitional arrangement for the impact on regulatory capital from the application of ECL
accounting. Annexure B of the Application Instructions issued by SBP has detailed the transitional
arrangement.

The transitional arrangement applies only to provisions for Stage 1 and Stage 2 financial assets. The
transitional arrangement must adjust CET1 capital. Where there is a reduction in CET1 capital due
to new provisions, net of tax effect, upon adoption of an ECL accounting model, the decline in
CET1 capital (the “transitional adjustment amount™) must be partially included (i.e., added back) to
CET]1 capital over the “transition period” of five years.

Moreover, SBP has allowed to adjust the amount of Stage 1 and Stage 2 provisions in Tier 2 Capital
that have not been added back to CET 1 and vice versa as per Annexure A of BPRD Circular no 16
of 2024 dated July 29, 2024.

Had IFRS 9 not been applied then CAR would have been higher by 2.02 bps from 36.01 % to
38.03%.

4.1.2.3 Classification and measurement

Under the new standard, classification and measurement of financial assets depends on how these
are managed based on business model and their contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial
assets that do not meet the Solely Payment of Principal and Interest (SPPI) criteria are required to
be measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVPL) regardless of the business model in which
they are held.

Recognition and initial measurement

Debt securities issued are initially recorded when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

2
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A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at transaction price. The fair value of a financial asset on
initial recognition is generally its transaction price. If the Group determines that the fair value on
initial recognition differs from the transaction price then the financial instrument is initially
measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition
and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in statement of profit and loss
account on an appropriate basis over the life of the asset but no later than when the valuation is
wholly supported by observable market data, or the transaction is closed out. Advances other than
staff loans are initially measured at transaction price i.e., the amount of loan disbursed at
disbursement date.

Staff loans are recognized at fair value at the time of disbursement. The fair value is determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows using the prevailing market rates for instruments. The
difference between the disbursed amount and the fair value at initial recognition is recorded as a
employee benefit expense,

Classification
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset other than advances except for staff loans is classified as
measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or FVPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is

not designated as at FVPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to cellect contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cashflows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.

Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in scope of the
standard are never bifurcated. Instead, the whole hybrid instrument is assessed for classification.

Advances are carried at cost, net of expected credit loss allowances, excluding staff loans, which
are measured at amortized cost.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are either classified as fair value through profit and loss account (FVPL), when
they are held for trading purposes, or at amortized cost. Financial liabilities classified as FVPL are
measured at fair value and all the fair value changes are recognized in statement of profit and loss
account. Financial liabilities classified at amortized cost are initially recorded at their fair value and
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method. Markup expense and foreign
exchange gain and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss account. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss account,
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4.1.2.4 Business model assessment

A financial asset is classified as either Held to collect, Held to collect and sale and Others based on
Business model assessment. The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model
in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business
is managed, and information is provided to management. The assessment requires judgement based
on facts and circumstances on the date of assessment. The assessment considers the policies and
objectives for the portfolio of financial assets, risk affecting, performance evaluation, business
manager’s compensation and historical sales information.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows
nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

4.1.2.5 Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI)

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as
interest margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Group considers the contractual terms
of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term
that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making the assessment, the Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- prepayment and extension terms;

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans);
and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates).

A prepayment feature aligns with SPPI if it mainly represents unpaid principal and profit, including
reasonable compensation for early termination.

4.1.2.6 Subsequent measurement

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
at FVPL losses, including any markup or dividend income, are recognised in
statement of profit and loss account.

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

at amortised cost effective interest method in case of investments, lendings to financial
institutions, cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with other
banks, staff loans and other financial assets. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Markup and impairment are recognised
in statement of profit and loss account.
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Debt investments These assets are subsequently measured at fair value and is assessed for

at FVOCI impairment under the new ECL model. Markup income is calculated
using the effective interest method and includes amortisation of
premiums and accretion of discount and impairment are recognised in
profit and loss account. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to statement of profit and loss account.

Equity investments These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Dividends are

at FVOCI recognised as income in statement of profit and loss account unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment, in which case they are adjusted from the carrying value of
investment, Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are
never reclassified to profit and loss account.

Advances at cost Advances are carried at cost, net of expected credit loss allowances,
excluding staff loans, which are measured at amortized cost, net of
expected credit loss allowances.

4.1.2.7 Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between
that initial amount and the maturity amount for investments and lendings to financial institution. For
financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance or impairment allowance before
January 1, 2024.

The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

4.12.8 Calculation of markup income and expense

Income from performing advances is recognised on accrual basis as per the terms of the contract.
However, where debt securities, classified as investments in the financial statements, are purchased
at premium or discount, such premium / discount including the transaction cost is amortized
through the statement of profit and loss account over the remaining maturity of the debt security
using the effective interest rate method. The interest income on staff loans is recognized in line with
the EIR, while any expected credit losses are assessed and accounted for in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 9. Income from advances except for staff loans are recognized in statement of
profit and loss account using contractual rate. Similarly, under the local regulatory requirement,
income recoverable on classified advances and investments (debt securities), is recognized on a
receipt basis.

Income on rescheduled / restructured advances and investments is recognized as permitted by SBP
regulations.

Markup expense on financial liabilities (comprising deposits and borrowings) is recognized on an
accrual basis in the period in which it is incurred, based on effective interest rate method.

Lot
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4.1.2.9 Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when:

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire; or

it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which either:

i. substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are trans ferred; or
ii. the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount of
the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized), and the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in OCI is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss account, except that in case of the derecognition of equity securities held at FVOCI, cumulative
gains or losses are transferred to unappropriated profit.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expired. The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

4.1.2.10 Impairment

The impairment requirements apply to financial assets measured at amortized cost, and FVOCI
(other than equity instruments), advances at cost and certain loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts. At initial recognition, an impairment allowance (or provision in the case of
commitments and guarantees) is required for expected credit losses (‘ECL’) resulting from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (*12-month ECL”). In the event of a significant
increase in credit risk, a provision is required for ECL resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of the financial instrument (‘lifetime ECL’).

Measurement of ECL
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

- financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive);

- financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows;

- undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive; and

- financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts
that the Group expects to recover.

Non-Performing financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost, at cost
and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI, and finance lease receivables are credit-impaired
(referred to as *Stage 3 financial assets’). A financial asset is ‘non-performing’ when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.
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Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

- the restructuring of a loan by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties,

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually
considered to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual
cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, a
agri loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered credit-impaired even when the regulatory
definition of default is different.

Under SBP's IFRS 9 Application instructions, the Bank is not required to compute ECL on
Government Securities and on Government guaranteed credit exposure in local currency. The Bank
is required to calculate ECL on it’s non-performing financial assets as higher of provision under
Prudential Regulations (PR) and ECL under IFRS 9. Further, the Banks are advised to recognize
income on impaired assets (loans classified under PRs i.e., OAEM and Stage 3 loans) on a receipt
basis in accordance with the requirements of Prudential Regulations issued by SBP.

The Group calculates the ECL against agriculture portfolios as higher of PR and ECL under IFRS 9
at borrower / facility level as instructed under Annexure A of BPRD Circular no 16 of 2024 dated
July 29, 2024,

Based on the requirements of IFRS 9 Application Instructions, the Group has performed an ECL
assessment considering the following key elements:

- PD: The probability that a counterparty will default over the next 12 months from the reporting
date (12- month ECL, Stagel) or over the lifetime of the product (lifetime ECL, Stage 2). PD is
estimated using external rating issued by the rating agencies. The Group has used Transition
Matrix issued by rating agencies for the estimation of PD, The Group has used roll-rate method
using the days past due (DPD) criteria to estimated PD for its agri portfolio. PD are then adjusted
with forward looking information for calculation of ECL

EAD: The expected balance sheet exposure at the time of default, incorporating expectations on
drawdowns, amortisation, pre-payments and forward-looking information where relevant. The
Group estimates EAD for financial assets carried at an amortised cost and carried at cost equal to
principal plus profit. Each repayment date is assumed to be default point in the model and the
ECL is calculated on EAD at each reporting date and discounted at the effective interest rate or
contractual interest rate for advances other than staff loans for which effective interest rate is
used.

LGD: An estimate of the loss incurred on a facility upon default by a customer. LGD is calculated
as the difference between coniractual cash flows due and those that the Group expects to receive,
inciuding from the liquidation of any form of collateral. It is expressed as a percentage of the
exposure outstanding on the date of classification of an obligor.

Presentation of allowance for Expected Credit Loss in the Statement of Financial Position
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

- Financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets.

cHt
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- For advances measured at cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the advances.

- Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision in other liabilities.

- where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Group
does not identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn
component and instead presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined
amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any

excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a
provision; and

- debt instruments measured at FVOCL: no loss allowance is recognized in the statement of
financial position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the loss
allowance is disclosed and is recognized in OCI.

4.1.2,11 Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

A SICR is assessed in the context of an increase in the risk of a default occurring over the life of the
financial instrument when compared to that expected at the time of initial recognition. It is not
assessed in the context of an increase in the ECL. The Group used several qualitative and
quantitative measures in assessing SICR. Quantitative measures relate to deterioration of Obligor
Risk Ratings (ORR) or where principal and / or markup payments are 60 days or more past due.
Qualitative factors include unavailability of financial information and pending litigations.

As required by the Application Instructions, financial assets may be reclassified out of Stage 3 if
they meet the requirements of PR issued by SBP. Financial assets in Stage 2 may be reclassified to
Stage 1 if the conditions that led to a SICR no longer apply. However, a minimum period of 3
months from initial downgrade is required before any facility is moved back to Stage | from Stage
2. For a facility to move back from Stage 3 to Stage 2, it should meet the criteria defined under the
respective Prudential Regulations for de-classification of account / facility. An exposure cannot be
upgraded from Stage 3 to Stage 1 directly and should be upgraded to Stage 2 initially.

IFRS 9 includes a rebuttable presumption that a default does not occur later than 90 days past due
and it also presumes that there is SICR if credit exposure is more than 30 days past due. In order to
bring consistency, SBP has allowed the backstop to the rebuttable presumption of days past due of
credit portfolio against a specific credit facility and its stage allocation under IFRS 9 as mentioned
in Annexure-C of BPRD Circular No. 3 0of 2022. However, banks are free to choose more stringent
days past due criteria. Bank align its policy with Annexure-C of BPRD Circular No. 3 of 2022;
hence, SICR is considered if credit exposure exceeds 60 days past due.

4.1.2.12 Undrawn loan commitments and guarantees:

Financial guarantees’ are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. ‘Loan commitments’ are firm commitments to
provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

When estimating lifetime ECL for undrawn loan commitments, the Bank estimates the expected
portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then
based on the present value of the expected cash flows if the loans are drawn down, based on a
probability-weighting of the three scenarios.
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4.1.2.13 Governance, ownership and responsibilities

The Group has set up a robust governance framework requiring Risk Management, Finance,
Business, Credit Risk, Internal Audit and IT functions to ensure compliance with IFRS 9
requirements,

The Group's Credit Risk Review & Administration Division performs credit risk assessment,
moniters Significant Increase in Credit Risk of the borrowers, reviews Credit Ratings and obligor
aitributes.

The Technology Operations & Support Division extracts the data required for ECL calculations, IT
Division also provide support for system development and upgrades.

The Group’s Finance & Accounts Division takes ownership of ECL models and methodologies
used in calculation of ECL. Finance & Accounts Division assess the financial impact, meet the

financial reporting requirements and presents quarterly results to Board of Directors (BOD) / its
Board Sub Committee.

The Enterprise Risk Management Division calculates impact of ECL on Group’s capital adequacy,
leverage ratio and Liquidity requirements.

As per the Group's policy, the Bank’s Internal Audit function carries out ECL model validation,
reviews IFRS 9 methodology and impact calculated by Finance & Accounts Division.

4.2 Staff retirement benefits

The Bank operates the following staff retirement benefits for its employees:

a) Pension scheme

The Bank operates defined benefit funded pension scheme approved by the income tax authorities,
for its eligible employees who opted for employees' benefits scheme, introduced in 1975 and 1977
for clerical / non-clerical staff and for executives / officers, respectively, The Bank's costs are
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by independent actuary by using
"Projected Unit Credit Method',

b) Gratuity scheme

The Bank operates a defined benefit funded gratuity scheme approved by the income tax
authorities, established upon introduction of Staff Regulations - 2005 (SR-2005) for the employees
governed under SR-2005. Contributions to this Fund are made by the Bank on the basis of actuarial
valuation.

€) Provident fund scheme

The Bank operates a defined contribution funded provident fund scheme for its employees who did
not opt for the employees' benefit scheme introduced in 1975 and 1977 for clerical / non-clerical
staff and for executives / officers respectively. Under this scheme, equal contributions at defined
rates are made by the member employees and the Bank. The Bank also operates non-contributory
provident fund for its employees who opted for the new employees' benefit scheme, as mentioned
above. Under this, non-contributory provident fund, contributions at defined rates are made by its
member employees only. Both of these provident funds are approved by the income tax authorities.
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d) Benevolent scheme

The Bank also has two funded defined benefit benevolent fund schemes for its employees,
separately for officers and for clerical and non-clerical staff. Equal contribution to these schemes

are made by employees and the Bank, The Bank is also liable to meet any shortfall in the fund,
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation.

€) Post retirement medical benefits

The Bank operates an unfunded defined benefit post retirement medical benefit scheme for all of its
employees. Provision is made in the financial statements for the benefit based on actuarial
valuation, Actuarial gains / losses are accounted for in the manner similar to pension scheme.

)] Employees’ compensated absences

The Bank accounts for all accumulating compensated absences when the employees render service
that increases their entitlement to future compensated absences. The compensated absences are only
encashable at the time of retirement and that too for a certain period provided in the terms of
employment. Provision is made in the financial statements for the benefit based on entitled un-
availed leave balances carried forwarded to the next year on the basis of actuarial valuation carried
out using the Projected Unit Credit Method',

Kissan Support Services (Private) Limited

The Company operates the following staff retirement benefits for its employees:

a) Unfunded medical benefits

The Company operates an unfunded medical benefit fund for its employees. Employees are entitled
for free medical facility during their service. This unfunded amount is utilized against the
reimbursement of employee's actual medical expenses. The benefits are charged to profit and loss
account at the rate of Rs. 400 per employee per month.

b) Gratuity scheme

The Company operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees whose period of
service is one year or more. Employees are entitled to gratuity on the basis set out in staff
regulation. The most recent actuarial valuation is carried out at December 31, 2023 using the
"Projected Unit Credit Method' as under the latest IAS 19 revised 2011. The acturial gains / losses
arising due to differences between actuarial assumptions and actual experience regarding salary
increase, mortality and withdrawal probabilities are considered as remeasurements of the net benefit
liability and are recognized in other comprehensive income.

4.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, balances with treasury banks and balances with other
banks.

4.4 Advances
4.4.1 Loans and advances

These are stated at cost less expected credit loss allowances except for staff loans which are stated
at amortized cost less credit loss allowances.
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4.4.2 Islamic Financing and Related Assets

Diminishing Musharaka

In Diminishing Musharaka financing, the Group enters into Musharaka based on Shirkat-ul-milk for
financing an agreed share of fixed asset (e.g. house, land, plant or machinery) with its customers
and enters into periodic rental payment agreement for the utilisation of the Group’s Musharaka
share by the customer. The customer purchases the Group's share gradually as per his undertaking,

4.5 Investments
Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Bank has significant influence but not control.
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Bank has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries and associates is reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists the
investment’s recoverable amount is estimated at higher of its value in use and its fair value less cost

to sell. Gains and losses on disposal of investments in subsidiaries and associates are included in
the profit and loss account.

4.6 Property and equipment and depreciation
Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment losses (if any) and consists of expenditure
incurred, advances made and other costs directly attributable to operating fixed assets in the course
of their construction and installation. Cost also includes applicable borrowing costs, if any.
Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as and when assets are available for
use as intended by the management.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment, except freehold land which is not amortized and capital work-in-progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is computed over the estimated useful lives of the related assets at the rates set out in
note 10.2 to these financial statements, after taking into account the residual value, if any.
Depreciation is charged on reducing balance method except for vehicles, computer equipment and
leasehold land which are depreciated / amortized on straight line method. The residual values,

useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the assets are available for use while no
depreciation is charged in the month in which the assets are disposed off,

Gains / losses, if any, on disposal of property and equipment fixed assets are charged to the profit
and loss account during the year,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account.
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4.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized from the month when these assets are available for
use, using the straight line method, whereby the costs of the intangible assets are amortized over
their useful lives over which economic benefits are expected to flow to the Group. The useful lives
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

4.8 Right-of-use assets and their related lease liability

4.8.1 Right of-use assets

On initial recognition, right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to initial lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,

Right-of-use assets are subsequently stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation / accumulated
impairment losses and are adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability. The remeasurement of
lease liability will only occur in cases where the terms of the lease are changed during the lease
tenor. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over their expected useful lives using the straight-line
method,

Depreciation on additions (new leases) is charged from the month in which the leases are entered
into. No depreciation is charged after the leases are matured or terminated.

482 Lease liability against right-of-use assets

The lease liabilities are initially measured as the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. The lease liability is also remeasured to reflect any reassessment or change in lease terms.
These remeasurements of lease liabilities are recognised as adjustments to the carrying amount of
related right-of-use assets after the date of initial recognition,

Each lease payment is allocated between a reduction of the liability and a finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the profit and loss account as markup expense over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

4.9 Impairment

Carrying values of assets are reviewed at each reporting date for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable. If
such indication exists, and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount,
assets are written down to their recoverable amounts. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. The resulting impairment loss is taken to the profit and loss
account except for the impairment loss on revalued assets, which is adjusted against the related
revaluation surplus to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on revaluation
of that asset.
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4.10 Assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

The Group occasionally acquires assets in settlement of certain advances. These are stated at the
carrying value of such assets,

4,11 Taxation

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking
into account available tax credits, exemptions and rebates as laid down in the applicable income tax
law. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments wherever considered necessary, relating
to prior years which arise from assessments framed / finalized during the year.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for all temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting
purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based
on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
using the tax rates enacted at the reporting date. A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available and the credits can be utilized.
Deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits
will be realized. The Group also recognizes deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on
revaluation of securities in accordance with the requirements of IAS 12 'Income Taxes'. The related
deferred tax asset / liability is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

Prior years

The taxation charge for prior years represents adjustments to the tax charge relating to prior years,
arising from assessments and changes in estimates made during the current year, except otherwise
stated.

4,12 Borrowings / deposits and their costs
Borrowings / deposits are recorded at the proceeds received.

Borrowings / deposits costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which these are incurred
using effective mark-up / interest rate method.

4.13 Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to a repurchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as
investments and the counter party liability is included in borrowings. Securities purchased under an
agreement to resell (reverse repo) are not recognized in the financial statements as investments and
the amount extended to the counter party is included in lendings to financial institutions. The
difference between the purchase / sale and re-sale / re-purchase price is recognized as mark-up
income / expense on a time proportion basis, as the case may be.

2

32 10) Sip ilis e




w ZTBL w ANNUAL REPORT 2024

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

4.14 Revenue recognition

4.14.1 - Mark-up / interest on advances (other than Islamic financing which is disclosed in Note 4.14.2)
and returns on investments are recognized on a time proportion basis using the effective interest
method except that mark-up / interest on non-performing advances and investments is recognized
on a receipt basis, in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by
SBP. Where the debt securities are purchased at premium or discount, such premium / discount is
amortised through the profit and loss account over the remaining period of maturity,

- Fee, brokerage and commission income is recognized on accrual basis.

- Profit / (loss) on sale of investments is credited / charged to the profit and loss account for the
current year,

- Income from interbank deposits in saving accounts is recognized in the profit and loss account as
it accrues using the effective interest method.

- Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive has been established.

- Recoveries against loans written-off under Government relief packages are accounted for on cash
receipt basis.

- Operating lease rentals are recorded in the profit and loss account on a time proportion basis over
the term of lease arrangements,

4.14.2 Revenue recognition under product manusal as approved by Shariah Board of the Group

- Income from diminishing musharaka is recognised on time proportionate basis over the term of
contract.

4.15 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange rate
prevailing on the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
expressed in Pak Rupee terms at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date.

4.16 Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provision of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual right to future cash flows from the asset expires or is transferred along with the risk and
reward of ownership of the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised when obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the financial asset and
liability is recognised in the profit and loss account of the current period.

4.17 Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial
statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off and the Group intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities, simultaneously.

2
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4,18 Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the financial statements require measurement at,
and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises
market observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determ ining fair value
measurements are categorised into different levels based on how observable the inputs used in the
valuation technique utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy’):

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items (unadjusted).
Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than Level 1 inputs.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the inputs used that has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement of the item and transfers of items between levels are
recognised in the period they occur,

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group that either require fair value measurements
or only fair value disclosures as at December 31, 2024 are disclosed in note 40.

4.19 Dividend distribution and appropriation

Dividends (including bonus dividend) and other appropriations (except appropriations which are
required by law) are recognized in the period in which these are approved.

4.20 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss aftributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

4.21 Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing
particular products or services (business segment), or in providing product or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment), and is subject to risk and rewards that are
different from those of other segments. The Bank is engaged in providing agri-financing and branch
banking, islamic banking and treasury operations and operates only in Pakistan.

4.22 Related party transactions
Transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at

arm's length at normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party
transactions using valuation modes as admissible.

4.23 Other payables

Liabilities for other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Group.
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4.24 Other receivables

These are recognized at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given, An assessment is
made at each reporting date to determine, whether there is an indication that a financial asset, or a
group of financial assets, may be impaired. If such an indication exists, the estimated recoverable
amount of that asset is determined and an impairment loss is recognized for the difference between
the recoverable amount and the carrying value.

4.25 Statutory reserve

In compliance with the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Group is
required to maintain a statutory reserve to which an appropriation equivalent to 20% of the profit
after tax is made till such time the reserve fund equals the paid up capital of the Bank. However,
thereafter, the contribution is reduced to 10% of the profit after tax.

4.26 Cash reserve requirement

The Group maintains liquidity equivalent to at least 6% of its time and demand deposits in the form
of liquid assets i.e. cash and banks.

4,27 Grants

Grants of non-capital nature are recognized as deferred income at the time of their receipt.
Subsequently, these are recognized in the profit and loss account to the extent of the actual
expenditure incurred. Expenditure incurred against grants committed but not received, is recognized
directly in the profit and loss account and reflected as a receivable from donors.

Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are recognized in the profit and loss
account as other operating income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

The grant related to an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position initially as deferred
income when there is reasonable assurance that it will be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attached to it

428 Contingencies

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation as a result of past
events, existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of
the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability,
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2024 2023
Naote Rupees in '000
5 CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
In hand
Local currency 1,133,799 911,540
With State Bank of Pakistan in;
Local currency current account 51 1,621,700 1,834,020
With National Bank of Pakistan in:
Local currency current account 180,216 393,638
Local currency deposit account 52 188,231 520,283
368,447 913,921
Prize bonds 1,866 1,698
3.125.812 3,661,179
Less: Credit loss allowance held against cash and balances with treasury banks - -
Cash and balances with treasury banks - net of credit loss allowance 3,125 812 3.661.179

5.1  This represents current accounts maintained with SBP under cash reserve requirement of the Banking Companies Ordinance,
1962,

5.2 These carry mark-up at rates ranging from 13.50% to 22.20% (2023: 14.5% to 20.50%) per annum.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
6 BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan
In current accounts 111,847 99,618
In deposit accounts 6.1 7.382.201 31,825.993
7,494,048 31,925,611
Less: Credit loss allowance held against balances with other banks (1,484) -
Balances with other banks - net of credit loss allowance 7,492,564 31,925.611
6.1  These carry mark-up at rates ranging from 6.75% to 24% (2023: 14.50% to 24.50%) per annum.
2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
7 LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Call money lendings T2 14,500,000 3,000,000
Musharakah lending 7.3 13,650,000 600,000
Repurchase agreement lendings (reverse repo) 7.4 2,804,700 2,960,700
30,954,700 6,560,700
Less: Credit loss allowance held against lending to financial institutions (4,628) -
Lending to financial institutions - net of credit loss allowance 30,950,072 6,560,700
7.1 Particulars of lendings
In local currency 30,954,700 6,560,700
In foreign currencies a 5
30,954,700 6,560,700

7.2 This carries mark-up at rates 13.85% to 13.90% (2023: 22% to 22.75% ) per annum having maturity during January 2025,
7.3 This carries mark-up at rates 12% to 12.75% (2023: 22% ) per annum having maturity during January 2025.

74  This carries mark-up at rates 13.28% (2023: 22.3% ) per annum having maturity during January 2025.
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7.5  Securities held as coliateral against lendings o financial institutions

2024 2023
Held by F:uﬂher Held by F.urthor
given as Total given as Total
Bank Bank
collateral collateral
sessaneesensee RUpeeS in '000 ....o.oniiniiiinnnin
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2,804,700 - 2,804,700 2,960,700 - 2,960,700

7.6 Lending to financial institutions - Particulars of credit loss allowance

2024
" ' Credit loss I
Lending allowance held
Rupees in "000
Domestic
Performing Stage 1 30.954.700 4,628
Under performing Stage 2 - s
Non-performing Stage 3
Substandard F =
Doubtful - -
Loss - .
Total 30.954.700 4,628
2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Rupees in "000
Opening balance - - - -
Impact of adoption of IFRS9 490 = 3 490
Balances as at 01 January after adoping [FRS 9 490 - - 490
New financial assets originated or pruchased | 4,628 - | - |r 4,628
Financial assets that have been derecognised (490) - - (490)
4,138 - - 4,138
Closing balance 4628 = = 4.628

A
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8.4
8.4.1

8.4.2

Quality of securities

Details regarding quality of FVPL securities are as follows:

2024 2023
Cost
Rupees in '000

Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed

Pakistan Investment Bonds 3,404,062 -

Details regarding quality of FVOCI securities are as follows:

Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed

Market Treasury Bills 95,249,487 231,281,101
Pakistan Investment Bonds 268,124,131 131,183,410
ljarah Sukuks 2,159,001 3,922,164

365,532,619 366,386,675

Shares

Listed companies

Food and personal care products - cost 89,296 89,296
2024 2023
Cosi Breakup Cost Breakup
value value

Rupees in '000
Unlisted companies

Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited 10,523 17,327 10,523 8,873

Pakistan Agricultural Storage and
Services Corporation Limited - 1,557,625 - 1,629,500
10,523 1,574,952 10,523 1,638,373

Investment in Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited has been fully provided for due to negative
break up value in prior financial statements. Cost per share is Rs. 10 to Rs. 13.5 having total cost
amounting to Rs. 10.523 million.

Investments in Pakistan Agricultural Storages and Services Corporation Limited was transferred
to the Bank at the time of conversion of ADBP into the Bank at nominal value of Rs. 1. Cost per
share is Rs. 1,000 having total cost amounting to Rs. 2.50 million.
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2024 2023
Cost
Rupees in '000

Non Government debt securities

Listed
- AAA - -
- AA+ AA, AA- 1,977,271 2,126,906
- A+ A, A- 113,750 -
2,091,021 2,126,906
Unlisted
- AAA - -
- AA+, AA, AA- - -
- A+ A, A- 265,250 328,750
cHt 265,250 328,750

32 10) Sip ilis e




<
N
N
T
o
@)
ol
LLl
o
-
<
)
Z
Z
<

2277
(UoI{U 967199 'SY *€TOT) UON[NM pEH L8'E "SH O SIUNowe spak oy Supnp sasudiojus poSeusis pUE PIUMO-USWIOM ‘TAILIOM 0 PasINGSIp SULO| $S010)  T°['6
Y9T 6879 €98 987 L 3
SSPT0T 1647781 sasudsaquy pafeuspy pue pouaQ Tsmop _,W
608'98Z°9 TLOPOE'L uIwo M >4
5a5L1dl12Jud PaSEUEI PUB PIUMO-UIOM ‘UIIOM 0} SIDUBAPY I'reé w
ILTT86'611  0CSZ09'RTI Aouarma [esoj uy "W
(85043) s3ouUBApE Jo sa¥nOnIEg 6 /w

099°L0S'S01  OIT'ITI'601  79S'601°EC 806°0L9°C] 860'86E'T8  TOEOSHSE SDUBMO[[E 550] JPAID JO 19U - SIOUBAPY
[19'pLF b1 0I€ 18%'61 L9PLbT1  S9Z'0IEEl  000000€ SHO'ILTD
000°000°E 000°000°€ - - 000°000°¢ 000°000°¢ [e12UDL) - o3
9LT'0F 0TL'6E 9LTOF £EE'6E < L8E SOOUBAPE JjuiS JSURTY - K
SEEVEV'TI TEGOLTEL SECPEY'TT TE6'0LTE] = ] € 98m5-

- TYL'88S°T g = : ThL'885°T 7 98eg-

n 916185 . i - 916'18¢ | 98mg-

faueape aunyjnouse 1suesy -
1S20UBADE JSUIRTR 20UBAMO][B §50] IPaID)

ILTT86'611  0TS'T09'STI  ELI'8S'PE  €LI'I86'9  860'S6€'S8  LPET1Z9IOI 55018 - S20UBADY
= TE0'8 = # - 7£0'8 $]985 Paje[al pue FUIOURUY Jnwes]
[LT'T86'611 884165 8T1 EL1Y8SPE ELI'186%0T 860°'86€'58 SIE'E19'101 "012 ‘20URUY FUIuunI *SIPalo ysed ‘sugor]
sessscanmsnnnn Tasssenarans -..--.-.-—Hg. nmwzﬁ——dz;. Tessssssssns sssssanssane
£T0T ¥T0T £T07 44 £T0¢ ¥zt
TEI0L Surmiojiag uoy Sunmaofiag

SADNVAQY 6

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

) ZTBL




4
N
N
T
o
O
o
LLl
o
-
<
)
Z
Z
<

TE6OLTEI TrL'8ST 916185
(0L0'L6F'T) (£09°T6T) (#12°699)
(8L+°Z68°T) = =

POEELT'T (es£062°2) (Zsv'es)

YLS8FE'T B61°L1L7)  |[loLe’1ED)
(828'%h) pSI'IEl (9z€'98)
(Sri'6ER) (S+9°L19) 060°LS0°T
(96£°109'F)  [|(9Z8°85L°T) (zzs'sze'D)

66E°015'Y 91719 78670V

9LI*LBE'YI

869°1L1°S

T80'SEE’]

ssssssanss eg. -.—_ w@ﬂ-m-wz srssssssns

£ 20815 7 38e38 1 28815
P07

T 0T eS8 ] 0065 001
8LYT68°T) - -
679'6EP'T (Lsg'ggco) 799°6F1°S1
8€1°CH16 L8Y'SEEL) (159°e58T)
(LLLoL) SO6'ESE'L (881°€8T'L)
(587°809) (996'€8L°1) 1ST'T6ET
(LoL'oeb'0)  |[(86T'6S1's)  |[(196°EFS EE)
OFE'E9E 6T F6E LIT'8EY'SS

O10°BELSI

£9°98E 1

SIv'0ryS8

asssnssnnn 85- _.-m mﬁwn—._m sssssnanas

£ 90818

7 39138

[EEST

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

LLWJ ZTBL s

¥aoc

2277

aoue[eq Juisoj)

(sava/saOT/sqd) sieurered Ysu ur safuey)
30 padreyd / JJO UM SJUnOLTY

¢ 23e)s 01 J9ysURI L

T 2dr1s 01 JajSURIL

| o8ms 0y 19ysuRi]

predal 1o posuB0I0Iap SOURAPY
SIOUBAPE MIN]

6 ST Jo uondope jo joedmy
sooue[eg Suruadg

3DUEMO|[E $50] JPAID JO SIRNINIEJ - SIIUBAPY

aoueqeq Surso])
JJo paimeyd sjunoury

€ 285 0] 13jsURL]

7 29y} 01 137U,

| ade)s 01 JaJSUBI],

predal 1o PasTHT00313p SIOURAPY
S30UBAPE MAN

6 S¥41 jo uondope jo joedu)
saouejeg Smuad

ammsodxy - S2IUBADPY

JDUVMOLJE S50] JIPAID JO SINPOIEY

TT6

A

HuL))

e8|

3




4
o
AN
T
o
O
o
L
o
-
<
)
Z
Z
<

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

LLWJ ZTBL s

2270

PEEVER V1 000°000°S PEEPEYTT 065°1¥F'61 0007000 - 916185 TVL'88ST  TE6OLTEI soue[eq Surso))

(965°€T1°L) = ©sseTI’L)  (BLVFTERT) - - = = (8LFC681) 330 padreyo sjunoury
6ZE 1EY'Y - 6 1Ev'y  (88R'655'T) A - (991°¢sL) (956'285°T) VET9LL

oL FST E) - (oL vsi’e) | (LOT9SL'TT) E> - (L08%6ST'1) (0LT60°s) [(L69E0FS) S[esI2AY

£60°08S°L s £60°085°L 61£'961°6 - & 1$9°905 LPL60ST | 1£6'6L19 mak agy 10§ 28N

19€°9Z1°LE  000'000°€ 195°9Z1"%1 TT0°65H'6 - (PEEPEVIT)  TBO'GEET 869°TLT'S  9LTLBEFI & SYAT o uondope uo yoeduy

PEEFEF'PL  000000°C VEEPER'LI =

. Qg- H—_ @Wﬂa—.-m BERESR SRR RR R RR R SRR EES

aoue|eq Suuadp

€10 L [EIaU2 ) wypads T2 [edauany ayadg [ 28®)S T £ admg
£202 44174
SIDUBAPE JSUfEIE DURMO[E SSO] JIPAID Jo sI[nopIeg
VECHEV'TT TREGESHE  TEOOLT'El  SHI'BE'9T
0v0'01E'S 0F001ER PE0'S6ST ¥96°665'C 507
SOT'IEL'] LTETIP'E SIVLILT 16V'615'F npgnog
6ZIE6ET £19°596°0 08¥'BS6'L 9ZL'SITTI plepuejsqng
4 TLE'108'S] = YOPESO'L pauonuaw A[peidadss 519558 BPO
ansamoq
seeeneeees 0, W s3admyy ceoeeneer
mﬂuﬂ_ wﬂmd_
SRS Supmaogaad i Supmaogaad
1 TIOR3 23w1g uy mopwaysSE Jo L1082)E
$$0] JIpa1D) uoN $50] JIpa1D woN €088 REIGISET]D § L0
€702 {1

:mo[aq pajielap se smuejs ¢ 23ws / Suruuopiad-uou wpun paoejd uoaq aary Yorgm Sursueury [eimnouSe o1 Sune|ar (UoTNT ZRETGES PE "SH 1EZOT) UOI[IU G19'SEE'T S SPN|IUI SIOURAPY

065" ¥ 91 FIEBEL LTI
TEG'OLT'EL 181°C82°61
PEO'S6ST ¥96'665T
BIY'LILT 16¥°615°Y
08+'856°L 9ZL'S9T'TI
THL'BSST 901°ES8°L
916'18S LLO'06S 001
ssssss O-.v-w. —.—_ nmb.n—:.m sesnan
Jjunome
Pl2Y 2oUueMO][E wma—— «_—VA....-,.« M.—.—u—_u—uu:ﬁ-

oz

B30 L

$507]

mpqnoq

plepuisqns
£28mg Sunwmiopag-uoN
z98mg Sunusopad sapun
[ 28mi8 Suuuopag

psamo(q

UOREIISSE]D Jo Alodae)) - saoueApy

€6

£€T6

FEIVRNY

o




<
AN
T
o
O
o
L
o
-
<
)
Z
Z
<

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

LLWJ ZTBL s

2277

‘Juroueun ] amynoudy 10§ suoneniay [enuUapLIg oY) JO

ELIILD 2A193[GNS 21 14 JOURPIDIIE UL SI2MOLIO] 1) JO SSIUFLIOM P20 JO SISBq 3 UO (UOI[ILE G/ ['99€*S "SH (EZ0Z) UOIIIM /'880°F "S ©1 SUJUNOWE S30URADE pUE SUBO| PIIJISSE]D JO
£1082392 o1y papesd-op Joquny pue (Wona zp'g09°SY *EZ0T) UOHIN S81°668'] S 01 SUNUNOUIE SOOUEAPE PUE SUPO| PRIJISSE[d 10Uy SEY YURg 23 ‘BHSIL0 PISEq SUIN ST O} WORIPPE U]

sueo| Suruwopad-uow ysureSe noisiacad s Funndwoo spym sSup|ing pue spue] paSeSuou Jo aN[EA PAMO|[E JO 11J2UIG ) PIIRAR JOU SBY yueg sy souaprud jo
Jayew € S8 ‘I9AIMOH “SURO] 911 JO UORIUES JO WL A I8 sBurp|ing pue spue| pafesuiow jo anfea 243 Jo 28wuoatod UAATT e pue sjesse pinbi| ajqezifeal jo junote 21 ssa) jediound Jo sour[eq
Supumsino 2y woyy Fuynsar aommyp iy Jo a¥euaoiad uaatd v 1w apew oq 01 81 sueo| Surmuoizad-uon isuTede uoisiaold ‘SuonBnSTY PIESAIOIE AU Ul UBAIS BULIL paseq owin A 1ad
sy “sueo| Fuuuopad-uou jo Fuoisiaod pur uoledilIsse[2 10§ SplepuU}s mnwnM aquasaid Smoten  amynoudy 10] suonenSaY [BHUAPNIJ 311 JO C[-y pue £]-H ‘T1-9 ‘11-y suonemniay

VEEVEY T 000'000°E PEEPEY I 065 1461 000°000°€ = 916'18S TPL'RRST  TE6'OLT'EI Aoua1md [ea0] U]
SEssssEEssEETIsTssSSRE TR TRy Qg. -_wauﬂ—_._vm T T T T TE T ———
[T [erauany Aads 1E10 L, [Blauan) Apads 1 28w)5 7 28018 £ 2dm15
€707 vz

S2IUBAPE JSUlEdE u0IsIA0Ad / IJUEMO[[E SSO] JIPAID JU SIBMINIE]

€6

Tre

3
E
/.w.




w ZTBL w ANNUAL REPORT 2024

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

2024 2023

Note Rupees in '000
9.5 Particulars of write offs:

9.5.1 Against credit loss allowance / provisions - -
Directly charged to profit and loss account - -

9.52 Write offs of Rupees 500,000 and above 9.6 - -
Write offs of below Rupees 500,000 - -

9.6  Details of Loan write offs of Rupees 500,000 and above

In terms of sub-section (3) of section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 the
statement in respect of written-off loans or any other financial relief of five hundred thousand
rupees or above allowed to a person(s) during the year has to be disclosed. Detail of charge offs
out of extinguished loan portfolio exceeding five hundred thousand rupees is NIL.

9.7 Particulars of charged off

In terms of Prudential Regulations for Agricultural Financing - Part B (specific regulations) the
Bank extinguishes its loans through provisions. The total balance for these off-balance sheet
loans extinguished against provisions as at December 31, 2024 amounts to Rs. 53,081.05
million (2023: Rs. 56,976.83 million) with an addition of Rs. 1,892.48 million (2023: Rs.
7.123.56 million) as charge off loans during the year.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
10 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Capital work-in-progress 10.1 181,928 69,326
Property and equipment 10.2 1,670,499 1,478,646
1,852,427 1,547,972
10.1  Capital work-in-progress
Civil works 55,146 61,385
Equipment 116,566 -
Consultancy charges 9,801 7.618
Others 10.1.1 415 323
181,928 69.326

10.1.1 This includes soil testing and other charges incurred at sites.
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
14 OTHER ASSETS

[ncome / mark-up accrued in local currency on ;

- advances 14.1 13,421,515 11,235,916

- securities 12,218,003 6,702,050

- deposits 34,316 446,626
Amount recoverable from Federal Government 14.2 2,887,888 2,853,635
Tax recoverable 14.3 422,652 422,652
Branch adjustment account 1,625,809 1,626,582
Taxation (payments less provision) 14.4 1,453,221 1,669,194
Receivable from defined benefit plans: 38.6.1

gratuity scheme - SR - 2005 1,184,271 1,140,994
Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 14.5 407,301 420,731
Due from Islamic Banking 3,655 -
Stationery and stamps in hand 163,445 147,042
Stock of farm machinery 11,237 11,237
Advances against salary and expenses 60,882 60,339
Security deposits 7,899 7,199
Advances and other prepayments 14.6 1,658,376 647,602
Clearing and settlement 57,706 589,903
Others : 276,481 128,713

35,894,657 28,110,415

Credit loss allowance held against other assets 147 (1.465,073) (988.669)
Other assets - net of credit allowance 34,429,584 _ 27,121,746

14.1  This does not include Rs. 12,290.111 million (2023: Rs. 11,055.675 million) on account of
unrealised mark-up on non performing loans and advances kept in the memorandum account in
accordance with the Prudential Regulations for Agriculture Financing.

14.2  This includes amount recoverable from Federal Government on account of crop loan insurance
premium amounting to Rs. 2,802.541 million (2023: Rs. 2,697.820 million), small livestock
farmers premium amounting to Rs. 80.486 million (2023: Rs. 150,95 million) and animal
tagging charges amounting to Rs. 4.86 million (2023: Rs. 4.86 million).

14.3  This includes tax recoverable of Rs. 309.359 million (2023: Rs. 309.359 million) for assessment
years 1991-92 to 2013-14 as disclosed in Note 15.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
14.4 Taxation - net
Opening receivable 1,669,194 2,531,417
Charge during the year 32 (10,106,564)  (7,931,779)
Advance income tax / withholding tax 9.890,591 7.069,556
Closing receivable 1,453,221 1,669,194
14.5 Market value of non-banking assets acquired
in satisfaction of claims 829.904 818,343

cAat
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2024 2023
Rupees in '000

14.5.1 Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Opening Balance 420,731 423,709
Additions 2,221 361
Disposals (15,651) (3,339)
Closing Balance 407,301 420,731

14.5.2 Gain on Disposal of Non-banking assets acquired in
satisfaction of claims

Disposal Proceeds 55,897 12,194
less : Cost (15,651) (3,189)
Gain 40,246 9,005
14.6  This includes accretion of premium income of Rs. 1,480.992 million (2023: Rs. 430.860
million)
2024 2023
Rupees in '000
14.7 Credit loss allowance held against other assets
Tax recoverable 422,652 422,652
Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 407,301 420,731
Amount recoverable from Federal Government 551,140 66,234
Stock of farm machinery 11,237 11,237
Accrued interest on advances of ex-employees 16,070 15,595
Amount deposited with courts / legal charges recoverable 56,673 52,220
1,465,073 988,669
14,7.1 Movement in credit loss allowance held against other assets
Opening balance 088,669 039,492
Charge for the year 521,703 99,530
Reversals (45,299) (50,353)
476,404 49,177
Closing balance 1.465.073 988.669

I~
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15 CONTINGENT ASSETS

15.1 There is a contingency of an amount of Rs. 297.149 million and Rs. 54.828 million on account
of minimum income tax levied by the Income Tax authorities under section 80-D of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 1979, and various tax refunds pertaining to assessment years 1991-92 to 1998-
99 and assessment year 1999-2000 respectively despite the income of the Bank being exempt
from tax up to income year ended 30 June 1999, The Bank paid, under protest, these disputed
tax demands and also filed writ petition in this respect in the Honorable Lahore High Court,
Rawalpindi Bench, Rawalpindi. Later on, the Bank withdrew the said petition on the directions
of the Federal Government and the case was referred to the Law and Justice Division of the
Government of Pakistan (GoP) which decided the reference in the Bank’s favour. The Federal
Board of Revenue (FBR), disagreed with the aforesaid decision, further took up the matter with
Federal Cabinet for its review. Federal Cabinet referred the case to the Attorney General of
Pakistan (AGP) for final decision which was received on March 12, 2011 whereby the AGP
decided that Section 27-A of the ADBP Ordinance should prevail over the said section 80-D of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 1979.

152  Assistant Commissioner, Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed the order on 11.05.2019 for the
period January 2012 to December 2012 creating a demand of Rs 6.42 million (Principal +
Penalty). On 03.06.2019, payment of impugned tax Amounting Rs.6.6 million (Principal + 10%
Surcharge) has been made, under protest, to avail the SRB Amnesty Scheme. Bank has filed
appeal before Commissioner (Appeals), SRB. Main Appeal heard and further adjourned to
12,08.2022 but remained undecided and appeal/case has been transferred to Appellate Tribunal
by the Commissioner (Appeals-I) on 30.06.2022, being time barred at the Commissioner
Appeals. The Bank is expecting a favourable decision.

153  Assistant Commissioner, Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed the order on 11.07.2019 for the
period January 2013 to December 2013 creating a demand of Rs 2.75 million. On 03.06.2019,
payment of impugned tax amounting to Rs. 2.75 million was made, under protest, to avail the
SRB Amnesty Scheme. Bank filed appeal before Commissioner (Appeals), SRB. Main Appeal
heard and further adjourned to 12.08.2022 but remained undecided and appeal/case has been
transferred to Appellate Tribunal by the Commissioner (Appeals-I) on 30.06.2022, being time
barred at the Commissioner Appeals. The Bank is expecting a favourable decision.

154  Assistant Commissioner, Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed the order on 24.01.2020 for the
period of January 2014 to December 2014 which created a demand of Rs.54.6 million. On
03.06.2019 payment of impugned tax was made for Rs. 2.86 million, under protest, to avail the
SRB Amnesty Scheme. Bank filed appeal before Commissioner (Appeals), SRB. Main Appeal
heard and further adjourned to 12.08.2022 but remained undecided and appeal/case has been
transferred to Appellate Tribunal by the Commissioner (Appeals-I) on 30.06.2022, being time
barred at the Commissioner Appeals. The Bank is expecting a favourable decision.

o2
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2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
16 BILLS PAYABLE
In Pakistan 451,707 2,605.372
17 BORROWINGS
Secured
Borrowing from State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)
Redeemable preference shares 17.2 54,461,536 54,461,536
Repurchase agreement borrowings 17.3 251,568,896 330,098,427
Repurchase agreement borrowings - others 17.4 13,014,346 14,239,236
Borrowings From Other Banks 17.5 19,385,015 -
Total secured 338,429,793 398,799,199
Unsecured
Call borrowings 17.6 69,637,176 1,078,500
408,066,969 399.877.699
17.1  Particulars of borrowings with respect to currencies
In local currency 408,066,969 399,877,699

17.2  Redeemable preference shares have been issued to SBP carrying mark-up of 7.5% (2023: 7.5%)
per annum, redeemable on March 7, 2027. The principal of the preference shares and return
thereon is guaranteed by the Federal Government of Pakistan.

17.3  These carry markup at the rate of 13.07% (2023: 22.04% to 23% ) per annum and is secured
against Market Treasury Bills having face value amounting to Rs. 54,000 million (2023:
Rs.249,000 million) and Pakistan Investment Bonds amounting to Rs.203,000 million (2023:
Rs.125,000 million). These are repayable by January 2025 (2023: January 2024).

17.4  These carry markup at the rate of 12.75% to 13.30% (2023: 22% to 22.85%) per annum and are
secured against Market Treasury Bills having face value amounting to Rs. 13,996 million (2023:
Market Treasury Bills having face value amounting Rs.10,000 million and Pakistan Investment
Bonds having face value amounting Rs 6,071 million). These are repayable by January 2025
(2023: January 2024),

17.5  These carry markup at the rate of 15.00% (2023: NIL) per annum. These are repayable by January
2025 (2023: NIL).

17.6  These carry markup at the rate of 11.00% to 15% (2023: 20.80% to 21.00%) per annum. These are
repayable by January to May 2025 (2023: January 2024),

(P~
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2024 2023
Rupees in '000
8 DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
Customers - local currency
Current deposits 10,175,082 6,104,401
Saving deposits 11,935,409 13,064,116
Term deposits 31,712,703 32,977,305
Others 187,903 37,255
54,011,097 52,183,077
Financial Institutions - local currency
Current deposits 126,063 75,364
Saving deposits 951,369 3,604,856
Term deposits - -
1,077,432 3,680,220

55,088,529 55,863,297

18.1 Composition of deposits

- Individuals 5,671,775 3,533,441
- Government (Federal and Provincial) 6,684,568 5,426,031
- Public sector entities 11,087,913 16,887,956
- Banking companies 2,434 =
- Non-Banking Financial Institutions 1,074,998 3,680,220
- Private sector 30,566,841 26,335,649

55,088,529 35.863.297

18.2 These include deposits eligible to be covered under insurance arrangements in accordance with

DPC Circular No. 04 dated June 22, 2018 amounting to Rs. 18,803.058 million (2023: Rs.
12,735.989 million).

19 LEASE LIABILITIES 2024 2023
Rupees in '000

Qutstanding amount at the start of the year 983,391 907,653
Additions during the year 270,098 296,173
Lease payments including interest (336,217) (304,542)
Interest expense 126,658 118,859
Remeasurement (46,705) (34,752)

Outstanding amount at the end of the year 997,225 983,391

19.1 Contactual maturity of lease laibilities

Short-term lease liabilities - within one year 82,572 51,066
Long-term lease liabilities
-1to 5 years 425,336 369,874
-51to0 10 years 429234 507,960
- More than 10 years 60,083 54,491
914,653 932,325
Total lease liabilities 997,225 983,391
Aot
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2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
20 OTHER LIABILITIES
Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency on:

- borrowings 3,407,005 5,050,416
- deposits and other accounts 2,515,502 2,336,538
Accrued expenses 1,746,765 1,162,422
Net liabilities relating to Bangladesh 20.1 189 189
Payable to Ministry of Food Agriculture & Livestock  20.2 168,000 168,000

Provision for: 38.6.1
~ pension scheme 6,344,733 5,845,680
- employees’ post retirement medical benefits 10,439,311 9,409.455
- employees' compensated absences 2,153,930 1,926,253
- gratuity scheme of the company 420,541 372,811
Due to Islamic Banking - 114,491
Security deposits 23,010 38,997
Deferred income 20.3 9,058 9,535
Others 20.4 2,062,342 1,387,738
29,290,386 27,822,525

20.1  Net liabilities relating to Bangladesh
Liabilities 2,012,286 1,982,916
Assets (2,012,097) (1,982,727)

20.1.1 189 189

20.1.1 This represents the amount relating to the activities of the Bank in Bangladesh (former East
Pakistan) before its separation. In accordance with the Finance Division letter No. F.5(12)PEC(op-
FR)/78-236 dated May 6, 1979 the Bank has to calculate interest on the loans made in Bangladesh
as it does in the case of corresponding borrowings made from the SBP. Instead of carrying the
interest to profit and loss account, the Bank shows it in the statement of financial position only.
The Bank is accruing interest at the rate of 8% per annum on its loans and advances made in
Bangladesh with contra increase in its liabilities relating to its activities in Bangladesh. However,
the Bank has no control over these assets.

20.2 This represents payable under Crop Maximization Project - Productivity Enhancement on
Sustainable Basis,

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
20.3 Deferred income
Opening balance 9,535 10,038
Amortization during the year 28 477) (503)
Closing balance 9.058 9.535

20.3.1 Deferred income comprises the grants from the Asian Development Bank via Government of
Pakistan for Rural Support Development Finance Project (RSDFP),

20.4 These represent various payables which include insurance claims payable / adjustable against the
loan liability of the borrowers, withholding taxes, contribution received from borrowers, clearing
proceeds payable etc.
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21 SHARE CAPITAL
21.1  Authorized capital

2024 2023 2024 2023
Number of shares Rupees in '000

Ordinary and Preference shares
12,500,000,000  12,500,000,000 of Rupees 10 each 125,000,000 125,000,000

21.2  Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

2024 2023
Number of shares

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 cach
1,186,961,201 1,186,961,201 - fully paid in cash 11,869,612 11,869,612
65,282,866 65,282,866 - Issued as bonus shares 652,828 652,828
4,015,599,174 _ 4,015,599,174 - Issued against loan from SBP 40,155,992 40,155,992
5,267,843,241 5,267,843,241 52,678,432 52,678,432

21.3 y Paid-up

Shareholder No. of ordinary value
shares

per share
State Bank of Pakistan 4,015,599,174 10 40,155,992 40,155,992
Government of Pakistan 1,251,189,067 10 12,511,891 12,511,891
Government of Punjab 292,340 10 2,923 2,923
Government of Sindh 125,545 10 255 1,255

Government of Khyber

Pakhtunkhwa 71,740 10 717 717
Government of Balochistan 37,875 10 379 379
Erstwhile East Pakistan 527,500 10 5,275 5,275
I~ 5,267,843,241 52,678,432 52,678,432
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Note 2024 2023
Rupees in '000

22 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS

Surplus on revaluation of securities measured at FVOCI:

Quoted investments 3,118,309 3,442,514
Other securities 1,657,923 (262,021)
Surplus on revaluation of securities measured at FVOCT: 4,776,232 3,180,493
Deferred tax on surplus on revaluation of securities
measured at FVOCI: (2,531,403) (1,558,442)
2,244,829 1,622,051

23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
23.1 Contingent liabilities
In respect of cases filed against the Bank:

23.1.1 by borrowers; 402 (2023: 606) cases 338,547 402,962
23.1.2 by employees; 417 (2023: 468) cases 23.1.2.1 276,281 271,387

23.1.2.1 This includes employees pension related litigations for addition of certain allowances in
pensionable pay. These cases are under adjudication in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan.
The financial impact of these cases are not quantifiable at this point of time. In the opinion of the
legal advisor favorable outcomes of these contingencies is expected, hence, no provision is
incorporated in these financial statements.

23.2 Tax related contingencies
Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited
23.2.1 Income Tax

The Bank faces cumulative contingent liabilities amounting to Rs. 92,794.558 million under
various sections of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, for tax years 2002 to 2024, which are under
litigation at various forums including the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, the Honorable
Islamabad High Court, and the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. Key cases include Rs.
669.768 million w/s 161/205 for tax years 2009-2012, Rs. 19.528 million u/s 155 for tax years
2014-2015, Rs. 74,054.835 million u/s 122(5A) for tax years 2010-2024, Rs. 0.412 million u/s
153(1)(b) for tax year 2015, Rs. 170.675 million w/s 149 for tax years 2015-2016, Rs. 87.532
million w/s 151 for tax years 2015-2016 and Rs. 1,565.379 million u/s 122(1) for tax year 2018
alongside Rs. 1,392.216 million u/s 4(b) for tax year 2022. Other cases include a demand of Rs.
712 million for tax year 2015/-2016, Rs. 29.121 million for tax year 2019, and Rs. 9,917.854
million from disputes covering assessment years 2002-2003 and tax years 2003-2009. In the
opinion of the legal advisor favorable outcomes of these contingencies are expected, hence, no
provision is incorporated in these financial statements.

23.2.2 Federal Excise Duties / Sales tax

For the tax years 2008-2016, the Bank is facing total contingent liabilities amounting to Rs.
1,951.757 million related to Federal Excise Duties and Sales Tax matters, These cases are
currently under litigation at various forums, including the Honorable Islamabad High Court, the
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, and other relevant tribunals and authorities. For the years
2008-2012, contingent liabilities amounting to Rs. 825.121 million were contested, with Rs. 343
million decided in favor of the Bank, leaving Rs. 482.121 million still under dispute. For the
periods January 2013 to December 2014, demands of Rs. 738.892 million and Rs. 681.109
million were raised for Federal Excise Duties, and Rs. 4.470 million and Rs. 13.295 million for

coe
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Sales Tax. For December 2016, a demand of Rs. 10.06 million by the Punjab Revenue Authority
was partially contested. The Sindh Revenue Board raised demands for July 2011 to December
2011 and January 2015 to December 2016, totaling Rs. 21.57 million. In the opinion of the legal
advisor favorable outcomes of these contingencies are expected, hence, no provision is
incorporated in these financial statements.

Kissan Support Services (Private) Limited

23.2.3 Sales tax department served show cause notice dated March 16, 2023 for the tax period Jan to
Dec 2018 vide which the Company was required to charge and pay Sales Tax on sales and
services declared in Income Tax return/Audited accounts at Rs, 1,289,021,407 (this is inclusive of
Reimbursble Expenses) for the tax period 2018, whereas, declared sales in Sales Tax Return for
the corresponding tax period stand at Rs. 138,652,569 (Service Charges value only) therefore
sales tax amounting to Rs. 184,059,014 is recoverable from Company u/s 11(2) of STA 1990 read
with ICT (tax on services) ordinance 2001. Moreover, ST Dept claims ST recoverable
Rs.732,442/- due to disposal of vehicles and purchase of Fixed Assets thus, total claim of the
Dept is Rs.184,791,456/-. Management submitted reply on dated 10 Apr 2023 through tax
consultant and an hearing was conducted on 2 May 2023 but decision is still pending, this
unjustified tax demand is likely to be deleted. No provision has been made as the management is
confident that the case will be decided in favour of the Company.

23.2.4 An order was passed by Sales Tax Dept. w's 11(2) dated January 23, 2023 vide which the
Company was required to charge and pay Sales Tax on sales and services declared in Income Tax
return/Audited accounts at Rs. 1,137,504,591 (this is inclusive of Reimbursable Expenses) for the
tax year 2021, whereas, declared sales in Sales Tax Return for the corresponding tax year stand at
Rs. 121,633,402 (this is only Service Charges) therefore sales tax amounting to Rs. 162,539,390
is recoverable from Company along with default surcharges and penalty amounting to Rs.
39,610,488 and Rs. 8,252,185 respectively. An appeal was filed before Commissioner Inland
Revenue (Appeal-IV) on 2 Feb 2023 and an hearing was conducted on 6 Jul 2023 but decision is
still pending, this unjustified tax demand is likely to be deleted. No provision has been made as
the management is confident that the decision will be decided in favour of the Company.

23.2.5 An order was passed by tax department u/s 122(5A) dated June 11, 2022 vide which Department
raised tax demand amounting to Rs. 8,683,554 against errorneous refund adjustment made by
Company for the Tax year 2016. An appeal was filed before Commissioner Inland Revenue
(Appeal-IV) who has annulled this unjustified demand vide order dated December 02,2022,
However, department has filed 2nd appeal with ATIR Islamabad which is pending for
adjudication. No provision has been made as the management is confident that the decision will
be decided in the favour of the Company.

23.2.6 The Officer Inland Revenue LTU, Islamabad has initiated proceedings against the Company
under Section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the Tax Year 2009 and 2011 and
created a demand of Rs.32M. The Company submitted detail reply in Jun 2015 against the show
cause with complete documentary evidences, the case is pending for adjudication. No provision
has been made in these accounts as the management is confident that the decision of the case will
be decided in the favor of Company.

23.2.7 The Company is facing claims launched in various Courts filed by the employees, pertaining to
service promotion, dismissal from service and entry into company's premises and others. The
matters are still pending before the Courts. As no amount is involved in most of the cases,
therefore, the liability is not accurately quantifiable (2023: same as mentioned).
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2024 2023
Rupees in '000
23.3 Commitments against
Capital expenditure 1,253,127 417,926

Consultancy expenditure 7,770 5,628

24 MARK-UP/ RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

Loans and advances 29,505,256 21,938,959
Investments 77,267,075 114,378,666
Securities purchased under resale agreement 684,157 1,707,104
Call money lendings 2,622,172 2,001,900
Balances with banks 1,173,656 2,287,499

Bai Muajjal income

= 1,964
111.252.316 142.316.092

2024
24.1 Interest income recognised on: Rupees in '000

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 4,755,059

Financial assets measured at FVOCI 71,456,357

76211416
24.2 Interest income recognised on:
Financial assets measured at FVPL 5,810,718

Financial assets measured at cost 29,230,182

—35.040900_

2024 2023
Rupees in '000
25 MARK-UP/ RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposits 8,989,380 7,832,101
Redeemable preference shares - SBP 4,084,615 4,084,615
Securities sold under repurchased agreement 64,534,343 104,147,978
Call borrowings 6,994,176 1,621,298
Other borrowings 1,443,348 -

On lease liability against right-of-use assets 126,658 118,859
Bank commission and other charges 28,459 15,622

86.200.979 117.820.473

26 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Branch banking customer fees 62,495 62,776
Credit related fees 1,073,667 1,245,576
Commission / exchange gain on remittances

including home remittances 3,762 3,693
722 1,139,924 1,312,045
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2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
27 GAIN ON SECURITIES
Realised 271 2,323,122 266,525
Unrealised - Measured at FVPL 16,327 -
2,339,449 266,525

27.1 Realised gain on;

Federal Government Securities 2,323,122 266,525

28 OTHER INCOME

Rent on property 37,939 33,347
Gain on sale of property and equipment - net 12,571 35,441
Gain on sale of non banking assets
acquired in satisfaction of claims - net 14.5.2 40,246 9,005
Deferred income amortization 203 477 503
Discount income 1,770,596 525,786
Others 28.1 11,512 243,607
1.873.341 847,689

28.1 Other includes sale of scrap, sale of tender forms, recoveries against penalties imposed by SBP
and private use of vehicles etc.

2
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2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
29 OPERATING EXPENSES

Total compensation expense 29.1 12,419,569 11,773,764
Property expense

Rent & taxes 15,286 18,513
Insurance 23,673 16,212
Utilities cost 477,951 346,211
Repair and maintenance (including janitorial charges) 341,695 216,796
Depreciation - right of use assets 275,455 256,969
Depreciation 10.2 36,311 36,556
1,170,371 891,257
Information technology expenses
Software maintenance 262,177 76,084
Hardware maintenance 107,834 84,972
Depreciation 10.2 74,971 58,864
Amortisation 12 114,315 58,258
Network charges 167.391 131772
726,688 409,950
Other operating expenses
Directors' fees and allowances 12,624 19,277
Fees and allowances to Shariah Board 7,230 6,168
Legal and professional charges 202,863 205,392
Travelling and conveyance 106,939 121,584
NIFT clearing charges 20,793 22,974
Depreciation 10.2 124,704 123,673
Training and development 64,536 40,144
Postage and courier charges 34,554 31,776
Communication 28,175 29,213
Stationery and printing 101,451 81,396
Marketing, advertisement and publicity 30,810 40,268
Donations 29.2 450 -
Auditors Remuneration 29.3 7,423 1535
Motor vehicle expenses 741,361 707,352
Others 260,030 163,969
coe 16060571 14675692
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29.1

29.1.1

29.2

293

30

Total compensation expense

Salaries
Cash bonus / awards etc.

Charge / (reversal) for defined benefit plans:
- Pension scheme

- Benevolent scheme - officers / executives
- Benevolent scheme - clerical / non-clerical
- Gratuity scheme - staff regulation 2005

- Gratuity scheme of the Company

- Employees' compensated absences

Contribution to defined contribution plan
Rent and house maintenance

Utilities

Medical

Conveyance

Grand Total

Note

38.6.5

38.1.8

29.1.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2024 2023
Rupees in '000

6,852,307 6,151,555
1,097,424 1,008,984
1,113,869 1,370,721
35,951 211,396
(107,883) (31,692)
(14,468) (25,681)
122,535 81,901
513,721 100,739
1,663,725 1,707,384
40,398 44,425
477,413 459,103
90,378 90,781
1,861,467 1,970,584
336,457 340,948
12,419.569 11,773.764

This includes post retirement medical benefit amounting to Rs. 1,567.873 million (2023: Rs.

1,733.045 million).

Donations
Ripple Koncepts
Karwan-E-Alhuda Skardu

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee

Fee for half year review
Other statutory certifications
Sales tax

Out of pocket expenses

OTHER CHARGES

Penalties imposed by State Bank of Pakistan
2
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250 -
200 -
450 -

2,154 2,242
631 582

2,254 2,310
806 821

1,578 1,580

7,423 7,535

1,881 39,804
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32

32.1

32.1.1

32,1.2
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CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCE AND WRITE-OFFS - NET

Credit loss allowance against balances with other
banks

Credit loss allowance against lending to financial
institutions

Credit loss allowance for diminution in value of
investments

Credit loss allowance against loans & advances
Fixed assets charged-off

Reversal of credit loss allowance against other
assets

Recovery of written off / charged off bad debts

TAXATION

Current
Prior year
Deferred

Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit

Accounting profit for the year

Tax rate

Tax on accounting income

Tax effect of permanent differences

Penalties imposed by SBP
Repair allowance and rent collection allowance

Tax effect of prior years
Others

Tax charge for the year

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
6 (3,691)
7.6 4,138 -
832 (23) -
94 (2,560,815) 4,427,486
2,524 1,043
14.7.1 476,403 49,177
(9,702,522) (9.982.882)
(11,783,986) (5,505,176)
9,620,667 7,939,826
322 485,897 (8,047)
2,906,288 (1,235,340)
32.1 13,012,852 6,696,439
2024 2023
Rupees in '000
26,192,320 17,847,288
54% 49%
14,143,853 8,745,171
1,016 13,931
(4,917) (3,921)
(3,901) 10,010
485,897 (8,047)
(1,612,997) (2,050,695)
13,012,852 6,696,439

The effective tax rate for the year is 49.68% (2023: 37.52%)

By the virtue of the Income Tax (Amendment) Ordinance, 2024, the Federal Government has
raised the corporate tax rate for the banking companies to 44%. The current year overall tax rate

is 54% which includes 10% super tax.
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2024 2023
Rupees in '000
33 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
Profit after tax for the year - Rupees in '000 13,179,468 11,150,849
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5,267.843,241  5,267,843,241
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 2.50 2.12

33.1  There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Bank.

2024 2023
Note Rupees in '000
34 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 3,125,812 3,661,179
Balances with other banks 6 7.494,048 31,925,611
10,619,860 35,586,790
2024 2023
Number
35 STAFF STRENGTH
Permanent 3,916 3,803
Contractual 3,356 3,327
Total staff strength 7,272 7,130

36 CREDIT RATING

VIS Credit Rating Company Limited in its report dated June 27, 2024 has reaffirmed credit rating
of the Bank at AAA (2023: AAA) with stable outlook and short-term credit rating of A-1+(2023:
A-14).

Lo

32 10) Sip ilis e




|| ZTBL

ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

37

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

Profit before taxation
Less: Dividend income

Adjustments:

Net mark-up / interest income
Depreciation

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Amortization

Amortization of deferred income

Credit loss allowance and write-offs
Provision for employees post retirement

medical benefits

Provision for medical fund of the Company
Charge for defined benefit plans - net

Gain on sale of non banking assets acquired in

satisfaction of claims - net

Discount income

Gain on securities

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets

(#t

Note

10.2
29
12

20.3
31

38.6.5
29.1
28
28

27
28

32 10) Sip ilis e

2024

2023

Rupees in '000

26,192,320 17,847,288
(66,735) (135,730)
26,125,585 17,711,558
(25,051,337)|  (24,495,619)
235,986 219,093
275,455 256,969
114,315 58,258
(477) (503)
(2,081,464) 4,477,706
1,567,873 1,733,045
15,931 15,804
1,663,725 1,707,384
(40,246) (9,005)
(1,770,596) (525,786)
(2,339,449) (266,525)
(12,647) (35.441)
(27,422,931) __ (16,864,620)

(1,297.346) 846.538
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38 DEFINED BENEFIT AND CONTRIBUTION PLANS
The Group operates the following retirement benefit plans for its employees:

Pension Scheme - funded

Benevolent Scheme - funded

Employees Gratuity Scheme - funded

Post Retirement Medical Benefits - unfunded
Employees Compensated Absences - unfunded
Gratuity scheme of the Company

Defined Contribution Plan

38.1  Brief description of each fund is as follows:
38.1.1 Pension scheme
The Bank operates an approved pension scheme for employees who opted for the scheme introduced

in year 1975 for clerical / non-clerical staff and in the year 1977 for officers / executives. The
contributions are made on the basis of actuarial recommendation.

38.1.2 Benevolent scheme - officers

The Bank operates an approved funded benevolent scheme for all officers / executives of the Bank
for which contributions are made at the rate of 2% of basic pay to a maximum of Rs. 200, by each
officer / executive. Employee contributions are matched by an equal amount of contributions by the
Bank. The Bank is also liable to meet any shortfall in the fund.

38.1.3 Benevolent scheme - staff
The Bank operates an approved funded benevolent scheme for all clerical / non-clerical staff for
which contributions are made at different rates but not exceeding Rs. 100 by each employee.

Employee contributions are matched by an equal amount of contributions by the Bank. The Bank is
also liable to meet any shortfall in the fund.

38.1.4 Gratuity under Staff Regulations - 2005 (SR-2005)

The Bank also operates a separate Gratuity Fund scheme, w.e.f. August 2006, established upon
introduction of Staff Regulations - 2005 (SR-2005) for the employees governed under SR-2005.
Contributions to this Fund are made by the Bank on the basis of actuarial valuation.

38.1.5 Post retirement medical benefits

The Bank provides post retirement medical benefits to eligible retired employees. Provision is made
annually to meet the cost of such medical benefits on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by
independent actuary by using Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method.

38.1.6 Employees compensated absences - unfunded

The liability of the Bank in respect of long-term employees compensated absences is determined
based on actuarial valuation carried out using Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method.

38.1.7 Gratuity scheme of the Company

The scheme provides for terminal benefits for all permanent employees of the Company whose
period of service is atleast one year. Employees are entiled to gratuity on the basis set out in the
Company's staff regulations.
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38.1.8 Defined contribution plan

The Bank operates an approved non-contributory provident fund (General Provident Fund) through
an independent trust for 1378 (2023: 1,630) employees who are governed under Staff Service
Regulations 1961. Contributions to the fund are made only by employees at the rate of 8% of mean
of pay scale per month.

The Bank also operates Contributory Provident Fund scheme introduced in 2006 (w.e.f, July 2006)
for 2538 (2023: 2,127) employees governed under SR-2005. Contributions to the Contributory
Provident Fund are made by the employees and the Bank, if their remaining service is more than ten
years from the date of option / appointment, at the rate of 2% of monetized salary per month. During
the year, the Bank contributed Rs. 40.398 million (2023: Rs.44.425 million) in respect of this fund.

The Bank has contributory provident fund scheme for benefit of all its permanent employees. The
Funds are maintained by the Trustees and all decisions regarding investments and distribution of
income etc. are made by the Trustees independent of the Bank. The titles of the funds are as follow;

Employees Provident Fund;

Employees Provident Fund (Officers);
Employees Provident Fund (Staff); and
Employees Contributory Provident Fund

The size of the Funds at the reporting date was Rs. 8,041.89 million (2023: Rs. 6,721.05 million), As
intimated by the Trustees, the cost of the investments made at year end amounts to Rs. 7,752.68
million (2023: Rs.6,489.05 million) which is equal to 96.41% (2023: 96.55%) of the total fund size.
The fair values of the investments amount to Rs. 8,041.89 million (2023: Rs. 6,721.05 million) at
that date. The category wise break up of investment is given below:

2024 2023
Rupees in '000

Term Deposit Receipts 4,325,000 5,434,300
Government securities 3,427,681 1,054,753
7,752,681 6,489,053

38.2 Funding policy
Schemes are funded on the basis of actuarial recommendation subject to maximum permissible limits
under Income Tax rules. Any deficit in defined benefit plans is to be met by the Bank.

38.3 Risks associated with defined benefit plans
Investment risk

The risk arises when the actual performance of the investments is lower than expectation and thus
creating a shortfall in the funding objectives.
Longevity risk

The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at
the plan level over the entire retiree population.
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Salary increase risk

The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary, The
risk arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.

Withdrawal risk

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the benefit
obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way.

384  Principal actuarial assumption

Latest actuarial valuation is carried out as at December 31, 2024. The actuarial valuations were made
using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method based on the following significant assumptions:

2024 2023
s Ve

Valuation discount rate - pension & medical scheme under SSR-1961 12.25 15.50
Valuation discount rate - all other schemes 12.25 15.50
Expected rate of increase in salary 10.25 13.50
Expected rate of return on plan assets - pension fund 12,25 15.50
Expected rate of return on plan assets - other funds 12.25 15.50
Expected rate of increase in pension 8.00 11.25
Expected rate of medical inflation - allowances 8.00 15.50
Expected rate of medical inflation - hospitalization 12.25 13.50

38.5 Number of employees under the scheme

The number of employees (including beneficiaries) covered under the following defined benefit

schemes are:
2024 2023
Number
- Pension Scheme - funded 5,004 4,915
- Benevolent Scheme (officers) - funded 3,477 3,439
- Benevolent Scheme (staff) - funded 400 318
- Gratuity under Staff Regulations - 2005 (SR-2005) 2,538 2,127
- Post Retirement Medical Benefits - unfunded 6,343 7,036
- Employees Compensated Absences - unfunded 4,965 3,757
- Gratuity scheme of the Company 3,334 1,457
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40 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

40.1 Fair value of financial assets

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as held to maturity, is based on quoted
market price. Quoted securities classified as held to maturity are carried at cost. The fair value of unquoted
equity securities, other than investments in associates and subsidiaries, is determined on the basis of the
break-up value of these investments as per their latest available audited financial statements.

The fair value of unquoted debt securities, fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities, fixed term
deposits and borrowings cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to the absence of a current and
active market for these assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not
significantly different from their carrying values since these are either short-term in nature or, in the case of
customer loans and deposits, are frequently repriced.

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are

observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
...... veens Rupees in '000 ...........

On balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments
- Federal Government Securities - 370,614,398 - 370,614,398
- Shares 3,207,605 - - 3,207,605
- Debt securities (TFCs, Sukuk) 2,352,450 B - 2.352.450

Lae 5,560.055 _370.614.398 - 376,174.453
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2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

esrsraeeses RuUpees in '000 .....0vves
On balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets measured at fair value

Investments

- Federal Government Securities - 366,131,111 - 366,131,111

- Shares 3,531,810 - - 3,531,810

- Debt securities (TFCs, Sukuk) - 2,449,199 - - 2,449,199
5,981,009 366,131.111 = 372,112,120

40.2 Valuation technique used & key inputs

Revaluation rates for Treasury Bills and Pakistan Investment Bonds are contributed by money market
brokers on daily basis while for listed securities daily prices are shared by Pakistan Stock Exchange.
Investments in non Government debt securities are valued on the basis of the rates announced by the
Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP).

Investment in subsidiary and other unlisted securities have not been carried out at fair value in accordance
with the SBP guidelines.

40.3 Fair value of non-financial assets

Property and equipment as well as non-banking assets, are measured at fair value under Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy.

40.4 There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.
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41 SEGMENT INFORMATION

41.1 Segment Details with respect to Business Activities:

The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2024
Wicionh Tslamic smssa:t
banking & Treasury ; "ppo Total
: 7 banking Services
agri financing 2
........ . Rupees in 000 .........

Profit and Loss
Net mark-up/return/profit 15,217,640 9,566,582 267,115 - 25,051,337
Inter segment revenue - net 4,392,260 (4,673,678) - 281,418 -
Non mark-up / return / interest income 2,850,529 2,339,449 8,293 221,178 5,419,449
Total Income 22,460,429 7,232,353 275,408 502,596 30,470,786
Segment direct expenses 15,676,702 68,997 234,406 82,347 16,062,452
Inter segment expense allocation (119,867 - - 119,867 =
Total expenses 15,556,835 68,997 234,406 202,214 16,062,452
Credit loss allowance {11,783,986) - - - (11,783,986)
Profit before tax 18,687,580 7,163,356 41,002 300,382 26,192.320
Statement of Financizl Position
Cash and Bank balances 3,785,190 6,550,505 267,541 15,140 10,618,376
Investments - 374,517,656 1,656,797 - 376,174,453
Net inter segment lendings 68,666,097 - - 1,812,431 70,478,528
Lendings to financial institutions - 17,300,072 13,650,000 - 30,950,072
Advances - performing 101,613,315 - 8,032 - 101,613,315

- non-performing (net of provision} 7,499,863 - - - 7,499,863
Others 35,496,078 13,737,680 1,340,506 213,176 50,787.440
Total Assets 217,060,543 412,105,913 16,922,876 2,040,747 648,130,079
Borrowings 54,461,536  339,805.433 13,800,000 - 408,066,969
Subordinated debt - - - -
Deposits & other accounts 53,733,563 - 1,354,966 - 55,088,529
Net inter segment borrowing 1,812,431 68,066,097 500,000 100,000 70,478,528
Others 26,893,629 2,094,536 1,189,325 561,828 30,739,318
Total Liabilities 136,901,159 409,966,066 16,844,291 661,828 564,373,344
Equity 80,054,402 2,244,829 78,585 1,378.919 83,756,735
Total Equity & Liabilities 216,955,561 41 2!2 10,895 16,922,876 2,040,747 648,130,079
Contingencies & Commitments 96,622,040 - - 435,376 97,057,916
e
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2023
SEanch Islamic S’:“”:t
banking & Treasury Z i pp_m Total
sarvs Tl cias banking Services
i, Limited
veesvesss Rupeesin '000 .........
Profit and Loss
Net mask-up/return/profit 10,166,772 14,111,056 217.382 409 24,495,619
Inter segment revenue - net 2,356,901 (2,587.856) - 230,955 -
Non mark-up / return / interest income 2,096,201 266,525 1,987 197,276 2,561,989
Total Income 14,619,874 11,789,725 219,369 428,640 27,057,608
Segment direct expenses 14,437,025 58,246 140,875 79,350 14,715,496
Inter segment expense allocation (107,762) - - 107,762 -
Total expenses 14,329,263 58,246 140,875 187,112 14,715,496
Credit loss allowance (5,505,176) - - - (5.505,176)
Profit before tax 5,795,787 11,731,479 78,494 2%&28 17,847,288

Statement of Financial Position
Cash and Bank balances 3,540,495 27,925,739 4,105,763 14,793 35,586,790

Investments - 369,922,133 2,189,987 - 372,112,120
Net inter segment lending 31,122,666 - - 1,556,105 32,678,771
Lendings to financial institutions - 5,960,700 600,000 - 6,560,700
Advances - performing 85,398,098 - - - 85,398,098

- non-performing (net of provision) 20,109,562 - . - 20.109,562
Others 34,764,340 7.500,019 237,019 156,873 42,658,251
Total Assets 174,935,161 411,308,591 7,132,769 1,727,771 395,104,292
Borrowings 54,461,536 344,337,663 1,078,500 - 399,877,699
Subordinated debt - - - - -
Deposits & other accounts 50,756,424 - 5,106,873 - 55,863,297
Net inter segment borrowing 1,556,105 30,522,666 500,000 100,000 32,678,771
Others 27,078,576 3,730,261 83,237 519214 31.411.288
Total Liabilities 133,852,641 378,590,590 6,768,610 619,214 519,831,055
Equity 72,517,466 1,622,051 25,163 1,108,557 75273237
Total Equity & Liabilities 206,370,107 380,212,641 6,793,773 1,727,771 595,104,292
Contingencies & Commitments 71,735,770 - - 278,007 72,013,777

412  Segment Details with respect to geographical locations
The Bank operates only in Pakistan and hence no geographical location wise disclosure is presented.
42 TRUST ACTIVITIES

The Bank is not engaged in any significant trust activities,

Cot
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43 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The Group has related party relationship with its employee benefit plans, Agriculture Technology Development Fund
and the Group's key management personnel. Details of transactions with related parties and balances with them other
than those disclosed in these financial statements are as under:

Agricultural
K
i oo S Defined Benefit Plans Technology
personnel
Development Fund
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
R A RS TSR . Rupees in '000 ................ R
Advances
Opening balance 54,997 34,458 - - - -
Addition 74,572 78,570 - - - -
Repaid (31,019) _ (58.,031) - - - -
Closing balance 98,550 54,997 - - P =
Other assets
Interest / mark-up accrued 11,266 10,608 - - - -
Receivable at the end of the year - - 1,184,271 1,140,994 . -
Deposits and other accounts
Opening balance 2,085 2,687 12,001,475 9,126,458 274,290 236,986
Received during the year 232,219 219470 16,795,203 35,825,178 590,448 483,205
Withdrawn during the year (224.809) (220,072) _(16,806,008) _(32,950,161) _(530,140) _(445,901)
Closing balance 9,495 2,085 11,990,670 12,001,475 334,598 274,290
Key management Agricaliural
¥ ersoni I Defined Benefit Plans Technology
P ¢ Development Fund
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
ciassieesn svssnssansscs ROPees In 000! . viniinianiiiaie
Other liabilities
Interest / mark-up payable . - 288,217 430,719 11,090 14,979
Payable at the end of the year - - 18,937,974 17,181,388 - B
Income
Mark-up / interest earned 4,890 2,302 - - - -
Expense
Mark-up / interest paid - - 2,437,466 1,708,385 60,306 38,150
Compensation 253,550 164,577 - - - -
Post retirement benefit 4,283 5,880 B - - -
Contribution to defined benefit plan 843 1,221 - - - -

43.1 Transactions with Government related entities

The Federal Government through SBP holds controlling interest in the Group and therefore entities which are owned
and / or controlled by the Federal Government, or where the Federal Government may exercise significant influence,
are related parties of the Group.

The Group in the normal course of business enters into transaction with Government-related entities. Such
transactions include deposits from and provision of other banking services to Government-related entities. However,
these transactions have not been treated as related parties transactions for the purpose of this disclosure.

ot
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44 CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

2024 2023
... Rupees in "000 ...
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):
Paid-up capital (net of losses) 52,678,432 52,678,432

Capital Adequacy Ratio:

Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital 74,684,118 66,784,561
Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital o -
Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital 74,684,118 66,784,561
Eligible Tier 2 Capital 4,174,704 3.425.817
Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 78,858,822 70,210,378
Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs):

Credit Risk 154,389,975 144,301,307
Market Risk 20,718,775 7,063,625
Operational Risk 43,898,575 34,927,413
Total 219.007.325 _ 186,292 345
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 34.10% 35.85%
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 34.10% 35.85%
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 36.01% 37.69%

SBP through its BSD Circular No. 07 dated April 15, 2009 requires the minimum paid-up capital
(free of losses) for all locally incorporated banks to be raised to Rs. 10 billion by the year ended on
December 31, 2013. The paid-up capital of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2024 stands at
Rs. 52.678 billion and is in compliance with the SBP requirement. In addition, the banks are also
required to maintain a minimum capital adequacy ratio (CAR) of 11.50% (2023: 11.50%) of the risk
weighted exposure. The Bank's CAR as at December 31, 2024 is 36.01% (2023: 37.69%) of its risk

weighted exposure.

2024 2023

... Rupees in '000 ..,
Leverage Ratio (LR):
Eligible Tier-1 Capital 74,684,118 66,784,561
Total exposures 577,770,414 562,544,100
Leverage ratio 12.93% 11.87%
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):
Total High Quality Liquid Assets 75,177,191 43,825,505
Total Net Cash Outflow 32,376,518 5,314,602
Liquidity Coverage Ratio 232% 825%
Net Stable Funding
Total Available Stable Funding 200,257,341 189,685,484
Total Required Stable Funding 162,878,163 156,982,972
Net Stable Funding Ratio 123% _121%

The full disclosures on the CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY
REQUIREMENTS as per SBP instructions issued from time to time is placed on the website of the

Bank. The link to the full disclosure is available at http://www .ztbl.com.pk.
[P~
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45 RISK MANAGEMENT

This section presents information about the Bank’s exposure to and its management and control of risks, in
particular, the primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments such as credit, market, liquidity and
operational risks.

Risk management is a dynamic process of identification, measurement and monitor and control risks with the
aim to optimize risk-reward trade-off. The Bank has setup a centralized risk management function at the
organizational level which encompasses a broader framework of risk committees, enterprise risk management
division and its departments responsible for each category of risk i.e. Loan Review, IT risk, Collateral
Management and Portfolio analytics covering Portfolio credit risk, market & liquidity risk, operational and
equity position risks, The Bank's risk management function is independent of the business and operations and
directly reports to the President through Chief Risk Officer. The Bank's systematic and integrated risk
management function for each category of risk is as follows:

45.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial losses arising when a customer or counterparty is unable or unwilling to
perform as per the contractual terms resulting in reduction in portfolio. The Bank’s credit appraisal structure is
well-defined. Credit appraisal, approval and review methods are integral parts of lending operations. The credit

portfolio is reviewed and analysed on quarterly basis and reports are submitted to the Management for decision
making,

The Obligor Risk Rating (ORR) model for fresh borrowers is in place as the credit risk rating of the borrower is a
concise indicator to evaluate Bank’s credit exposure. An internal rating system categorizes all credits into
various classes on the basis of underlying credit quality. The ultimate objective of the system is to generate
accurate and consistent risk ratings and portfolio monitoring / analysis.

Regarding Basel Accords compliance, the Bank has implemented Standardized Approach (SA) for calculation of
capital charge against credit risk weighted assets.

Particulars of bank's significant on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet credit risk in various sectors are analysed
as follows:

[~
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45.3 Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and system or from external events. In order to manage operational issues, an Operational Risk
Model (ORM) has been developed which comprises Key Risk Indicator (KRI), Control Self
Assessment (CSA) and Operational Loss Event Data Collection. This model has been successfully
implemented in all Bank wide entities. The data of the Operational Risk Model is collected and
analysed on quarterly basis and results are elevated to senior management / Internal Risk
Management Committee.

With regards to Basel Accords compliance, the Bank has implemented Basic Indicator Approach
(BIA) to calculate capital charge against operational risk weighted assets. Disaster recovery and
business continuity plan includes separate IT business continuity plan which caters to [T specific
business continuity planning requirements.

45.3.1 Operational risk - Disclosures Basel Il specific

The Bank uses Basic Indicator Approach to calculate capital charge for operational risk as per
Basel regulatory framework. This approach is considered to be most suitable in view of the
business model of the Bank which relies on an extensive network of branches to offer one - stop,
full - service banking to its clients. The Bank has developed and implemented an inhouse
Operational Risk Management Framework. Operational loss is reviewed and appropriate
corrective actions taken on an ongoing basis, including measures to improve security and control
procedures. Key Risk Indicators have also been developed along with thresholds which are being
closely monitored for breaches. Risk Evaluation exercise is carried out for new products, processes
and systems or any significant change in the existing product, processes and systems as per the
operational risk policy of the Bank.

454 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the major risk for banks. It arises when the cushion provided by the liquid assets
are not sufficient enough to meet its obligation. Liquidity risk is being calculated by maturity
ladder of balance sheet items, liquidity stress testing, regulatory returns on liquidity standards
under Basel I, and different analysis for management purpose.
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46 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged, reclassified or additionally incorporated in these
financial statements wherever necessary to facilitate comparison and better presentation.

47 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 25 MAR 2025 by the Board
of Directors of the Group.

48 GENERAL

The figures in the financial statements are rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, unless
otherwise stated.
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ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS
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Annexure - [I

The bank is operating 25 (2023; 25) Islamic banking branches and 0 (2023: 10) Islamic branches

windows at the end of the year.

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Due from financial institutions
Investments

[slamic financing and related assets - net
Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Due from Head Office

Other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Due to financial institutions
Deposits and other accounts
Due to Head Office
Subordinated debt

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

Islamic Banking Fund

Reserves

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of assets
Accumulated profit

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

[~

32 10) Sip ilis e

2024

2023

Rupees in '000

141,150 282,787
126,391 3,822,976
13,650,000 600,000
1,656,797 2,189,987
8,032 .
120,687 121,463
1,219,819 115,556
16,922,876 7,132,769
4,435 1,367
13,800,000 1,078,500
1,354,966 5,106,873
963,273 338,996
221,617 81,870
16,344,291 6,607,606
578,585 525,163
500,000 500,000
11,953 (23,039)
66,632 48.202
578,585 525,163
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Annexure - [1

The profit and loss account of the Bank's Islamic banking branches for the year ended is as follows:

2024 2023

Note Rupees in '000
Profit / return earned 7 2.196,093 1,299,771
Profit / return expensed 8 1,928,978 1,082,389
Net Profit / return 267,115 217,382
Other income
Fee and Commission Income 2,578 1,966
Dividend Income - -
Foreign Exchange Income - -
Income / (loss) from derivatives E -
Gain on securities 3,667 21
Other Income 2,048 -
Total other income 8,203 1,987
Total Income 275,408 219,369
Other expenses
Operating expenses 234,406 140,875
Workers Welfare Fund - -
Other charges - -
Total other expenses 234,406 140,875
Profit before provisions 41,002 78,494
Provisions and write offs - net 5 3
Profit before taxation 41,002 78,494
Taxation 22,572 37,445
Profit after taxation 18.430 41,049
[~
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Annexure - I1

2024 2023
Rupees in '000
3 Deposits
Customers - local currency
Current deposits 392,796 223,294
Savings deposits 719,767 4,723,567
Term deposits receipts 242,165 155,397
Others 238 4,615
1,354,966 5,106,873
Financial Institutions
Term deposits receipts - -
1,354,966 5,106,873
3.1 Composition of deposits
- Individuals 1,023,657 899,046
- Non-Banking Financial Institutions - 2,905,801
- Private Sector 131,309 1,162,869
-Govt./Public Sector Entities 200,000 139,157
1,354,966 5,106,873

3.2 This includes deposits eligible to be covered under insurance arrangements in accordance with DPC
Circular No. 04 dated June 22, 2018 amounting to Rs. 1,026.551 million (2023: Rs. 899.576 million).

4 Due to head office represents inter branch transactions between Islamic and Conventional.
2024 2023
Rupees in '000
5 Islamic Banking Business Unappropriated Profit
Opening Balance 48,202 7,153
Add: Islamic Banking for the year 41,002 78,494
Less: Taxation 22,572 37,445
Closing Balance 66,632 48,202
6 There are no contingencies and commitments related to the Islamic business as at reporting date.
(2023: Nil)
7 Profit / return earned of financing, investments and placement
2024 2023
Rupees in '000
Profit earned on:
Financing 515 -
[nvestments 342,024 413,986
Placements 1,853,554 885,785
Total 2,196,093 1,299,771
At
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Annexure - I1

2024 2023
Rupees in "000
8 Profit on deposits and other dues expensed
Deposits and other accounts 261,484 449,096
Commission and other charges 3,520 1,493
Call borrowings/ Funds acceptances 1,663,974 631,800
1,928,978 1,082,389
9 Pool Management

Currently, ZTBL Islamic Banking Division (ZTBL - IBD) is maintaining five pools for profit

declaration and distribution i.e., general pool, special pool 3, special pool 5, special pool 7 and special
pool 10,

General pool

The General Pool comprises of depositors’ funds, Bank’s equity inclusive of current deposits and
mudaraba placements from ZTBL Head Office. The Bank acts as fund manager (Mudarib) and invests
the funds in Shariah compliant modes of financings, investments and placements (remunerative
assets). The profit of the pool is calculated on all the remunerative assets booked by the Bank and is
shared amongst the members of the pool on pre-defined mechanism based on weightages announced
before the commencement of period concerned.

The distributable profit of the pool is finalized after deduction of direct expenses only while indirect
expenses including administrative and general expenses are borne by ZTBL - IBD as Mudarib.

Weightages for distribution of profit in general pool

Profit is calculated on the basis of daily product balance in mudaraba based depositors® accounts and
paid as per pre-defined weightages.

While considering weightages emphasis is given to the quantum, type and the period of risk assessed
by following factors:

Contracted period of deposits;

Frequency of profit distribution, i.e. monthly, quarterly or on maturity; and

Volume of the deposit,

L

Identification and allocation of pool related income & expenses

The distributable profit of the pool is finalized by including direct income earned by income
generating / remunerative assets and after deducting direct expenses of the period concerned, while
indirect expenses including administrative and general expenses are borne by ZTBL - IBD as Mudarib.

Parameters associated with risk and rewards
Following are the considerations attached with risk & reward of general pool:

- Period, return, safety, security and liquidity of investment;

- Financing proposals under process at various stages and likely to be extended in the near future;

- Expected withdrawals of deposits according to the maturities affecting the deposit base;

- Maturities of funds obtained from Principal Office, Islamic Banking Institutions and Shariah compliant
organizations as regulated in Pakistan;

- Element of risk attributed to various types of investments; and

- SBP rules & Shariah Clearance.
ot
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Annexure - IT

Special pool

The special pools comprise of depositors® funds, Bank’s equity inclusive of current deposits and
Mudaraba placements from head office. The Bank acts as Fund Manager (Mudarib) and invests the
funds in Shariah compliant modes of financings, investments and placements (remunerative assets).
The profit of the pools is calculated on all the remunerative assets booked by the Bank and is shared

amongst the members of the pool on pre-defined mechanism based on weightages announced before
the commencement of concerned period.

The distributable profit of the pool is finalized after deduction of direct expenses only while indirect
expenses including administrative and general expenses are borne by ZTBL - IBD as Mudarib,

Weightages for distribution of profit in general pool

Profit is calculated on daily product basis and paid as per pre defined weightages. While considering
weightages emphasis is given to the quantum, type and the period of risk assessed by following
factors:

- Contracted period, nature and type of deposit / fund.;

- Payment cycle of profit on such deposit / fund, i.e. monthly, quarterly or on maturity; and
- Magnitude of risk.

Identification and allocation of pool related income & expenses

The distributable profit of the pool is finalized by including direct income earned by income
generating / remunerative assets and after deducting direct expenses of the period concerned, while
indirect expenses including administrative and general expenses are borne by ZTBL - IBD as Mudarib.

Parameters associated with risk and rewards
Following are the considerations attached with risk & reward of special pool:

- Period, return, safety, security and liquidity of investment;

- Financing proposals under process at various stages and likely to be extended in the near future;

- Expected withdrawals of deposits according to the maturities affecting the deposit base;

- Maturities of funds obtained from principal office, Islamic banking institutions and Shariah
compliant organizations as regulated in Pakistan;

- Element of risk attached to various types of investments; and

- SBP rules & Shariah Clearance.

Avenues / sectors of economy / business where Mudaraba based deposits have been deployed:

2024 2023
Rupees in '000
Investments 1,656,797 2,189,987
Due from financial institutions 13,650,000 600,000
Balances with other banks 126,391 3,822,976
oAt
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Annexure - II

Charging expenses

The direct expenses are charged to the pool, while indirect expenses including the establishment cost is
borne by ZTBL - IBD as Mudarib. The direct expenses to be charged to the pool may include
depreciation of ijarah assets, cost of sale of inventories, insurance / takaful expenses of pool assets,
taxes, stamp fee or documentation charges, brokerage fee for purchase of securities / commodities,

impairment / losses due to physical damages to specific assets in pools, write-offs of financings and
loss on sale of investments, etc.

2024 2023
Rupees in '000

Credit loss allowances ~ :

Mudarib share (in amount and percentage of distributable income)

2024 2023
Rupees in '000
Rabbul Mal 3% 251,311 414,840
Mudarib 27% 91,305 90,179
342,616 505,019

Amount & percentage of mudarib share transferred to depositors
through Hiba

2024 2023
Mudarib share 91,305 90,179
Hiba 20,228 40,321
Hiba percentage of mudarib share 22.15% 44.71%

This is not a special Hiba and it has been distributed across the board to all the investment account
holders.

Profit rate earned vs profit rate distributed to the depositors during the year

2024 2023
Profit rate earned 18.03% p.a. 19.66% p.a.
Profit rates distributed to depositors 13.07% p.a. 13.45% p.a.

At
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SELECTED STATISTICAL INDICATORS

(Rupees in Millions)

During the Year
1 Agricultural Credit Disbursed 62,070 69,162 69,631 90,978 72,022
2 Loans to Subsistence Farmers 50,950 58,806 60,067 80,386 64,603
3 2 a3s%ageofl B82% 85% 80% B8% 90%
4 Loans to Small Farmers (Upto 25.0 Acres) 60,013 66,979 67,685 83,933 70,597
5 4 as %age of 1 97% 97% 97% 98% 98%
3 Financing of Tractors
- Mumher 1,084 1,356 698 4,872 295
- Amount 938 1,258 740 10,082 2,001
7 Financing of Tubewells
- Mumher 171 69 35 208 220
- Amount 25.329 11.184 8.628 384,138 553
a 7 as ¥age of 1 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.4% 0.8%
9 Agri. Credit Recovery 79,216 83,677 79,750 91,080 85,309
At the End of the Year
1 Agri. Loan Portfolio 145,635 127,864 121,871 137,349 148,765
2 Nurnber of Zonal Offices 31 31 31 31 31
3 Number of Branches 501 501 501 501 501
4 Mumber of MCO's 1,258 1,138 1,166 1,041 1,046
5 Number of Regular Employees 5,088 4,539 4,163 3,803 3,916

a0l Sip ilis yine;
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

LOANS DISBURSED SINCE INCEPTION: AREA-WISE
UPTO 31.12.2024

(Rupees in Millions)

1 Punjab 1,437,249 80.3
2 Sindh 237,001 13.2
3 Khyber Pakhtunkhwa 86,629 4.8
4 Balochistan 12,937 0.7
5 Azad Kashmir 6,708 0.4
5] Gilgit/Baltistan 9,585 0.5

Total 1,790,108.355 100

30l Sipilis yione;
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

LOANS DISBURSED: AREA-WISE
DURING 01-01-2024 TO 31-12-2024

(Rupees in Millions)

Punjab 102,412 61,362 85.20
2 Sindh 11,579 7,217 10.02
3 Khyber Pakhtunkhwa 3,437 2,313 3.21
4 Balochistan 465 407 0.56
5 Azad Kashmir 95 63 0.09
& Gilgit/Baltistan 793 [+1s0 0.92

Total 118,789* 72,023 100

*Purpose-wise Number of Borrowers

30l Sip ilis yine;
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

TERM-WISE COMPOSITION OF LOANS DISBURSED
DURING 01-01-2024 TO 31-12-2024

[Rupees in Millions)

Punjab 44,091 29,223.63 51,035  28,002.07 7282 4,136.443 102,412 61,362.14
2 | Sindh 5,025 3,142.92 6,532 4,041.71 18 32.638 11,575 | 7,217.26
3 Khyber 630 529.33 2,494 1,555.85 233 227.319 3,437 2,312.50
Pakhtunkhwa
4 Balochistan 401 332.26 44 40.47 24 33.941 469 406.67
5 | Azad Kashmir 1 0.50 97 62.47 1 0.400 99 03.37
6 | Gilgit/Baltistan 0 0.00 791 657.45 2 3.285 793 660.74
Total 50,212  33,228.64 60,997  34,360.02 7,580 4,434.03 118,789 72,022.69

30l Sip ilis yine;
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

LOANS DISBURSED: SECURITY — WISE

DURING 01.01.2024 TO 31.12.2024
{Rupees In Millions)

Secured Loans 114,104 71,354.3
2 Hypothecation Loans 2 1.0 0.0
3 Personal Surety Loans 3 3.3 0.0
4 Other Security 937 662.1 0.9
Total 115,108* 72,022.686 100

*Security-wise Number of Loan Cases

30l Sip ilis yisne
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

ANNUAL CREDIT DISBURSEMENT, TRACTORS & TUBEWELLS FINANCED
SINCE INCEPTION UPTO 31-12-2024

[Rs. In Millions)
| AmnualCredit  Tradcorsinanced  TubewellsFinanced
| Dsbumed  Namber  Amount  Number  Amount

since Inception 1,077,357.137 579,814 131,115.265 156,857 18,015.638

upto 31-12-2015 e ! ! ! !
2016 92,847.397 4,654 3,004.209 365 69.528
2017 97,128,722 4,763 3,064.079 465 71,199
2018 76,262.233 3,616 2,802.867 618 91.895
2019 §2,645.136 1,747 1,425.004 622 82.393
2020 62,069.647 1,084 937.555 171 25.329
2021 69,161.814 1,356 1,258.305 69 11.184
2022 69,631.277 6328 735,824 35 8.628
2023 90,978,308 4,872 10,082.000 208 384,138
2024 72,022,686 835 2,000,598 280 553
Total 1,790,108.357 602,501 156,434 159,690 19,313

a0l Sip ilis yine;
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

AGRICULTURAL CREDIT DISBURSED BY MAJOR PURPOSES

DURING 01-01-2024 TO 31-12-2024

(Rupees in Millions)

I. Development Loans 68,577 38,794 54
1  Tractors 895 2,001 3
2 | Dairy Farming 46,484 27,040 38
3 | Farm Equipment 610 981 1
4 | Tubewells/Turbines 280 553 1
5  Livestock g,641 2,947 4
& | Poultry Farming 18 13 0
7 | Orchards 77 51.263 a
& | Land Development 17 4.300 a
9 | Godown/ Cold Storage 2,472 1,379.018 2
10 Others 9,083 3,824 ]

Il. Production Loans 50,212 33,228.641 46

Total Agri. Credit Disbursement 118,789 72,022.686 100

30l Sip ilis yine;
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

AGRICULTURAL CREDIT DISBURSED BY SIZE OF LOAN

DURING 01-01-2024 TO 31-12-2024

(Rs. in Millions)

Upto Rs. 25000/-

Rs. 25001 to 50000/- 762 0.8 32.51 0.0
Rs. 50001 to 100000/- 3,244 3.2 273.41 0.4
Rs. 100001 to 200000/- 11,500 11.4 1,831.52 2.5
Rs. 200001 to 500000/- 34,243 34.0 12,058.22 16.7
Rs. 300001 te 1000000/- 31,510 313 22,715.96 315
Cwer Rs. 1000000/- 18,845 18.7 35,1068.85 48.7
TOTAL 100,602 100.0 72,022.69 100.0

*Borrowers are CNIC Wise

30l Sip ilis yine;
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

AGRICULTURAL CREDIT DISBURSED BY SIZE OF HOLDING
DURING 01-01-2024 TO 31-12-2024
[Rupees in Millions)

0% 0.000 0%

A, Landless W]
B. Owners

Under 5.1 Hectares

(under 12.50 Acres) 105,051 91% 63,282.207 88%

7 1251 1y 1800 e 4461 % 3702076 5%
7 22 01 o under 2309 vy 3,955 3% 3612811 %
m._;;; 1?1 I:: g:;elri:af ;ﬂ,_::;j 754 1% 653.642 1%
0t v s 3000 e 2 1 556659 15
500t 1y 4.0 vy 11 0% 104332 o%
25;;:1;23?;::; 130 0.1% 110.967 0.2%
Total 115,108 100%  72,022.694 100.0

30l Sip ilis yine;
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

PROVINCE/AREA WISE LOAN RECOVERY
DURING 01-01-2024 TO 31-12-2024

(Rupeeas in Millions)

1 Punjab 71,969.54
2 Sindh §,410.22
3 Khyber Pakhtunkhwa 3,034.85
4 Balochistan 432.61
5 Azad Kashmir 243.04
6 Gilgit/Baltistan 1,219.12

Total 85,309.38

30l Sip ilis yisne;
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

STAFF POSITION
(REGULAR EMPLOYEES)

(Numbers)
o vew  offcest  MCOs  sefft Toml
CY' 2011 4,145 1,277 1,644 5,789
CY' 2012 4,095 1,313 1,629 5,724
CY' 2013 4,218 1,208 1,381 5,399
CY' 2014 4,581 1,271 1,136 5,777
CY' 2015 4,550 1,333 1,145 5,699
CY' 2016 4,589 1,328 1,106 5,695
CY' 2017 4,871 1,373 929 5,800
CY' 2018 4,787 1,257 814 5,601
CY' 2015 4,473 1,257 778 5,251
CY 2020 4,371 1,258 717 5,088
CY 2021 3,909 1,138 632 4,341
CY 2022 3,572 1,166 631 4,203
CY 2023 3,308 1,041 a04 3,812
CY 2024 3,477 1,046 438 3,916
* Including MCOs

30l Siy ilis yine;
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ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED

NETWORK OF FIELD OFFICES
AS ON 31.12.2024

(NMumbers)

1

Punjab® 17 294
2 Sindh 6 a3
3 Khyber Pakhtunkhwa 4 57
4 Balochistan 2 34
5 Azad Kashmir 1 11
[+ Gilgit/Baltistan 1 12

Total 31 501

* Including Islamabad

a0l Sip ilis yine;




